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NOTICE

Notice is hereby given that the Thirteenth Annual General Meeting of the Members of Tata
Realty and Infrastructure Limited will be held on Tuesday, September 29, 2020 at 01.30
p.m. (IST) through Video Conferencing (VC) / Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) at shorter
notice to transact the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1.

To receive, consider and adopt:

a) the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended
March 31, 2020, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors
thereon; and

b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial
Year ended March 31, 2020, together with the Report of the Auditors thereon.

To re-appoint Mr. Banmali Agrawala (DIN: 00120029) as a Director of the Company,
who is liable to retire by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

Special Business:

3.

Ratification of Cost Auditor's Remuneration:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148(3) and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) and the rules made thereunder
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in
force), the Company hereby ratifies the remuneration up to Rs. 1,75,000/- (Rupees
One Lakh Seventy-Five Thousand Only) plus applicable taxes and out-of-pocket
expenses incurred in connection with the audit, payable to M/s. Kishore Bhatia &
Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No: 00294), who are appointed as
Cost Auditors to conduct the audit of the cost records maintained by the Company,
for the financial year 2020-21.”

To approve Issue of Non-Convertible Debentures on Private Placement
Basis:

To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following
Resolution as Special Resolution:

TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED
CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300
E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai — 400 033 India.
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"RESOLVED THAT in supersession of Resolution passed at the Extra Ordinary
General Meeting of the Members held on January 28, 2020 and pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 23, 42, 71 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Prospectus and Allotment of Securities)
Rules, 2014 and the Companies (Share Capital & Debentures) Rules, 2014, including
any amendment, modification or variation thereof for the time being in force, and
subject to all other applicable Regulations, Rules, Notifications, Circulars and
Guidelines prescribed by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI'), as
amended, including the SEBI (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008, as amended, the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, as amended, SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements), 2018, as amended if applicable and the enabling provisions of the
listing agreements entered / to be entered into with the Stock Exchanges where the
securities of the Company be listed (the 'Stock Exchanges'), and subject to the
applicable Regulations, Rules, Notifications, Circulars and Guidelines prescribed by
the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI'), the Memorandum of Association and the Articles
of Association of the Company, and subject to such approvals, consents, permissions
and sanctions as may be required from the Government of India, SEBI, RBI, the
Stock Exchanges or any regulatory or statutory authority as may be required (the
'Appropriate Authority') and subject to such conditions and/or modifications as may
be prescribed or imposed by the Appropriate Authority while granting such
approvals, consents, permissions and sanctions, which may be agreed to by the
Board of Directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as the 'Board' which term
shall be deemed to include any Committee(s) constituted/to be constituted by the
Board to exercise its powers including the powers conferred by this Resolution),
subject to the total borrowings of the Company not exceeding the borrowing powers
approved by the Members from time to time under Section 180(1)( c) of the Act,
consent of the Members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board of
Directors (hereinafter referred to as the "Board", which term shall be deemed to
include any committee of the board constituted to exercise its powers, including the
powers conferred by the resolution) for making offer(s) or invitations to subscribe to
rated, redeemable, cumulative/non-cumulative, listed/unlisted Non-Convertible
Debentures/Bonds (hereinafter collectively referred as NCDs) up to an amount of
Rs.6,000 Crore (Rupees Six Thousand Crore only) on private placement basis to
eligible entities, bodies corporate, companies, banks, financial institutions and any
other categories of investors (eligible investors) permitted to invest in the NCDs
under applicable laws, in one or more series/tranches, during a period of one year
from the date of passing of this Resolution on such terms and conditions as the
Board or any Committee authorized by the Board or any person(s) authorized by the
Board, may, from time to time, determine and consider proper and most beneficial
to the Company including as to when the said NCDs be issued, the consideration for
the issue, utilization of issue proceeds and all matters connected with or incidental
thereto and that the said borrowing is within the overall borrowing limits of the
Company.
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RESOLVED FURTHER THAT for the purpose of giving effect to this Resolution, the
Board be and is hereby authorized, on behalf of the Company, to determine the
terms of issue including the class of investors to whom the NCDs are to be issued,
time, the number of NCDs, tranches, issue price, tenor, interest rate,
premium/discount, listing (in India or overseas) and do all such acts, deeds, matters
and things as it may in its absolute discretion deem necessary, proper, or desirable
and to settle any question, doubt that may arise in the respect of the borrowings
aforesaid and to execute all documents and writing as may be necessary, proper,
desirable or expedient."

By order of the Board
For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Sudhakar Shetty
Company Secretary
(ICSI Membership No.: A13200)
CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300
Place: Mumbai
Date: September 28, 2020
Registered Office: E Block, Voltas Premises,
T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033
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In view of the global outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
("MCA™) has vide its General Circular No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020 in relation to
“Clarification on holding of annual general meeting (AGM) through video conferencing (VC)
or other audio visual means (OAVM)” read with General Circular No. 14/ 2020 dated April 8,
2020 and the General Circular No. 17/ 2020 dated April 13, 2020 in relation to “Clarification
on passing of ordinary and special resolutions by companies under the Companies Act, 2013
and the rules made thereunder on account of the threat posed by Covid-19” (collectively
referred to as “MCA Circulars”) permitted the holding of the Annual General Meeting ("AGM")
through VC / OAVM, without the physical presence of the Members at a common venue. In
compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and MCA Circulars, the
AGM of the Company is being held through VC / OAVM on Tuesday, September 29, 2020 at
01.30 p.m. (IST). The deemed venue for the 13t AGM will be the registered office of the
Company E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033.

Since the number of members are less than 50, the Chairman may decide to conduct vote by
show of hands, unless demand for a poll is made by any member in accordance with Section
109 of the Act.

PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF THE ACT, A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND
AND VOTE AT THE AGM IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE
ON HIS/HER BEHALF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE
COMPANY. SINCE THIS AGM IS BEING HELD PURSUANT TO THE MCA CIRCULARS
THROUGH VC OR OAVM, THE REQUIREMENT OF PHYSICAL ATTENDANCE OF
MEMBERS HAS BEEN DISPENSED WITH. ACCORDINGLY, IN TERMS OF THE MCA
CIRCULARS THE FACILITY FOR APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES BY THE MEMBERS
WILL NOT BE AVAILABLE FOR THIS AGM AND HENCE THE PROXY FORM AND
ATTENDANCE SLIP ARE NOT ANNEXED TO THIS NOTICE.

The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the
purpose of reckoning the quorum under Section 103 of the Act.

Corporate members intending to attend through their authorised representative, to attend
the AGM are required to send a scanned copy (PDF/JPG format) a certified copy of its Board
or governing body Resolution / Authorization to the Company, authorising them to attend
and vote through VC/OAVM on their behalf at the AGM.

As per the provisions of Clause 3.A.III. of the General Circular No. 20/ 2020 dated May 5,
2020, the matters of Special Business as appearing at Item No. 3 & 4 of the accompanying
Notice, is considered to be unavoidable by the Board and hence, forming part of this Notice.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Act setting out material facts
concerning the business under Item No.3 & 4 of the Notice is annexed hereto. The relevant
details, pursuant to Secretarial Standards on General Meetings issued by the Institute of
Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment at



10.

11.

12.

13.

v

TATA

this AGM are also annexed. Requisite declarations have been received from Director, for
seeking re-appointment.

The Company shall provide the required link to attend the 13 AGM of the Company at their
registered email address / at the email address of the authorized representative, as the case
may be, before the meeting, which would facilitate the Members/Authorized Representative,
as the case may be, to attend the AGM via VC or OAVM. In case, any Members/Authorized
Representative, as the case may be, need any assistance with using the technology, can
contact the Company at following email id: sudhakarshetty@tatarealty.in or call during the
business hours at 022 6661 4444.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 30 minutes before and 15 minutes
after the scheduled time of the commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure
mentioned in the Notice.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars Notice of the AGM along with the Annual
Report for the financial year 2019-20, is being sent by electronic mode to those Members
whose email addresses are registered with the Company/Depositories.

Members are requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address,
e-mail address, telephone/mobile numbers, PAN, registering of nomination, power of
attorney registration, Bank Mandate details, etc., to their DPs in case the shares are held in
electronic form and to the Registrar at www.kfintech.com in case the shares are held in
physical form, quoting your folio no.

As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making nomination is available
for the Members in respect of the shares held by them. Members who have not yet
registered their nomination are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. SH-
13. If a Member desires to cancel the earlier nomination and record a fresh nomination, he
may submit the same in Form SH-14. Members are requested to submit the said form to
their DP in case the shares are held in electronic form and to the RTA at www.kfintech.com
in case the shares are held in physical form, quoting your folio no.

The format of the Register of Members prescribed by the MCA under the Act requires the
Company/Registrars and Share Transfer Agents (RTA) to record additional details of
Members, including their PAN details, e-mail address, bank details for payment of dividend
etc. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to submit the filled in form to the
Company at the registered office or to the Registrar in physical mode, after restoring
normalcy or in electronic mode at www.kfintech.com, as per instructions mentioned in the
form. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to submit the details to their
respective DP only and not to the Company or RTA.

Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one folio
are requested to send to the Company or RTA, the details of such folios together with the
share certificates for consolidating their holdings in one folio. A consolidated share certificate
will be issued to such Members after making requisite changes.
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To support the ‘Green Initiative’, Members who have not yet registered their email addresses
are requested to register the same with their Depository Participants (“DPs").

Members who wish to inspect the relevant documents referred to in the Notice can send an
email to sudhakarshetty@tatarealty.in up to date of this Meeting. The Members who would
like to express their views or ask questions during the AGM may raise the same at the
meeting or send them in advance (mentioning their name and folio no.), at least 3 days prior
to the date of the AGM at sudhakarshetty@tatarealty.in.

In case of joint holders attending the AGM, the Member whose name appears as the first
holder in the order of nhames as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled
to vote.

Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under
Section 170 of the Act and Register of Contracts or arrangements in which Directors are
interested, if any maintained under Section 189 of the Act will be available electronically for
inspection by the members during the AGM. The document shall be shared by a screen share
option in electronic mode.

In case of a poll on any resolution at the AGM, members are requested to convey their vote
at the following designated Email ID — sudhakarshetty@tatarealty.in.

Since the AGM will be held through VC/OAVM, The Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.

By order of the Board
For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Sudhakar Shetty
Company Secretary
(ICSI Membership No.: A13200)

CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300

Place: Mumbai

Date: September 28, 2020

Registered Office: E Block, Voltas Premises,

T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033


mailto:sudhakarshetty@tatarealty.in
mailto:sudhakarshetty@tatarealty.in
mailto:sudhakarshetty@tatarealty.in

v

TATA

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013

As required by Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the following explanatory
statement set out all material facts to the business mentioned under following Items of the
accompanying Notice.

Item No. 3:

The Board of Directors of the Company on the recommendation of Audit Committee, at its
meeting held on June 26, 2020, approved the appointment / re-appointment of M/s. Kishore
Bhatia & Associates, Cost Accountants (Firm Registration No: 00294), as Cost Auditors for
auditing the cost records of the Company for the financial year 2020-21 at a remuneration
not exceeding Rs.1,75,000/- (Rupees One Lakh Seventy-Five Thousand Only) plus
applicable taxes and out-of-pocket expenses.

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act read with the Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the ratification for the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors
for the Financial Year 2020 — 21 by way of an Ordinary Resolution is being sought from the
members as set out at Item No.3 of the Notice.

The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No.3 of the Notice for
approval of the Members.

None of the Directors and the key managerial personnel(s) or their relatives is deemed to be
concerned or interested in the aforesaid resolution.

Item No. 4:

To meet the funding requirements of the Company, the Company has from time to time
issued NCDs, in one or more series / tranches on private placement basis in accordance
with the provisions of the Act.

In order to augment long term resources for financing, inter alia, refinancing of the existing
debt, ongoing working capital requirement and for general corporate purposes, the
Company may require further offering or inviting subscription, from time to time, in one or
more tranches and/or series, whether secured or unsecured, cumulative or non-cumulative,
listed or unlisted, redeemable non-convertible debentures including but not limited to bonds
and/or other debt securities, denominated in Indian rupees ('NCDs') on private placement
basis. The pricing for any instrument which may be issued by the Company on the basis of
the Resolution set out at the Notice will be done by the Board (which term includes a duly
constituted Committee of the Board of Directors) in accordance with applicable laws
including the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities)
Regulations, 2008 and other Regulations, as may be applicable.

The provisions of Sections 23, 42 and 71 of the Act read with Rule 14 of the Companies
(Prospectus and Allotment of Securities) Rules, 2014 (the 'PAS Rules'), provide that a
Company shall not make a private placement of its securities unless the proposed offer of
securities or invitation to subscribe to the securities has been previously approved by the
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Members of the Company by a Special Resolution. The third proviso to Rule 14(1) of the
PAS Rules provides that in case of an offer or invitation to subscribe to NCDs on private
placement basis, the Company can obtain prior approval by means of a Special Resolution
once a year for all offers or invitations for such NCDs during the year.

In terms of the provisions of Rule 14(1) of the PAS rules, disclosures pertaining to NCDs are
as follows:

a)

b)

d)

e)

Particulars of the offer including the date of passing of the Board
Resolution:
Board resolution passed on April 17, 2019, for the issuance of NCDs on a private

placement basis up to limit of up to Rs. 6,000 Crore.

Kinds of Securities offered and the price at which security is being offered:
Non-Convertible Debentures at such price as may be determined by the Board from

time to time.

Basis of justification for the price (including premium, if any) at which the
offer or invitation is being made:

As may be determined by the Board from time to time.

Name and address of valuer who performed valuation:

Not Applicable

Amount which the company intends to raise by way of such securities:
Up to Rs. 6,000 Crore.

Material terms of raising such securities, proposed time schedule,
purposes or objects of offer, contribution being made by the promoters or
directors either as part of the offer or separately in furtherance of objects;
principle terms of assets charged as securities:

As may be determined by the Board, from time to time

The Shareholders had approved the issuance of NCDs amounting to Rs.6,000 Crore vide its
resolution passed at the EGM held on January 28, 2020. The said approval will be expired
on January 27, 2021. For better operational convince it is propose to seek approval of
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members prior to expiry of present timeline. The Board at its meeting held on April 17,
2019, subject to the approval of members of the Company, had approved the issuance of
NCDs on a private placement basis, amounting to Rs. 6,000 Crore. This was within the
overall borrowing limit of Rs. 6,000 Crore, approved by the Shareholders, pursuant to the
provisions of Section 180{1)(c) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
at their EGM held on September 23, 2019.

The Company has already availed Rs. 2,283.25 Crore out of such limit as August 31, 2020.
The current borrowing structure of the Company is mentioned in the table below:

Borrowings as on August 31, 2020:

(Figures in Rs. Crore)

Overall Borrowing Limit: 6,000

Particulars Short Term and Long Term Borrowing
Limit 6,000

Utilized 2,283.25

Balance 3,716.75

The approval of the Members is being sought for issue of NCDs up to an amount of
Rs.6,000 Crore by way of a Special Resolution in compliance with the applicable provisions
of the Act read with the Rules made thereunder, from time to time, in the manner as set in
this Notice.

The Directors recommend the Resolution of the accompanying Notice, for the approval of
the Members of the Company by way of a Special Resolution.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Persons of the Company or their respective
relatives is in any way concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Resolution
set out in this Notice.

By order of the Board
For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Sudhakar Shetty
Company Secretary
(ICSI Membership No.: A13200)
CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300
Place: Mumbai
Date: September 28, 2020
Registered Office: E Block, Voltas Premises,
T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033



v

TATA

Information pursuant to the Secretarial Standards/Schedule V in respect of
Appointment/ Re-appointment of Directors:

Item No. 2 - Re-appoint Mr. Banmali Agrawala (DIN: 00120029) as a Director

Particulars

Mr. Banmali Agrawala (DIN: 00120029)

Date of Birth

30/04/1963

Quialification

B.E. in Mechanical Engineering from Mangalore University and an alumnus
of the Advanced Management Programme of Harvard Business School.

Experience

Mr. Banmali Agrawala is the President, Infrastructure and Defence &
Aerospace, Tata Sons Private Limited. In his earlier role, he was President
and CEO of GE, South Asia, where he was responsible for all of GE's
operations in the South Asia region. Prior to GE, he was Executive Director
(BD & Strategy) and a member of the Board of Tata Power.

A veteran in the Energy domain, Banmali has over 30 years of global
experience. He started his career with the Wartsila Group where he spent
over 20 years, both in India and in Finland. At the time of leaving the
Wartsila Group, he was the Managing Director of Wartsila India Ltd, the
Global head of the Bio Power Industries and a member of the Global
Power Plant Management Board.

An active member of the Confederation of Indian Industries (CII), Banmali
has held several official positions within CII such as Chairman of the
Western Regional Council, and currently is also a Member of CII's National
Council.

Banmali is a Mechanical Engineering graduate from Mangalore University
and an alumnus of the Advanced Management Programme of Harvard
Business School.

Terms and Conditions of
Re-Appointment

To be re-appointed as Director, liable to retire by rotation

Remuneration

(Proposed) NIL
Remuneration (Drawn) NIL

Date of First

Appointment 24/03/2018
Shareholding in  the NIL
Company

Relationship with other
Directors

Not Applicable

Number of Meetings of
the Board Attended
during the year

8 out of 9

Other Directorships/
Chairman/Membership in
other committees* of the
Board

Directorship:

The Tata Power Company Limited

Tata Projects Limited

Tata Housing Development Company Limited
Tata Advanced Systems Limited

Air Asia (India) Limited

Tata Electronics Private Limited
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Tata Medical and Diagnostics Limited
Other Chairmanship of Committees of the Board:
E:)‘ Company Committee Designation
1) Stakeholders
The Tata Power Relationship 1-Member
1 Company Limited Committee
2) Risk Management | 2-Member
Committee
1) Project Review
. Committee .
5. T_ate_a Projects 2) Nomination & 1-Chairman
Limited . 2-Member
Remuneration
Committee
Tata Housing Corporate Social Chairman
3. | Development Responsibility Committee
Company Limited
1) Audit Committee
2) Nomination & 1-Chairman
Tata Advanced Remuneration .
4, - . 2-Chairman
Systems Limited Committee 3-Member
3) Share Allotment
Committee

By order of the Board
For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Sudhakar Shetty
Company Secretary
(ICSI Membership No.: A13200)
CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300
Place: Mumbai
Date: September 28, 2020
Registered Office: E Block, Voltas Premises,
T B Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033
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BOARD’S REPORT

n

or “"TRIL") along with the audited financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2020.
The consolidated performance of the Company and its subsidiaries has been referred to wherever

required.
1. Financial Results
(Rs. In lakhs)
Standalone Consolidated
FY—-19-20 | FY—18-19 | FY —-19-20 | FY —18-19
Revenue 17,584.54 14,493.29 1,57,879 1,67,816
Other income
14,966.08 12,753.95 5,998 6,616
Total income
32,550.62 27,247.24 1,63,876 1,74,432
Expenses
Operating expenditure
52,526.06 44,434.84 1,22,274 1,26,664
Depreciation and amortization
expenses 191.80 140.30 17,251 16,858
Total Expenses
52,717.86 44,575.14 1,39,525 1,43,522
Profit before finance cost and tax
8,328.93 5,661.01 24,351 30,910
Finance cost
28,496.17 22,988.91 60,185 52,055
Profit before tax (PBT)
(20,167.24) | (17,327.90) | (35,834) (21,145)
Tax expense
(2,417.51) (1,298.87) (653) (2,769)
Profit / (Loss) for the year
(22,584.75) | (18,626.77) | (36,487) (23,915)
Attributable to:
Shareholders of the company (36,254) (23,693)
Non-Controlling Interest (233) (222)
Opening Balance of retained
earning (37,659.45) | (17,728.54) | (99,543) | (74541)
Profit/(Loss) for the Year )
(1,304.14) (36,254) (23,693)

TATA REALTY AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED

CIN: U70102MH2007PLC168300

E Block, Voltas Premises, T. B. Kadam Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai — 400 033 India.
Tel. 91 22 6661 4444 Fax: 91 22 6661 4452 Website: www.tatarealty.in
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Other comprehensive income /
(losses) (22,584.75) (18,626.77) - -
Total comprehensive income ) - -
(13,307.84)

Dividend (including tax on
dividend)

Buy-back of equity shares - - - R

Expenses for buy-back of equity - - - -
shares

Issue of Bonus shares - - - R

Realized loss on equity shares - - - -
carried at fair value through OCI

Transfer to Special Economic Zone - - - -
re-investment reserve

Transfer from Special Economic - - - -
Zone re-investment reserve

Transition adjustment due to - - -
application of IND AS 115 (1,309.41)

Transfer to reserve - - -

Closing balance of retained
earnings (73,552.04) [ (37,659.45) | (1,35,797) | (99,543)

2. Dividend

In view of the loss incurred during the year under review and with a view to conserve available
resources for the growth of the Company’s operations in the future, the Directors do not recommend
any dividend for the year 2019-20.

3. Transfer to Reserves

Your Directors do not recommend transferring any funds to reserves of the Company.

4., Company’s Performance

On a standalone basis, the revenue for FY 2019-20 was Rs.17,584.54 lakhs, higher by 21% percent
over the previous year’s revenue of Rs.14,493.29 lakhs in FY 2018-19. The loss after tax (PAT)
attributable to shareholders for FY 2019-20 was Rs. (22,584.75) Lakhs registering a growth of (21%)
percent over the PAT of Rs. (18,626.77) lakhs for FY 2018-19.

On a consolidated basis, the revenue for FY 2019-20 was Rs.157,879 lakhs, lower by 6% percent
over the previous year’s revenue of Rs.167,816 lakhs. The Loss attributable to shareholders and
non-controlling interests for FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 was Rs.(23,915) lakhs and Rs. (36,487)
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lakhs respectively. The Loss attributable to shareholders for FY 2019-20 was Rs. (36,254) Lakhs
registering a growth of (53)% percent over the Loss of Rs. (23,693) lakhs for FY 2018-19.

State of the Company’s Affairs:

Tata Realty & Infrastructure Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of Tata Sons, is in the business of
design, development and management of commercial assets and few residential projects. Since its
inception the company has developed 15.6 mn. sq. ft. area and has ~12.4 mn. sq. ft. under
development and planning stage across 10 project in 7 cities. The company has leveraged its
expertise in project management to develop over 6.7 mn. sq. ft. of office campuses for Tata
Consultancy Services (TCS).

Your company also had three 1.3 mn. sq. ft. leasable area malls at the start of FY 20, out of which
2 malls in Amritsar and Nagpur were divested to Virtuous Retail South Asia Pte. Ltd. for a combined
enterprise value of ~Rs. 712 Cr. in Q3 FY 20.

5. Subsidiary Companies

The Company has 24 subsidiaries and 2 joint venture companies. There has been no material change
in the nature of the business of the subsidiaries.

During the year under review, the Company has divested two of its retail malls i.e. Tillium Mall,
Amritsar and Trillium Mall, Nagpur. They were operating under the SPV’s namely TRIL Amritsar
Projects Limited and TRIF Real Estate and Development Limited, respectively, which were wholly
owned subsidiaries of the Company. The Company has sold its entire stake and hence they cease
to be the subsidiaries of the Company.

Except as stated above, there were no other Companies which have become or ceased to be the
Subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies of the Company, during the year under review.
However, the Company has incorporated four wholly owned subsidiaries namely TRIL Bengaluru
Real Estate One Private Limited, TRIL Bengaluru Real Estate Two Private Limited, TRIL Bengaluru
Real Estate Three Private Limited and TRIL Bengaluru Real Estate Four Private Limited as on
April 11, 2020.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies Act 2013 (“Act”), a statement
containing the salient features of financial statements of the Company’s subsidiaries in Form AOC-1
is attached to the financial statements of the Company.

Further, pursuant to the provisions of Section 136 of the Act, the financial statements of the
Company along with relevant documents and separate audited financial statements in respect of
subsidiaries are also available on the website of the Company i.e. www.tatarealty.in.
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Covid-19 Pandemic Situation — Update on Operations

Impact of the CoVID-19 pandemic on business:

The lockdowns and restrictions imposed on various activities due to Covid-19 pandemic have
posed various challenges to different aspects of the business. During the initial phases of
lockdown, from March end to early May, activities at construction sites were fully suspended.
Almost 1,000 workers continued to remain at on-site camps on commercial construction sites.
On commercial properties, the complexes were closed with tenants working from home.
However, they continued to use resources on site like servers etc.

As the lockdown has been gradually eased, all properties have reopened across states and
most tenants have restarted partial operations. A majority of tenants have already paid rentals
for April & May, a testament to and acknowledgement of all the efforts to provide services in
these uncertain times. Construction activities have also gradually resumed at all sites except
one, but at limited capacity.

Finally, a thorough exercise has been undertaken to go through all relevant contracts,
especially with tenants, service providers and investors as applicable. Legal opinion has been
taken on force majeure clauses and exposure/impact of the same assessed to be minimal.

Ability to maintain operations including the factories/units/office spaces
functioning and closed down:

During the pandemic, construction activities were gradually started with on-site labour.
However, challenges were faced in movement of managerial staff, especially across state
borders, as well as in sporadic disruptions to supply chain. Also, since May 2" half, a significant
portion of migrant labour has moved back to their native locations — the availability of labour
is down ~50% from peak levels, and remains a challenge.

On commercial office complexes, the services were kept functioning even during peak
lockdown by obtaining necessary approvals. This ensured that all office spaces could be
reopened at the first available opportunity.

Corporate offices remain shut with the company adopting work from home.
Schedule, if any, for restarting the operations:

As described above, construction and commercial operations have been restarted from May
as per guidelines issues by central & local authorities.
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Steps taken to ensure smooth functioning of operations:

Clear SOPs have been prepared for construction activities and office complexes, covering
transport, social distancing, hygiene and basic do’s & don'ts. Necessary arrangements have
been made to provide sanitizers, spare face masks, PPE kits etc. for all personnel. Checklists
are being adhered to and regular reports circulated to leadership teams. Contingency
measures are in place for any detected cases, in collaboration with healthcare facility
providers. Finally, daily planning meetings help in reacting to changing situation and taking
rapid decisions as required.

Before reopening sites, thorough sanitization and fumigation was carried out. For tenants, in
close coordination with 3 party estate management firms, innovative new technologies were
installed like touch-less sanitizers and access gates. To facilitate work from home for corporate
staff, various steps were taken like enabling remote IT access, and streamlining controls &
approvals.

Estimation of the future impact of CoVID-19 on operations:

The leasing business from existing tenants has rebounded well already and the outlook
remains strong in its ability to generate cash flows. Some ongoing discussions regarding new
leases have got deferred because of the shutdown. However, the underlying-term demand
drivers & thus long-term outlook for commercial space uptake remains positive in India overall,
and our micro-markets specifically. We have also signed select major new leases & contracts
during this phase, giving confidence in the ability to mitigate any medium-term impact and
embark on a sharp V-shaped recovery.

Some of the steps taken to make workplaces and properties suitable, related to hygiene,
automation, configuration etc., will gradually become permanent fixtures of the planning for
any new project. Finally, many companies have already confirmed moving back to offices
when possible, mitigating the impact of the current trend of work-from-home.

Impact of CoVID-19 on capital and financial resources, profitability, liquidity
position, ability to service debt, assets and internal financial reporting and control:
The Company received Rs.1200 crore towards subscription of its Rights Issue from the parent,
Tata Sons Private Limited in February 2020. The Company used these funds for various
purposes including meeting its debt servicing requirements. The Company has adequate
liquidity in the form of cash and cash equivalents and undrawn facilities. Given its well
capitalised balance sheet and strong business profile, the Company does not envisage any
issues in raising additional funds during the year as and when required.
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The Company has sound internal control measures for all its processes and there has been no
impact on the internal financial reporting and controls of the Company.

g) Impact of CoVID-19 on supply chain:
In the initial stages, restrictions on movement of materials across states hampered operations,
even resulting in sporadic price surges in certain materials like cement. However, over time,
these issues have subsided, and the overall supply chain has improved with vendors able to
manufacture and transport material to sites. Other equipment like face-masks also have been
secured in sufficient volumes.

h) Existing contracts/agreements where non-fulfiiment of the obligations by any
party will have significant impact on the listed entity’s business:
The Company is well positioned to fulfil its obligations and also does not foresee any significant
impact on the business due to non-fulfilment of the obligations by any party.

i)  Other relevant material updates about the business:
Generally, the Company publishes its annual audited accounts by second week of May of each
year. However, due to the current situation, it is expected that the Board meeting to adopt
the accounts is planned to be held in end-June.

7. Industry Outlook and Future Prospects:

Overview of Real Estate Sector in India:

The Indian economy with its sound fundaments is set to dominate on the global map in the 21st
century — this is evident from its GDP growth rate between 2013 and 2018 of 56% - the highest in
comparison to other major economies like China, US and UK, which registered a growth of 51%,
22% and 19% respectively. With more than 1.3 billion people, India represents 24.3% of global
population providing for a very attractive demography — both from a supply & demand perspective.

Younger population (Median age in 2030 will be 31.4 years vs. 40 years in US and 42 years in China)
acts as a great talent pool and will be the biggest consumer segment. With ~10 million people
migrating to cities every year — the urban population will contribute 75% to the GDP by 2030.

All these factors will boost the demand for real estate in India. By 2030, India is likely to need 25
million affordable housing units to meet the urban population’s demand. The growing economy to
drive the demand for commercial and retail space.

As per IBEF, the contribution of real estate sector was expected to increase from current 6% to
13% of GDP by 2025 and the sector was expected reach US$ 1 Trillion by 2030 from US$ 120 Billion.
in 2017 at an expected CAGR of 19.5% — however the current economic downturn due to COVID
19 may will push growth by 1-2 yrs.
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Though 2019 has been a mixed year for residential real estate — with developers battling liquidity
crisis and a sluggish demand - various Government policies and reforms helped boost the demand
in the sector, esp. in the affordable housing segment. The real estate sector showed resilience with
~2.96 lakhs units sold (a growth of 6% y-0-y) in 2019 in top seven cities and office absorption
touching historical highs. In 2019, private equity investments worth US$ 5,336 million were
recorded, a 29% increase from 2018. Provision for reduction in minimum capitalisation for FDI
investment from US $10 million to US $5 million — will further help boast urbanization.

Residential real estate

The Indian Real Estate sector gradually came to terms with the multiple reforms and changes
brought to the industry in the past couple of years with demonetization, GST, RERA, Indian
Bankruptcy Code, etc. and started moving towards a more transparent and accountable way of
working. These reforms also led to the downfall of small and financial weak real estate developers,
leading to consolidation in the market and stronger emergence of branded players who have a better
hold on their processes and fiscal situation. Governments policy push to affordable housing with its
efforts under Housing for All — saw increased traction in the segment accounting for 40% of total
new supply in 2019.

Commercial real estate

Current scenario:

e Despite the economic downturn and the GDP hitting lowest number in last year in Q3 2019
— offices leasing touched new benchmarks.

e For commercial real estate, 2019 was a remarkable year as with gross leasing touched a
historic high of 61.6 mn. sq. ft. — recorded more than 25% growth Y-o0-Y; together Bangalore,
Hyderabad, Delhi NCR and Mumbai accounted for 75% of overall leasing.

e India office stock crossed 630 mn. sq. ft. with 52 mn. sqg. ft. Grade A office spaces being
completed in 2019, at a robust 50% Y-o-Y growth — with 80% of overall supply addition from
Hyderabad, Delhi NCR, Bangalore and Pune. This growth is majorly driven by IT/ITeS and
co-working players.

e The vacancy levels at 13% were at record 4-year low in 2019, with even lower vacancy in
some attractive markets. Strong demand with low vacancy in IT/ITeS dominated markets
also led to rental growth. Leasing activity was driven by IT/ ITeS (42%) & co-working spaces
(14%).

e High growth and stable returns in office assets garner interest from global institutional
investors, sovereign wealth funds, as evident from the rising share of Sovereign Wealth Fund
investments over the decade. 66% of the overall investments in 2019 have been in the
Commercial segment.

Future scenario:
e The growth momentum for commercial leasing of the past 3 years expected to continue for
FY21, with expected leasing of 45-50 mn sq. ft. The demand in 2020 is expected to be in
line with the supply; majorly driven by Bangalore and Hyderabad.
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e Office market is expected to be driven mostly by growth in ITeS/IT, BFSI, co-working,
consulting and manufacturing. Moreover, many new companies are planning a foray into
Indian markets due to huge potential and recently relaxed FDI norms.

¢ India’s office market is one of the well-organized office marketing the Asia Pacific region and

after the success of India’s first REIT, more developers will become more efficient and
transparent in the management and operations of these assets.

e As in the last few years, office markets have witness increased absorption in the suburban
sub-markets key cities in comparison to their CBDs, & SBDs, this trend is expected to
continue and will be a major contributor to their future growth.

e With environment concerns gaining importance, developers are gradually moving towards
more green, sustainable developments. Places with LEED ratings, high standard of safety
and wellness are likely to attract more tenants.

Impact of COVID 19 on the sector remains to be fully assessed.

Regulation in the Sector:
The following regulatory reforms provided the much need stimulus to the real estate sector, with
some showing upfront benefits and others to have an impact in the near future —

e Corporate tax reduced from 30% to 22% excluding all cess and surcharges, for domestic
companies — will help boost companies’ investment abilities.

e External commercial borrowing relaxed for developers to obtain overseas funds

e Section 10AA of the Income Tax Act, units in SEZs get a phased tax-holiday for a period of
15 years; However, under the SEZ Sunset clause this benefit was available to only those
units that start operations before 31 March 2020

e To bring down cost, GST on under-construction properties outside the affordable segment
were revised to 5% with no Input Tax Credit (ITC) and 1% without ITC for affordable
housing properties

e Government Smart Cities mission to promote sustainable and inclusive cities that provide
core infrastructure and give good quality of life to its citizens, a clean and sustainable
environment, and the application of ‘Smart’ solutions. 100% FDI for township and settlement
development projects — will act as an added advantage

*Source: RBI Annual report, IBEF, Anarock, JLL, PropEquity, Media reports, Press articles

INFRASTRUCTURE:

The year 2019-20 was the year in which the Company made significant progress in its Infrastructure
Business. All the Road Projects became operational and the Company also signed the Concession
Agreement for Pune Metro Project.

However, towards the end of the financial Year the outbreak of novel Coronavirus impacted the
Infrastructure Sector disrupting the functioning of the entire industry and its adverse economic
impact is likely to stay longer than the actual time period of the crisis itself. The Covid-19 is likely to
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impact the movement of freight and passenger vehicles in the short - term future which would have
an impact on our business. Your Company believe that the ramp up of economic activity to current
levels would take at least 9-12 months. Further, there would be increased impetus to develop
infrastructure and large investment requirements in the ensuing years and the Company is well
poised to participate in these opportunities. In the coming year Company would also be focusing on
completing /developing its existing Projects and monetize operational projects.

8. Share Capital And other Securities:

A. Share Capital:

During the year under review, the Company has raised capital of Rs.1200,00,00,000/- (Rupees Twelve
Hundred Crore only) by offering 60,00,00,000 (Sixty Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at a premium
of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) per share, by way of rights issue, to its existing equity shareholders on
February 24, 2020 and accordingly allotted 60,00,00,000 (Sixty Crore) Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each at
a premium of Rs. 10/- (Rupees Ten only) to Tata Sons Private Limited, Holding Company on April 09,
2020.

As at March 31, 2020, the issued, subscribed and paid-up equity shares capital of the Company stands
at Rs.10,17,30,76,920 divided into 101,73,07,692 Equity Shares of Rs.10 each.

B. Debt Management:

As on March 31, 2020, the Company has outstanding debt of Rs. 2,775 Crore, a marginal decrease
of Rs.6.15 Crore over March 31, 2019. About 35% of the overall debt is short term, largely
Commercial Papers and Short Term Loan from Deutsche Bank and 65% is through Non-Convertible
Debentures.

During the year the Company has issued and allotted both listed and unlisted Non-Convertible
Debentures (NCDs). As on date March 31, 2020, the outstanding Listed NCDs stands at Rs. 670
Crore (Rupees Six Hundred and Seventy Crore Only) and Unlisted NCDs stands at Rs.1125 Crore
(Rupees One Thousand One Hundred Twenty Five Crore Only).

Due to regulatory changes during the year, the Company was required to list all its outstanding CP’s
by December 31, 2019 and any further issuance of CP’s was on listed basis from thereon.

Debt raised during the year has been utilized towards refinancing, investment requirements for the
Company’s Greenfield and Brownfield projects in Real Estate, Roads and Urban Transport verticals
and general corporate purposes.

The weighted average interest rate for the outstanding debt as at March 31, 2020 was 8.71% p.a.
marginally higher than 8.64% p.a. as at the end of previous year.
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Credit Ratings:

Your Company has been offering itself to be rated by rating agencies as per following:

Instrument :atmg Rating Amount Remarks
gency

Commercial Paper | ICRA ICRA A1+ X 2200 Crore Reaffirmed

(Short term) CRISIL CRISIL A1+ % 1800 Crore Reaffirmed
CARE CARE A1+ X 2200 Crore Reaffirmed
Ratings

Non-Convertible | ICRA ICRA AA  (Stable) | X 3000 Crore Re-affirmed

Debenture CRISIL CRISIL AA (stable) % 1900 Crore

Short term Bank CARE

Facilities — Fund ) CARE A 1+ X 100 Crore Re-affirmed
Ratings

Based

Short term Bank CARE

Facilities — Non- ) CARE A 1+ X 185 Crore Re-affirmed
Ratings

Fund Based

Short term Bank

Facilities — Non- | CARE i

Fund and Fund | Ratings CARE A 1+ X 115 Crore Re-affirmed

Based

9. Depository System

Your Company’s Equity Shares are in dematerialization (Demat) form done through National
Securities Depository Limited (NSDL). The ISIN as allotted by NSDL is INE371K01016. In case of
any query, you may please get in touch with the Company or the Registrar & Transfer Agent i.e.
KFintech Private Limited (Formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private Limited), Address:
Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-32, Gachibowli, Financial District, Nanakramguda, Hyderabad —
500 032, Phone: +91 040 6716 2222 and +91 40 6716 1602. As on March 31, 2020, 101,73,07,692
(100%) of Equity Shares of your Company were held in dematerialized form.

10. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and
maintained by the Company, the work performed by the internal, statutory, cost and secretarial
auditors and external consultants, including the audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting by the statutory auditors and the reviews performed by management and the relevant
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board committees, including the audit committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s
internal financial controls were adequate and effective during FY 2019-20.

Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Act, the Board of Directors, to the best of its knowledge and
ability, confirm that:

Vi.

11.

In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been
followed and there are no material departures;

They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the financial year and of the loss of the
Company for that period;

they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis;

they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such
internal financial controls are adequate and operating effectively;

they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

The Company’s composition of Board is an adequate blend of Executive, Non-executive and
Independent Directors including a Woman Director. In addition to provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, the Board governance guidelines adopted by the Board, set out the role and responsibility of
the Board, composition of the Board and code of conduct.

Presently, Board of your Company consists of following Members:

ounhkwwne=

Mr. Banmali Agrawala - Chairman and Non- Executive Director;
Mr. Sanjay Dutt - Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer;
Mr. Farokh Subedar - Non- Executive Director;

Mr. S. Santhanakrishnan - Independent Director;

Mrs. Neera Saggi - Independent Director; and

Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal - Non- Executive Director.

During the year under review, there were no change in the Directors of the Company.
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Mr. Banmali Agarwala, Director of the Company retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself
for re-appointment. A resolution seeking shareholders’ approval for his re-appointment forms part
of the Notice.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Act, the independent directors have submitted
declarations that each of them meet the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of
the Act along with Rules framed thereunder. There has been no change in the circumstances
affecting their status as independent directors of the Company.

During the year under review, the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary
relationship or transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees, commission and
reimbursement of expenses incurred by them for the purpose of attending meetings of the
Board/Committee of the Company.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
as on March 31, 2020 are Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer of the
Company (appointed with effect from April 01, 2018 for a period of 5 years), Mr. Sanjay Sharma,
Chief Financial Officer of the Company (appointed with effect from September 10, 2018) and Mr.
Sudhakar Shetty, Company Secretary of the Company (appointed with effect from December 01,
2019). Mr. Vinay Gaokar, ceased to be the Company Secretary with effect from December 01, 2019,
of the Company consequent to his superannuation. Apart from this change, there was no other
change in Directors and KMPs.

12. Number of Meetings of the Board

There were nine meetings of the Board, held during the year under review. The said meetings were
held on April 01, 2019, April 17, 2019, August 7, 2019, October 09, 2019, November 13, 2019,
November 26, 2019, December 03, 2019, January 13, 2020 and March 02, 2020. Details of the
Directors’ presence were given herein below:

Name of the Board Member Board Meeting Attendance
Mr. Banmali Agrawala (BA) 8 out of 9
Mr. Sanjay Dutt (SD) 8 out of 9
Mr. Farokh Subedar (FNS) 7 out of 9
Mr. S. Santhanakrishnan (SK) 9 out of 9
Mrs. Neera Saggi (NS) 9 out of 9
Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal (RS) 6 out of 9

13. Board Evaluation

The Board of Directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, board
committees, and individual directors pursuant to the provisions of the Act.



i

TATA

The performance of the board was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from all the directors
on the basis of criteria such as the board composition and structure, effectiveness of board
processes, information and functioning, etc.

The performance of the committees was evaluated by the board after seeking inputs from the
committee members on the basis of criteria such as the composition of committees, effectiveness
of committee meetings, etc.

The above criteria are broadly based on the Guidance Note on Board Evaluation issued by the
Securities and Exchange Board of India on January 5, 2017

As per MCA general circular no.11/2020 dated March 24, 2020, the Independent Directors have not
been able to hold a separate meeting of independent directors for FY 19-20. However, they have
shared their views for evaluation amongst themselves through telephone over the performance of
non-independent directors, the board as a whole and the Chairman of the Company, taking into
account the views of executive directors and nonexecutive directors.

The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee reviewed the performance of individual
directors on the basis of criteria such as the contribution of the individual director to the board and
committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and constructive
contribution and inputs in meetings, etc. The Chairman of the Board also had one on one meeting
with Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee discussing the performance of the
Board.

In the board meeting and meeting of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the performance
of the board, its committees, and individual directors was also discussed. Performance evaluation of
independent directors was done by the entire board, excluding the independent director being
evaluated.

14. Nomination and Remuneration Committee:

Presently, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. S. Santhanakrishnan,
Chairman of the Committee, Mr. Banmali Agrawala and Mrs. Neera Saggi, as its Members. The
Committee met two times during the year under review. The said meetings were held on May 08,
2019 and November 26, 2019. The details the presence of Members are given herein below:

Name of the Member NRC Meeting Attendance
Mr. S. Santhanakrishnan (SK) 2 out of 2
Mr. Banmali Agrawala (BA) 2 out of 2
Mrs. Neera Saggi (NS) 2 out of 2




1L

TATA

The Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration and other matters provided in
Section 178(3) of the Act has been annexed to this report at "Annexure B- (a) and (b)” and is also
available on www.tatarealty.in.

15. Internal Financial Control Systems and their Adequacy

Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and
maintained by the Company, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors and
external consultants and the reviews performed by management and the relevant Board
Committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board is of the opinion that the Company’s internal
financial controls were adequate and effective.

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or
operation was observed. In the opinion of the Auditors of the Company, there exist an adequate
internal control procedure commensurate with the size of the Company.

16. Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three members, consisting of two Independent Directors namely,
Mr. S. Santhanakrishnan and Mrs. Neera Saggi and non-independent director Mr. Farokh N. Subedar,
Chairman of the Committee. The Committee met 5 (Five) times during the year under review. The
said meetings were held on April 17, 2019, August 07, 2019, October 23, 2019, December 17, 2019
and March 27, 2020. The details the presence of Members are given herein below:

Name of the Member Audit Meeting Attendance
Mr. Farokh Subedar (FNS) 5out of 5
Mr. S. Santhanakrishnan (SK) 4 out of 5
Mrs. Neera Saggi (NS) 5outof 5

17. Auditors

The Shareholders of the Company at their Tenth Annual General Meeting held on
August 24, 2017, had appointed M/s. Deloitte Huskins and Sells LLP, Chartered Accountants as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company for a term of 5 years commencing till the conclusion of fifteenth
AGM of the Company to be held in the year 2022, subject to ratification of their appointment by
Members at every AGM, if so required under the Act. The requirement to place the matter relating
to appointment of auditors for ratification by Members at every AGM has been done away by the
Companies (Amendment) Act, 2017 with effect from May 7, 2018. Accordingly, no resolution is being
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proposed for ratification of appointment of statutory auditors at the ensuing AGM and a note in
respect of same has been included in the Notice for this AGM.

18. Auditor’s Report and Secretarial Audit Report

The statutory auditor’s report and the secretarial audit report do not contain any qualifications,
reservations, or adverse remarks or disclaimer. Secretarial audit report is attached to this report as
Annexure C.

19. Risk Management

The Company is governed by the Risk Management Charter and Policy Documents. An integrated
Enterprise Risk Management Charter & Policy has been developed with the objective of establishing
a common understanding & methodology for identifying, assessing, responding, monitoring &
reporting to provide management, the board of directors with the assurance that key risks are being
effectively managed. As per the said Policy, a Risk Management Steering Committee ('RMSC')
comprising of MD & CEO and Functional Heads has been formed. The charter and policies provide
the overall framework for Risk Management process which includes risk identification, assessment,
evolution, treatment and other related process. The RMSC is the Apex Committee in the RM
Organization structure comprising of key decision makers within the Organization. It is responsible
for adopting and implementing the RM Framework across the Organization. They are charged with
the responsibility of taking decisions to manage the risks and also report about various initiatives to
the Board / Audit Committee and other stakeholders on a regular basis. The Risk Management is
also certified under ISO 31000:2009.

Based on said ERM framework, the risks identified by the Company are reviewed by the executive
team comprising of employees of the Company including the top management. Risk identification is
a continual process and appropriate mitigation plans are deployed as required. All the risks are
evaluated on the count of occurrence and impact. Based on the risk ranking, high risk areas are
identified and presented to the Audit Committee. There are no elements of risk exist, which in the
opinion of the Board may threaten the existence of the Company.

20. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

Your Company falls within the scope of the definition “infrastructure company” as provided by the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’). Accordingly, the Company is exempt from the provisions of Section 186
of the Act (except Section 186(1) of the Act) with regards to Loans, Guarantees and Investments.

21. Related Party Transactions
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In line with the requirements of the Act, the Company has formulated a Policy on Related Party
Transactions (Policy) at its Board Meeting held on March 26, 2015, to ensure due and proper
compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act. The said policy also provides guidance for
entering into transactions with related parties to ensure that a proper procedure is defined and
followed for approval / ratification and reporting of transactions as applicable, between the Company
and its Related Parties.

During the year under review, all transactions entered into with related parties were approved by
the Audit Committee. In view of the same, the requirement of giving particulars of contracts /
arrangements made with related parties, in Form AOC-2 are not applicable for the year under review.
Nevertheless, the Company has made disclosures of all related party transactions in notes of the
Standalone audited financial statements for the FY 2019 - 20.

22. Corporate Social Responsibility

The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) policy of the Company are set out in
Annexure D and no initiatives was undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during the year
under review in view of the losses (as per the calculation of net profit under Section 198 of the
Companies Act, 2013) incurred which are set out in Annexure E of this report in the format prescribed
in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014. Accordingly, the Committee
has not met during the year under review.

Presently, the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee consists of Mr. Banmali Agrawala,
Chairman of the Committee, Mr. S. Santhanakrishnan and Mr. Sanjay Dutt, as its Members.

The CSR policy is available on website of the Company i.e. www.tatarealty.in.

23. Extract of Annual Return

As per the requirements of Section 92(3) of the Act and Rules framed thereunder, the extract of the
annual return for FY 2019-20 is given in Annexure A in the prescribed Form No. MGT-9, which is a
part of this report. The Annual Return shall also be placed on the website of the Company at
www.tatarealty.in.

24. Particulars of Employees

Disclosure pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the
Act read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014 is annexed to the Report as Part A of Annexure G.

The statement containing names of top ten employees in terms of remuneration drawn and the
particulars of employees as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3)



i

TATA

of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, is
provided in Part B of Annexure G. In terms of proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act, the Report and
Accounts are being sent to the shareholders excluding Part B of Annexure G. The said Statement is
also open for inspection at the Registered Office of the Company. Any member interested in
obtaining a copy of the same may write to the Company Secretary. None of the employees listed in
the said Annexure are related to any Director of the Company.

25. Disclosure Requirements

The Company has devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and that such systems
are adequate and operating effectively.

26. Deposits from Public

During the year under the review, the Company has not accepted any deposits from public and as
such, no amount on account of principal or interest on deposits from public was outstanding as on
the date of the balance sheet.

27. Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo

The particulars relating to the Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 8(3)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are given in the “"Annexure F” to this report.

28. Cost Auditors
Your Board has appointed M/s. Kishore Bhatia & Associates, (Firm Registration No 00294), Practicing

Cost Accountant having their address at 701/702, D-Wing, 7th Floor, Neelkanth Business Park,
Nathani Road, Vidyavihar, Mumbai - 400086 as Cost Auditors of the Company for conducting cost
audit for the FY 2019-20. A resolution seeking approval of the members for ratifying the
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for FY 2020-21 is provided in the Notice to the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.

As required under Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Company confirms that it
has prepared and maintained cost records as specified by the Central Government under sub-section
(1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the financial year ended March 31, 2020.

29. Details of significant and material orders passed by the Regulator or Courts or
Tribunals impacting the Going Concern Status and Company’s Operations in Future
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During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by any regulators
or courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and company’s operation in future.

30. Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial position of the
Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the
Company and to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report

Except as stated above, there are no material changes and commitments affecting the financial
position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the Company
to which the financial statements relates and the date of this report.

31. Disclosure under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 (the Act)

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a policy on
Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at workplace in line with the provisions
of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
and the rules framed there under for Prevention and Redressal of complaints of Sexual Harassment
at workplace.

Prevention of Sexual Harassment Committee (POSH) (“Internal Complaints Committee”) is in place
as per the policy and provisions of Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. The Committee has not received any complaints on alleged
harassment, during the year under review.

32. Vigil Mechanism

The Company has formulated a Vigil Mechanism Policy (“the Policy”), under Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013, with a view to provide a mechanism for employees and Directors of the
Company to approach the Ethics Counsellor to ensure adequate safeguards against victimisation.
This policy is also placed on the website of the Company at www.tatarealty.in and would help to
create an environment where individuals feel free and secure to raise an alarm where they see a
problem. It will also ensure that complainant(s) are protected from retribution, whether within or
outside the organization and makes provision for direct access to the chairperson of the Audit
Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. We confirm that during the financial year 2019-
2020, no employee of the Company was denied access to the Audit Committee. Further, Whistle-
blower complaints are dealt with by a due process of fully investigating the issues and appropriate
action being taken based on the enquiry. The Board believes that there is ho material impact of any
such open matter on March 31, 2020, in the financial statements of the company.”
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By order of the Board of Directors
For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
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Banmali Agrawala
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DIN: 00120029
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Annexure D — CSR Policy
Annexure E - Annual Report on CSR
Annexure F — Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption, Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo
Annexure G - Details of Remuneration of Directors, Employees and comparatives
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ANNEXURE - “A"

Form No. MGT -9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2020
[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

1 CIN : | U70102MH2007PLC168300
2 Registration Date : | 29 March, 2007
3 Name of the Company : | Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

4 Category / Sub —Category of the Company | : | Public Limited Company

5 Address of the Registered office and : | E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg,
contact details Chinchpokli, Mumbai 400033

Tel: 022 — +91 022 6661 4444

Website: www.tatarealty.in

6 Whether listed company (Yes/ No) : | Yes (Debt Listed Entity)
7 Name, Address and contract details of : | KFin Technologies Private Limited
Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any (formerly known as Karvy Fintech Private
Limited),

Address: Karvy Selenium Tower B, Plot 31-
32, Gachibowli, Financial District,
Nanakramguda, Hyderabad — 500 032,
Phone: +91 040 6716 2222 and +91 40
6716 1602

Website: www.kfintech.com

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY:

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

Sr. No Name and Description of main NIC Code of the % to total turnover
product/services Product/service of the company

1. Construction Development 41001 24.21%

2. Project Management Consultancy fees 20200 25.79%
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II1. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:-

Sr.
No

Name and Address of the Company

CIN/GLN

Holding/
Subsidiary
/

Associate

% of
shares
held

Applicabl
e section

Tata Sons Private Limited
Bombay House 24 Homi Mody Street,
Mumbai — 400 001

U99999MH1917PLC000478

Holding

100

2(46)

Acme Living Solutions Private Limited*
C/o. Tata Services Limited, Jeevan Bharti,
Tower-I, 10th Floor, 124, Connaught
Circus, New Delhi 110 001

U45209DL2008PTC178023

Subsidiary

100

2(87)(ii)

Arrow Infraestate Private Limited*

C/o. Tata Services Limited, Jeevan Bharti,
Tower-I, 10th Floor, 124, Connaught
Circus, New Delhi 110 001

U70109DL2007PTC159197

Subsidiary

100

2(87)(ii)

Gurgaon Construct Well Private Limited*
C/o. Tata Services Limited, Jeevan Bharti,
Tower-I, 10th Floor, 124, Connaught
Circus, New Delhi 110 001

U45200DL2007PTC157581

Subsidiary

100

2(87)(ii)

Gurgaon Realtech Limited*
C/o. Tata Services Limited, Jeevan Bharti,
Tower-I, 10th Floor, 124, Connaught
Circus, New Delhi 110 001

U70109DL2006PLC149529

Subsidiary

100

2(87)(ii)

TRIL Urban Transport Private Limited*
Elphinstone Building, 2nd Floor, 10 Veer
Nariman Road, Mumbai 400 001

U45400MH2007PTC285814

Subsidiary

100

2(87)(ii)

TRIF Gurgaon Housing Projects Private
Limited*

C/o. Tata Services Limited, Jeevan Bharti,
Tower-I, 10th Floor, 124, Connaught
Circus, New Delhi 110 001

U74900DL2009PTC188404

Subsidiary

100

2(87)(ii)

Wellkept Facility Management Services
Private Limited (Formerly known as TRIL
Hospitality Private Limited) *

E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam
Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033

U93000MH2008PTC177346

Subsidiary

100

2(87)(ii)

TRIL Roads Private Limited*
Elphinstone Building, 2nd Floor, 10 Veer
Nariman Road, Mumbai 400 001

U45400MH2007PTC174567

Subsidiary

100

2(87)(ii)

10.

HV Farms Private Limited*
C/o. Tata Services Limited, Jeevan Bharti,
Tower-I, 10th Floor, 124, Connaught
Circus, New Delhi 110 001

U70100DL2011PTC219062

Subsidiary

100

2(87)(ii)

11.

TRPL Roadways Private Limited (wholly-
owned subsidiary of TRIL Roads Private
Limited) *

Elphinstone Building, 2nd Floor, 10 Veer
Nariman Road, Mumbai 400 001

U45309MH2016PTC287380

Subsidiary

100

2(87)(ii)

12.

TRIL IT4 Private Limited (Formerly known
as Albrecht Builder Private Limited) *
E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam
Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai — 400033

U74120MH2014PTC251684

Joint
Venture

74

2(6)
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13.

Hampi Expressways Private Limited
(wholly-owned subsidiary of TRIL Roads
Private Limited)*
Elphinstone Building, 2nd Floor, 10 Veer
Nariman Road, Horniman Circle, Fort,
Mumbai 400 001

U74999MH2015PTC263720

Subsidiary

100

2(87)(ii)

14.

TRIL Infopark Limited*
Ramanujan IT City, Rajiv Gandhi Salai
(OMR), Taramani, Chennai 600 113

U45200TN2008PLC066931

Subsidiary

84.47

2(87)(ii)

15.

Dharamshala Ropeway Limited
(subsidiary of TRIL Urban Transport
Private Limited)*

Elphinstone Building, 2nd Floor, 10 Veer
Nariman Road, Mumbai 400 001

U74900MH2015PLC264224

Subsidiary

74

2(87)(ii)

16.

Manali Ropeways Private Limited
(subsidiary of TRIL Urban Transport
Private Limited)*

Elphinstone Building, 2nd Floor, 10 Veer
Nariman Road, Mumbai 400 001

U74999MH2015PTC285585

Subsidiary

72

2(87)(ii)

17.

Mikado Realtors Private Limited*
E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam
Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033

U74899MH2006PTC291666

Joint
Venture

74

2(6)

18.

Uchit Expressways Private Limited
(wholly-owned subsidiary of TRIL Roads
Private Limited) *

Elphinstone Building, 2nd Floor, 10 Veer
Nariman Road, Mumbai 400 001

U45203MH2016PTC286692

Subsidiary

100

2(87)(ii)

19.

MIA Infrastructure Private Limited*
E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam
Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033

U74900MH2014PTC252385

Subsidiary

100

2(87)(ii)

20.

Industrial  Minerals and  Chemical
Company Private Limited*

E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam
Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033

U24100MH1968PTC014142

Joint
Venture

74

2(6)

21,

TRIL Constructions Limited*
E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam
Marg, Chinchpokli, Mumbai - 400033

U45201MH2007PLC171985

Subsidiary

51.60

2(87)(ii)

22,

Durg Shivnath Expressways Private
Limited (Formerly known as SMS Shivnath
Infrastructure Pvt Ltd) (wholly owned
subsidiary of TRPL Roadways Private
Limited) *

Toll Plaza, Durg Bypass,
Dhamdha Naka Durg 491001

NH-6 Near

U45203CT1997PTC012220

Subsidiary

100

2(87)(ii)

23.

Matheran Rope-Way Private Limited
(subsidiary of TRIL Urban Transport
Private Limited)*

Elphinstone Building, 2nd Floor, 10 Veer
Nariman Road, Mumbai 400 001

U60210MH2000PTC130072

Subsidiary

70

2(87)(ii)

24,

Pune Solapur Expressways Private
Limited*

Toll Plaza Patas, KM 65, NH-9, Village -
Patas, Taluka- Daund, Pune - 412219

U74120PN2009PTC164629

Joint
Venture

50

2(6)

25.

A & T Road Construction Management
and Operation Private Limited*

U45200PN2013PTC147214

Joint
Venture

50

2(6)
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Toll Plaza Patas, KM 65, NH-9, Village -
Patas, Taluka- Daund, Pune - 412219

Vikram Monarch, 9th floor CTS. 1115/A,
Ganeshkhind Road, Shivaji Nagar, Pune -

411016

26. | International Infrabuild Private Limited | U70102DL2015PTC287497 | Subsidiary | 26 2(87)(i)
Sector-10, Near Rithala Metro Station,
Rohini New Delhi North West DL 110085
IN

27. | Pune IT City Metro Rail Limited* U45100PN2019PLC182766 | Subsidiary | 74 2(87)(ii)

*The above details includes percentage (%) of voting power held directly and indirectly through it's subsidiary(s) by the
Company.

Note: Relationship of Subsidiary has been considered on basis of the voting power held in each of the above entities as
per provisions of Companies Act, 2013. However, as per Indian Accounting Standard, some of the entities may be

considered as the Joint Ventures.

IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding
Category of No. of Shares held at the beginning of the | No. of Shares held at the end of the year i.e. | %
Shareholders | yeari.e. 1%t April, 2019 315t March, 2020 Change
during
Demat Physi | Total % of | Demat Physi | Total % of | the year
cal total cal total
share shar
s es
A. Promoters
& Promoter
Group
(1) Indian
Individual/HUF - - - - - - - - -
Central Govt. - - - - - - - - -
State Govt.(s) - - - - - - - - -
Bodies Corp. 101,73,07,692 | - 101,73,07,692 | 100 101,73,07,692 | - 101,73,07,692 | 100 NIL
Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -
Any Other | - - - - - - - - -
Private Trusts
Sub-total (A)(1) | 101,73,07,692 | - 101,73,07,692 | 100 101,73,07,692 | - 101,73,07,692 | 100 NIL
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(2) Foreign

a) NRIs -
Individuals

b) Other -
Individuals

Bodies Corp.

Banks / FI

Any Other

Sub-total (A)(2)

Total
shareholding of
Promoter (A) =

(A(D)+(AX2)

101,73,07,692

101,73,07,692

100 101,73,07,692

101,73,07,692

100

NIL

B. Public
Shareholding

1. Institutions

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

c) Central Govt.

d) State Govt.(s)

e) Venture
Capital Funds

f) Insurance
Companies

g) FIIs/ FPIs

h) Foreign
Venture Capital
Funds

i) Others -
Foreign
Nationals

Sub-total (B)(1)
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2. Non-
Institutions

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian

ii) Overseas

b) Individuals

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital up
to * 1 lakh

i) Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital in
excess of ~ 1
lakh

c) Others
(specify)

Sub-total (B)(2)

Total Public
Shareholding (B)

= (B)(1)+(B)(2)

C. Shares held
by Custodian for
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total
(A+B+C)

101,73,07,692

101,73,07,692

100 101,73,07,692

101,73,07,692

100

NIL
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ii) Shareholding of Promoters
Sr. | Shareholder’ | Shareholding at the beginning of | Shareholding at the end of the yeari.e. | % change
No | s Name the year i.e. 15t April, 2019 31st March, 2020 in
No of shares | % of | % of | No of shares % of | % of | shareholdi
total shares total shares ng during
shares | pledged/ shares pledged/ | the year
of the | encumber of the | encumber
compa | ed to total compan | ed to total
ny shares Yy shares
1 Tata Sons | 101,73,07,686 NIL 101,73,07,686 NIL NIL
Limited (Equity
share) 100 100
2 Tata Sons | 6 NIL 6 NIL NIL
Limited j/w Six
Nominees
(Equity share)
Total 101,73,07,692 | 100 NIL 101,73,07,692 | 100 NIL NIL
iii) Change in Promoter’s Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)
Sr. Particulars Shareholding at the beginning of | Cumulative Shareholding
No the year i.e. 1%t April, 2019 during the year i.e. 315t March,
2020
No of shares % of the shares | No of shares % of the
of the company shares of the
company
At the beginning of the year - - - -
Date wise increase/decrease in
Promoters shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons No change No change

for increase/decrease (eg:
allotment/ transfer/ bonus/
sweat equity):

At the end of the year

iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters, and Holders of

GDRs and ADRs):

Sr. | For each of the Top 10 | Shareholding at the beginning of | Cumulative Shareholding during
No | Shareholders the year i.e. 15t April, 2019 the year i.e. 315t March, 2020
No of shares % of total | No of shares % of total
shares of the shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
Date wise increase/decrease in | NIL NIL NIL NIL

Promoters shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase/decrease (eg:
allotment/
transfer/bonus/sweat equity):
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At the end of the year (or on the | NIL NIL NIL NIL
date of separation, if separated
during the year)
v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:
Sr. | For each of the Directors and | Shareholding at the beginning | Cumulative Shareholding
No | KMP of the year i.e. 15t April, 2019 during the year i.e. 315t March,
2020
No. of | % of total | No.ofshares | % of total
shares shares of the shares of the
company company
At the beginning of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
Date wise increase/decrease in | NIL NIL NIL NIL
Promoters shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for  increase/decrease  (eg:
allotment/ transfer/bonus/sweat
equity):
At the end of the year NIL NIL NIL NIL
V. INDEBTEDNESS-

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Secured
Loans Unsecured Deposits Total
excluding Loans Indebtedness
deposits

Indebtedness at the
beginning of the year

i) Principal Amount

2,77,123.86

2,77,123.86

i) Interest due but not

paid

ii)Interest accrued but
not due *

19,157.32

19,157.32

Total (i+ii+iii)

2,96,281.18

2,96,281.18

Change in
indebtedness
the financial year

during

i) Addition

5,58,782.53

5,58,782.53

iiReduction

5,61,190.00

5,61,190.00
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iii)Interest accrued but

not due(addition) 3,782.88 3,782.88
Net Change 11,23,755.41 11,23,755.41
Indebtedness at the

end of the financial

year

1) Principal Amount 2.74.716.39 2.74,716.39
ii) Interest due but not )

paid -
ii)Interest accrued but

not due 22,940.20 22,940.20
Total (i-+ii-+ili) 2,97,656.59 2,97,656.59

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration of Managing Director, Whole-time Director and/or Manager -

Sr. Particular of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount
No. Mr. Sanjay Dutt (MD & CEO) (in Rs.)
Gross Salary
a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the 1,79,14,416 1,79,14,416
Income tax Act, 1961
b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) of NIL NIL
the Income tax Act, 1961
c) Profits in lieu of salary u/s 17(3)
of the Income tax Act, 1961 NIL NIL
Stock Option 0 0
Sweat Equity 0 0
Commission - -
- as % of profit
- other, specify (performance linked 1,07,91,078 1,07,91,078
incentive)
Total (A) 2,87,05,494 2,87,05,494
Ceiling as per Act (Schedule V) NA NA
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B. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD/WTD/Manager
Mr. Sanjay Sharma Mr. Vinay Gaokar Mr. Sudhakar Shetty
Sr. Particular of (Chief Financial (Company Secretary) | (Company Secretary)
No. Remuneration Officer) Ceased w.e.f. Appointed w.e.f.
December 01, 2019 December 01, 2019
Gross Salary
a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of 2,16,61,008 45,85,920 12,33,514
the Income tax Act, 1961
1 b) Value of perquisites u/s ) ) )
17(2) of the Income tax Act,
1961
c) Profits in lieu of salary u/s
17(3) of the Income tax Act, 6,41,667 29,49,251 )
1961
2 Stock Option - - -
3 Sweat Equity - - -
Commission - - -
4 - as % of profit - - -
- other specify 48,26,195 22,02,732 1,01,760
5 (performance incentive)
Total 2,71,28,870 97,37,903 13,35,274
C. Remuneration to other directors:
Sr. Particular of Remuneration Name of Directors Total
No. Amount
1 Independent Directors Mr. Santhanakrishnan Ms. Neera Saggi
Sankaran
i) Fee for attending )
Board/Committee meetings 15,00,000 16,00,000 31,00,000
if) Commission - - - -
iii) Other, specify - - - -
Total (1) 15,00,000 16,00,000 - 31,00,000
2 g_ther Non-Executive Mr. Banmali Agrawala Mr. Farokh Subedar | Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal
irectors

i) Fee for attending

Board/Committee meetings 2,20,000 13,00,000 1,40,000 16,60,000
if) Commission - - - -

iii) Other, specify - - - -
Total (2) 2,20,000 13,00,000 1,40,000 16,60,000
Total (B) = (1+2) 17,20,000 29,00,000 1,40,000 47,60,000
Total Managerial Remuneration NA NA NA NA
Overall ceiling as per Act NA NA NA NA
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VII.PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type Section of the Brief Details of Authority Appeal made,
Companies Act Description penalty/punishment/ (RD/NCLT/Cou| if any (give
compounding fees rt) details)
imposed
A. Company
Penalty
Punishment Not Applicable
Compounding
B. Directors
Penalty
Punishment Not Applicable

Compounding

C

Other Officers in default

Penalty

Punishment

Compounding

Not Applicable

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Banmali Agrawala

Chairman

DIN: 00120029
Date: July 06, 2020

Place: Mumbai
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Annexure B (a.)

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND
OTHER EMPLOYEES

The philosophy for remuneration of directors, Key Managerial Personnel ("KMP”) and all
other employees of Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited (“"Company”) is based on the
commitment of fostering a culture of leadership with trust. The remuneration policy is
aligned to this philosophy.

This remuneration policy has been prepared pursuant to the provisions of Section 178(3) of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) and Clause 49(IV)(B)(1) of the Equity Listing Agreement
("Listing Agreement”). In case of any inconsistency between the provisions of law and
this remuneration policy, the provisions of the law shall prevail and the company shall abide
by the applicable law. While formulating this policy, the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee ("NRC") has considered the factors laid down under Section 178(4) of the Act,
which are as under:

"(a) the level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain
and motivate directors of the quality required to run the company successtully;

(b) relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

(c) remuneration to directors, key managerial personnel and senior management involves
a balance between fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance
objectives appropriate to the working of the company and its goals”

Key principles governing this remuneration policy are as follows:

e Remuneration for independent directors and non-independent non-executive
directors

o Independent directors ("ID"”) and non-independent non-executive directors (*"NED”) may
be paid sitting fees (for attending the meetings of the Board and of committees of which
they may be members) and commission within regulatory limits.

o Within the parameters prescribed by law, the payment of sitting fees and commission will
be recommended by the NRC and approved by the Board.
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o Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) should be reasonable and sufficient
to attract, retain and motivate directors aligned to the requirements of the

company (taking into consideration the challenges faced by the company and its future
growth imperatives).

o Overall remuneration should be reflective of size of the company, complexity of the sector/
industry/ company’s operations and the company’s capacity to pay the remuneration.

o Overall remuneration practices should be consistent with recognized best practices.
0 Quantum of sitting fees may be subject to review on a periodic basis, as required.

o The aggregate commission payable to all the NEDs and IDs will be recommended by the
NRC to the Board based on company performance, profits, return to investors, shareholder
value creation and any other significant qualitative parameters as may be decided by the
Board.

o0 The NRC will recommend to the Board the quantum of commission for each director based
upon the outcome of the evaluation process which is driven by various factors including
attendance and time spent in the Board and committee meetings, individual contributions
at the meetings and contributions made by directors other than in meetings.

o In addition to the sitting fees and commission, the company may pay to any director such
fair and reasonable expenditure, as may have been incurred by the director while
performing his/ her role as a director of the company. This could include reasonable
expenditure incurred by the director for attending Board/ Board committee meetings,
general meetings, court convened meetings, meetings with shareholders/ creditors/
management, site visits, induction and training (organized by the company for directors)
and in obtaining professional advice from independent advisors in the furtherance of his/
her duties as a director.

e Remuneration for managing director ("MD"”)/ executive directors (“ED")/
KMP/ rest of the employees!

o0 The extent of overall remuneration should be sufficient to attract and retain talented and
qualified individuals suitable for every role. Hence remuneration should be:

» Market competitive (market for every role is defined as companies from which the
company attracts talent or companies to which the company loses talent)
= Driven by the role played by the individual,
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Reflective of size of the company, complexity of the sector/ industry/ company’s

operations and the company’s capacity to pay,
'Excludes employees covered by any long term settlements or specific term contracts. The remuneration
for these employees would be driven by the respective long term settlements or contracts.

Consistent with recognized best practices and
Aligned to any regulatory requirements.

o In terms of remuneration mix or composition,

The remuneration mix for the MD/ EDs is as per the contract approved by the
shareholders. In case of any change, the same would require the approval of the
shareholders.

Basic/ fixed salary is provided to all employees to ensure that there is a steady income
in line with their skills and experience.

In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, the company provides employees with certain
perquisites, allowances and benefits to enable a certain level of lifestyle and to offer
scope for savings and tax optimization, where possible. The company also provides all
employees with a social security net (subject to limits) by covering medical expenses
and hospitalization through re-imbursements or insurance cover and accidental death
and dismemberment through personal accident insurance.

The company provides retirement benefits as applicable.

[In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances as provided
above, the company provides MD/ EDs such remuneration by way of commission,
calculated with reference to the net profits of the company in a particular financial year,
as may be determined by the Board, subject to the overall ceilings stipulated in Section
197 of the Act. The specific amount payable to the MD/ EDs would be based on

performance as evaluated by the Board or the NRC and approved by the Board.]?
2 To be retained if Commission is provided to MD/ EDs

[In addition to the basic/ fixed salary, benefits, perquisites and allowances as provided
above, the company provides MD/ EDs such remuneration by way of an annual incentive
remuneration/ performance linked bonus subject to the achievement of certain
performance criteria and such other parameters as may be considered appropriate from
time to time by the Board. An indicative list of
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factors that may be considered for determination of the extent of this component are:

v' Company performance on certain defined qualitative and quantitative
parameters as may be decided by the Board from time to time,
v" Industry benchmarks of remuneration,

v Performance of the individual.]?
3 To be retained only if Commission is not provided to MD/ EDs

= The company provides the rest of the employees a performance linked bonus. The
performance linked bonus would be driven by the outcome of the performance appraisal
process and the performance of the company.

e Remuneration payable to Director for services rendered in other capacity

The remuneration payable to the Directors shall be inclusive of any remuneration payable
for services rendered by such director in any other capacity unless:

a) The services rendered are of a professional nature; and
b) The NRC is of the opinion that the director possesses requisite qualification for the
practice of the profession.

e Policy implementation

The NRC is responsible for recommending the remuneration policy to the Board. The Board
is responsible for approving and overseeing implementation of the remuneration policy.

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

T -

e ———

——

Managing Director & CEO :

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Dﬁ 0\/\/\/\;\/\?\/{)\ A“Q)(W"’\ﬂ’a’:

Banmali Agrawala
Chairman

DIN: 00120029
Date: July 06, 2020

Place: Mumbai
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Annexure B (b.)

Payment of sitting fees and commission for Non-Executive Directors

1. Introduction

This document (“Advisory Note") serves as an advisory for payment of sitting fees and commission
to directors based on current and emerging best practices from both within and outside Tata
companies!. The document has been written from an Indian perspective and prepared keeping in
view the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the corporate governance requirements
as prescribed by Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI”) under Clause 49 of the Equity
Listing Agreement (“Clause 49”). In case of any inconsistency between the provisions of law and
this Advisory Note, the provisions of the law shall prevail and the company shall abide by the
applicable law. In case there are any changes in the law, companies will have to comply with the
applicable amended provisions.

2. Principles

The principles governing sitting fees and commission are as follows:

e Overall remuneration (sitting fees and commission) should be reasonable and sufficient to
attract, retain and motivate directors aligned to the requirements of the company (taking into
consideration the challenges faced by the company and its future growth imperatives).

e Overall remuneration should be reflective of size of the company, complexity of the sector/
industry/ company’s operations and the company’s capacity to pay.

¢ Overall remuneration practices should be consistent with recognized best practices.
e The extent of remuneration should be as per the prescribed law.

e Quantum of sitting fees may be subject to review on a periodic basis, as required.

o 1 For the purpose of this document, a “Tata company” shall mean Tata Sons Private Limited and every company of which Tata Sons Private
Limited or Tata Industries Limited or any company promoted by Tata Sons Private Limited or Tata Industries Limited is the promoter or in which
such companies whether singly or collectively hold directly or indirectly 26% or more of the paid up equity share capital or in which the
shareholding of such companies represents the largest Indian holding apart from holdings of financial institutions/ mutual funds or a company
which is permitted by Tata Sons Private Limited to use the Tata brand/ name.
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3. Sitting Fees

The quantum of sitting fees payable per meeting is to be approved by the Board of directors
("Board”), based on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
("NRC"), and shall remain applicable unless modified in the future by the Board based on the
recommendation of the NRC.

As per the Rule 4 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel)
Rules, 2014, “A company may pay sitting fee to a director for attending meetings of the Board
or committees thereof, of such per meeting of the Board or committee thereof:

Provided that for independent directors and women directors, the sitting fee shall not be less
than the sitting fee payable to other directors.”

While determining the quantum of sitting fees payable, the Board may consider the quantum of
such fees paid in the past and follow a staggered approach for increasing the quantum upto the
prescribed limit.

In case of Tata companies that currently and in the foreseeable future do not have adequate
profits to pay commission (in the judgment of their respective Boards), it is suggested that
quantum of sitting fees balance the need to attract the right caliber of directors and the
company’s capacity to pay. The Board of such a company (supported by the NRC) may determine
sitting fees such that the total annual remuneration payable to each director (eligible for sitting
fees) amounts to at least Rupees six lakhs and does not exceed Rupees twelve lakhs. In case
the Board (supported by the NRC) is of the view that the total annual remuneration payable to
each director must exceed Rupees twelve lakhs, the matter would be referred to the NRC of the
parent/ holding company for consideration/ approval. The range of annual remuneration
provided herein are subject to review at least once in every 3 years by the Board (supported by
the NRC).

However, it is recommended that the per meeting sitting fees payable to current employees of
Tata companies who are non-executive directors (“"NED") other than woman directors on Boards
of Indian Tata companies not exceed Rs.20,000.

Sitting fees may vary for Board meetings and various committee meetings. Same amount of
sitting fees per meeting may be considered for Board meetings, Audit Committee meetings and
NRC meetings.
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e The Board and committees should meet as often as it is necessary in the best interest of the
company. Normally, we have observed that the frequency of meetings are typically as follows:

0 Board meetings: 4-8 in a year

0 Audit Committee: 6-8 in a year

o Nomination and Remuneration Committee: 3-4 in a year
o Committee of the Board: 6-8 in a year

0 Other Committees: 1-3 in a year

However, it is the Board/ committee’s discretion to have more frequent meetings, if so required.

e If any Board / committee meeting is held solely for approving a procedural matter, the directors
present may, at their entire discretion, resolve not to take any sitting fee for that meeting.

4. Commission

e The payment and computation of commission will be governed by guidelines issued in the past
in this regard

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

= E———

Man_égiﬁg Director & CEO '

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Dﬁ 0\/\/\/\/\/\7\/{)\ ’A‘W"’\A’aj

Banmali Agrawala
Chairman
DIN: 00120029

Date: July 06, 2020
Place: Mumbai
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D. A. KAMAT & CO.

Practicing Company Secretaries

B/208, Shreedham Classic, Next to St. Johns Universal School, S V Road, Goregaon (W), Mumbai 400 104
Tel: +91- 72080 23169 | +91- 90296 61169 | office@csdakamat.com | www.csdakamat.com

To,

The Members,

Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited,
Mumbai

Subject: Secretarial Audit Report of the Company for the Financial Year 2019-20

We present herewith the Secretarial Audit Report for Tata Realty and Infrastructure Ltd, for the

Financial Year 2019-20 in terms of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013. Our report of even date is

to be read along with the following:

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was
done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe
that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of
Accounts of the company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance
of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations,
standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of
procedures on test basis.

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor
of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the

company.
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D. A. KAMAT & CO.

Practicing Company Secretaries

B/208, Shreedham Classic, Next to St. Johns Universal School, S V Road, Goregaon (W), Mumbai 400 104
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7.

In view of the restrictions imposed by the Government of India on the movement of people
across India to contain the spread of Covid-19 pandemic, which led to the complete lockdown
across the nation, we have relied on electronic data for verification of certain records as the
physical verification was not possible.

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 18, 2020

Vet

Signature:

Name of the Firm: D. A. Kamat & Co
FCS No. 3843

CP No: 4965

UDIN: F003843B000353522
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FORM NO MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 15T APRIL, 2019 to 315T MARCH, 2020

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act 2013 and rule No.9 of Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited,

Mumbai

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited (hereinafter called
the “Company”). Secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for

evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of the secretarial audit, the
explanations and clarifications given to us and there presentations made by the Management and
considering the relaxations granted by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs due to the spread of the
COVID-19 pandemic, we hereby report that in our opinion, the company has during the audit period
covering Financial Year from 1%t April, 2019 to 315 March, 2020, complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism

in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the
adherence to good corporate practices by the Company. Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner
that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and

expressing our opinion thereon.
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We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed, reports issued by

various fellow professionals and other applicable records and registers and maintained by the

Company for the Financial Year from 15 April, 2019 to 31 March, 2020 according to the provisions

The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to
the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings — as applicable in respect of the reporting towards their Foreign Exchange
Management Act, 1999:

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
(As applicable to Debt Listed Entity)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (As applicable to Debt Listed Entity)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations,
2008; (As applicable to Debt Listed Entity)

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above to the extent stated in this Report.

I1. Provisions of the following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed are not applicable to the
Company, for the financial year ended March 31, 2020 under report:-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)

Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Merchant Bankers) Regulations, 1992.

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee
Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and
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(f) The Securities and Exchange Board(Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 20009;

II. We have reviewed the information, documents, records, filings and other certificates or
confirmations received from fellow professionals for the period under review and the
representations made by the company and its officers on the systems, records and compliances
under other laws applicable to the Company. The list of major laws and acts applicable to the

company are stated in Annexure | to this Report.

III. We have examined the compliances of the applicable provisions of Secretarial Standards, | and
Il issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries, India and notified by the MCA u/s 118(10) as
issued under the Companies Act, 2013.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of
Directors that took place during the year under review were carried out in compliance with the

provisions of the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and

clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision is carried through with unanimous consent of all the Board of Directors and recorded

as part of the minutes.
We further report that during the year under report, the Company has undertaken following events /

action having a major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules,

regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. referred to above viz.
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1. The Company has issued Unsecured, Redeemable, Non-Convertible Debentures (NCD) on a
Private Placement Basis on the following dates. These securities were listed on the BSE Limited

Date of Issue Amount (Rs.)

18/11/2019 Rs. 195 Crores
31/01/2020 Rs. 200 Crores
6/02/2020 Rs. 275 Crores

2. The Company has conducted an Extra-ordinary General Meeting (EGM) on 23" September
2019, for the following resolutions:
(a) Increasing the Authorized Share Capital of the Company from Rs. 3000 Crores to Rs. 8000
Crores by creation of 500 Crore Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each
(b) Approve limits for creation of charge of assets U/s 180 (1)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013 to
Rs. 6000 Crores.
(c) Approve limits for increase in the borrowing limits of the Company U/s 180(1)(c) of the
Companies Act, 2013 to Rs. 6000 Crores.

3. The Company has issued and allotted 60,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each to its Holding
Company, Tata Sons Private Limited, issued on a Rights Basis on 9" April 2020 after the

closure of the Financial Yeatr, till the date of this Report.

Vet

Signature:

Name of the Firm: D. A. Kamat & Co
FCS No. 3843

CP No: 4965

UDIN: F0O03843B000353522

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 18, 2020
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Annexure | — List of other Acts specifically applicable to the Company

Registered Office: Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited.

E Block, Voltas Premises, T B Kadam Marg,
Chinchpokli, Mumbai City MH 400033

Major Acts applicable to the Company: Based on the list of other statutes provided by the Company,

taking into consideration the nature of business, the following list of Major Acts are applicable to the

Company.

a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)

9)
h)
i)

Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952

The Maternity Benefit Act,1961

Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

Acts as prescribed under the Direct Taxes and Indirect Taxes

Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972

The Bombay Shops & Establishments Act, 1948

Employees Superannuation Scheme

Hazardous Waste (Management, Handling And Trans boundary Movement) Rules, 2008

Local laws as applicable to various offices of the Company

Place: Mumbai
Date: June 18, 2020

Vet

Signature:

Name of the Firm: D. A. Kamat & Co
FCS No. 3843

CP No: 4965

UDIN: F0O03843B000353522
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Corporate Social Responsibility Policy
Annexure “D”
Preamble:

The term “Corporate Social Responsibility” (CSR) has gained much importance in the recent
days due to many reasons like regulatory impositions, increasing social awareness of the corporates,
changing attitude of the corporate world to make society a part of its environment etc. TATA REALTY
AND INFRASTRUCTURE LIMITED (“Company”) possess a comprehensive view and the term ‘CSR’
is not merely restricted to allocation of funds for social activities; but further extends in returning
the society what it has taken it from as well as develop the healthy and sustainable relationship
between TRIL and all the components of the society with which it is dealing directly or indirectly.

Introduction:

The Company and its subsidiaries have a wide geographical stretch throughout the nation likely to
say from Amritsar to Chennai. The Company voluntarily initiates numerous CSR activities during its
recent past, even before formal introduction of regulations on CSR:

Highlights:

i. Road Safety awareness programs and free health check-ups at project site

ii. Tree Plantation with school children- a drive to nurture nature by contributing to the
vegetation in and around the project site by empowering our future generation to take
astride in enriching the green environment.

iii. Tree-plantation initiative to conserve the environment by developing awareness and
ownership amongst the society and enriching the society to achieve sustainable growth of
both society and environment.

iv. Nature Conservation Initiative in association with Bombay Natural History Society to reduce
the carbon footprint & increase the green handprint, Water conservation and prevention of
soil erosion by building bunds across streams in the reserve.

V. Organizing blood donation camps at project sites

Vi. Installation of water purification plants at schools near project sites etc.

Objectives:

The Company recognizes its responsibility towards the society and contributes significantly towards
the betterment of the local communities it serves. The Company shall timely ensure appropriate
utilization of contribution viz financial and human resources to the benefit of the community at large.
In the light of the above various efforts have been made by the company to make a difference.
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Composition of the CSR Committee:

The Committee shall constitute minimum three directors of which atleast one director shall be an
Independent Director from the Board of the Company.

Mandate of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:

As per the Companies Act, 2013:

i. Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy which shall
indicate the activities to be undertaken by the Company;

ii. Recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities;
iii. Monitor the CSR Policy of the Company from time to time;

Additional mandate to be adopted by Board of Tata Companies:

i. Oversee the company’s conduct with regard to its corporate and societal obligations and its
reputation as a responsible corporate citizen;

ii. Oversee activities impacting the quality of life of various stakeholders;
iii. Monitor the CSR Policy and expenditure of the material subsidiaries
Recommended sectors for CSR activities:

i. Eradicating hunger, poverty and malnutrition, promoting preventive health care and
sanitization and making available safe drinking water;

ii. Promoting education, including special education and employment enhancing vocational
skills especially among children, women, elderly and the differently abled and livelihood
enhancement projects;

iii. Promoting gender equality, empowering women, setting homes and hostels for women and
orphans, setting up old age homes, day care centers and such other facilities for senior
citizens and measures for reducing inequalities faced by socially and economically backward
groups;
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iv. Ensuing environmental sustainability, ecological balance, protection of flora and fauna,
animal welfare, agroforestry, conservation of natural resources and maintaining quality of
soil, air and water;

v. Protection of natural heritage, art and culture, including restoration of buildings and sites of
historical importance and works of art, setting up public libraries, promotion and
development of traditional arts and handicrafts;

vi. Measures for the benefits of armed forces veterans, war widows and their dependents;

vii. Training to promote rural sports, nationally recognized sports, Paralympic sports and Olympic
sports;

viii. Contribution to the Prime Ministers’ National Relief Fund or any other fund set up by Central
Government for socio-economic development and relief and welfare of Scheduled Castes,

the Scheduled Tribes, other backward classes, minorities and women;

ix. Contributions or funds provided to technology incubators located within academic institutions
which are approved by the Central Government;

X. Rural Development Projects.

Scope of activities covered:

The scope of activities of the Company will not only restrict to providing funds for promoting
aforementioned activities, but also in creating opportunities for the locals and others which will make
them independent and capable of raising their livelihood.

Implementation Procedure:

CSR Schedule:
The Company shall during the financial year i.e. any time between 1t April to 31 March every year,
carry out its above listed CSR activities. The CSR Committee shall, from time to time, decide on the

schedule.

Source of funds:

The funds required for utilization on CSR activities shall be allocated out of the profits of the
Company. The Company shall spend on CSR activities an amount of at least two percent of the
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average net profits, made during the preceding three financial years. The average net profit shall
be reckoned in accordance with the provisions of Section 198 of the Companies Act, 2013.

However, in the absence of any profits, the Company may still volunteer to undertake/spend on CSR
activities.

Implementation and Selection of activities:

The Company shall implement the CSR activities either on its own or by contributing in form of
donation to a registered trust / society.

The Committee may from time to time recommend selecting and implementing any of the CSR
activities enumerated above and to encourage employees’ to voluntarily participate in such activities

toward society’s betterment and overall well being.

Monitoring and Reporting:

The Committee may from time to time monitor proper implementation of its CSR activities, either
by itself or through appointed authorized representative or by appointing independent agency or as
deemed fit. The concerned person shall supervise and submit a report, containing details on
implementation of the CSR activities, to the CSR Committee of the Board.

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Dﬁ W/\N\ﬁvu A‘W’V\A’a’:

Banmali Agrawala
Chairman
DIN: 00120029

Date: July 06, 2020
Place: Mumbai
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ANNEXURE “E”
FORMAT FOR THE ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE
BOARD’S REPORT

1. A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and

projects or programs:
The CSR policy outlines the objectives, composition of the Committee, CSR scope, activity schedule,
monitoring and reporting methods. The CSR policy can be viewed on the web-site of the Company
www.tatarealty.in
2. The Composition of the CSR Committee:
During the year under review, there has been no change in composition of Committee. The CSR
Committee comprised of Mr. Banmali Agrawala, Chairman, Mr. S. Santhanakrishnan and Mr. Sanjay Dutt,
as its Members.

3. Average net profit of the Company for the last three financial years:

Not applicable, as Company have incurred losses (based on calculations made as per Section 198 of the

Companies Act, 2013) in last three financial years.

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two percent of the amount as in item 3 above):

The Company was not required to spend mandatory 2% CSR expenditure for the year ended March 31,

2020, due to reasons mentioned in item 3 above.

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year:

a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year: Not Applicable;

b) Amount unspent, if any: Not Applicable; and
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c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Sr. CSR Sector in | Projects or Amount Amount spent Cumulative Amount
No. | project or | which the | programs (1) outlay on the projects | expenditure spent:
activity projectis | Local area or (budget) or programe upto the Direct or
identified | covered other (2) Specify | project or | Subheads: (1) reporting through
the State and programs | (Direct period impleme-
district where wise expenditure on nting
projects or projects or agency
programs was programs) (2)
undertaken Overheads

Not Applicable

6. In case the company has failed to spend the two percent, of the average net profit of

the last three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons

for not spending the amount in its Board Report:

Not applicable, as Company have incurred losses (based on calculations made as per Section 198 of the

Companies Act, 2013) in last three financial years.

7. A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and

monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the

Company:

The Company was not required to implement, monitor and report any CSR activities, during the year

under review.

For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Dﬁ 0\/\/\/\/\/\7\/{/'\ W

Banmali Agrawala

Chairman of Board & CSR Committee
DIN: 00120029

Date: July 06, 2020

Place: Mumbai

Sanjay Dutt

Managing Director & CEO

DIN: 05251670
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Annexure “F”

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO:

The particulars relating to the Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange
Earnings and Outgo as per Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 8(3)
of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as under:

A. Conservation of Energy

Considering the nature of activities undertaken by the Company, the Company has taken certain
feasible initiatives/steps towards sustainability, which include initiatives which has impact on energy
conservation.

Steps taken or Impact on Conservation of Energy

Sustainability is an integral part of the Company’s business philosophy. The Board of Directors of
the Company has urged its stakeholders for undertaking appropriate steps for conservation of
energy. The Company has always endeavor to undertake appropriate steps for conservation of
energy. In this regard, the Company has taken the following steps in the project:

a. Energy metering: Energy meters for external lighting, municipal water pumping, grey
water pumping (for flushing) and water pumping for landscaping;

b. Installation of energy efficient equipment: Minimum 60% efficiency for pumps greater
than 3HP and ISI rated pumps for others, minimum 75% efficiency for motors greater than
3HP and ISI rated motors for others, elevators operating with intelligent group controls and
water level controllers;

c. Electric Charging Facility for Vehicles: Electric Charging Facility shall be provided for 5
% of total parking;

d. Use of maximum daylight: Use of maximum Day light in Apartments and common areas
by providing glazed windows facing South /North Direction;

e. Use of natural ventilation: Use of natural ventilation in Apartments and common areas
by providing big size windows facing South /North Direction;

f. Energy efficient light fixtures: Use of Energy efficient fixtures like LED, T5 having low
power consumptions;

g. Low loss transformers: Use of Level 2 Transformers which have low / no load and full
load losses;

h. Energy efficient air conditioning: Use of 5 star rated AC having low power consumption;

i. Lighting Automation: Use of timers and other energy saving devices for common area
lights, in case of day time it will switch off through automation; and
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j. Home automation: Home Automation is done to reduce ideal mode power consumptions
of lights, fans, AC and other electrical devices.

Steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of Energy

a. Employee awareness: The Company has in its day to day working environment have
urged its employees for usage of electronic gadgets which saves energy, encouraging
carpooling, make them aware about water conservation, climate change, waste management
and energy conservation with a view to encourage water and energy conservation.

b. Use of Solar Powered Lights in common areas and landscape to reduce power demand of
project.

C. At Corporate Office, Company switch off 50% AC plant during lunch for one hour. The
Company has also kept water taps on low force setting to save water and used signage’s to
minimize use of paper and water in washrooms. Further, Lights are switched off in pockets
beyond 6.30 pm as staff leaves. Waste bottled water is being used for cleaning and plants.

Capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s;

During the year under review, the Company has not undertaken any capital investment on energy
conservation equipment.

B. Technology Absorption

(i) Efforts made towards technology absorption:

The Company endeavors to undertake alternatives for technology absorption. However, during the
FY 2019-20, the Company has not undertaken activities relating to technology absorption.

(ii) Benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import
substitution:

The Company has not undertaken new technology implementation during the FY 2019-20.

(iii) Imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the
financial year)-

The Company has not imported any technology during the last three years immediately preceding
the FY 2019-20.

(iv) Expenditure incurred on Research and Development.

The Company has not incurred any expense on Research and Development during the FY 2019-20
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C. Foreign Exchange Earnings and outgo

Disclosure of information relating to Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo as required is already given
in Notes, which forms part of the audited financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020.

By order of the Board
For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Banmali Agrawala
Chairman

DIN: 00120029
Date: July 06, 2020
Place: Mumbai
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“Annexure G"”
DISCLOSURE OF MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION

Part A

a- The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of the Company
for the financial year:

Sr. Name of Director Ratio of Director’'s remuneration to the
No. median remuneration of the employees
of the Company for the financial year

1 Mr. Banmali Agrawala* NA

2 Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Managing Director and CEO 1:6.5

3 Mr. Farokh Subedar* NA

4 Mr. Santhanakrishnan Sankaran* NA

5 Ms. Neera Saggi* NA

6 Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal* NA

* Not Applicable, as only sitting fees being paid

b- The percentage increase in remuneration of each director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer,
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

Sr. | Name of Director and Key Managerial Personnel Percentage (%) increase in
No. remuneration in the financial
year
1 | Mr. Banmali Agrawala* NA
2 | Mr. Sanjay Dutt, Managing Director and CEO
7% on Total Remuneration
3 | Mr. Farokh Subedar* NA
4 | Mr. Santhanakrishnan Sankaran* NA
5 | Ms. Neera Saggi* NA
6 | Mr. Rajiv Sabharwal* NA
7 | Mr. Sanjat Sharma, Chief Financial Officer 4% on Total Remuneration
8 | Mr. Vinay Gaokar, Company Secretary 7% on Total Remuneration
9 | Mr. Sudhakar Shetty, Company Secretary** NA

*Not Applicable, as only sitting fees being paid
**Not Applicable, as appointed during the current FY w.e.f. December 01, 2019
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The median remuneration of employees of the Company during the financial year 2019-20 was INR 49,69,937
annual salary & The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year: 7.3%
The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company: 119

Average percentile increase in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel was 7.5%;
Average increase in remuneration of Managers (defined as MD and ED on the board of the Company) was
5%.

Reason:— Basis Performance Result of the Company.

It is affirmed that the remuneration is as per the ‘Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and other employees, approved by the Board.

For the purposes of the above.-

(M the expression “median” means the numerical value separating the higher half of a population from
the lower half and the median of a finite list of numbers may be found by arranging all the observations
from lowest value to highest value and picking the middle one.

(i) if there is an even number of observations, the median shall be the average of the two middle values.

By order of the Board
For Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

D3 W/\/\/\fvu A“Q)(W\A’a’:

Banmali Agrawala
Chairman

DIN: 00120029
Date: July 06, 2020
Place: Mumbai
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Chartered Accountants

DEIOitte Indiabulls Finance Centre

Tower 3, 27% - 32™ Figor

Haskins & SelilsLLP

Elphinstone Road (West)
Mumbai - 400 013
Maharashtra, India

Tel: +91 22 6185 4000
Fax: +91 22 6185 4001

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To The Members of Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Tata Realty and
Infrastructure Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31
March 2020, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended,
(“"Ind AS") and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2020, and its loss, total comprehensive loss, its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs)., Our
responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the provisions
of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled cur other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financia! statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the confext of our audit of the standalone financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

A w

Regd. Office: Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27™-32™ Floor, Senapali Bapat Marg, Elphinstone Road {(West), Mumbai — 400013, Maharashtra, India
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Sr. No.

Key Audit Matter

Auditor's Response

1

The determination of the fair value
of investments requires significant
judgement, due to various intricate
assumptions / estimates such as
market rent levels, toll revenues,
expenditure to be incurred, vacancy
factors, prevailing market vields
and market transactions, cash flows
as well as impact due to COVID 19.

As at 31 March 2020, the Company
had investments n  wvarious
subsidiaries and joint ventures
which have been accounted for at
fatr value amounting to Rs.
4231,81.34 lakhs (Refer note 5 and
2(f) to the financial statements).

The valuation of  unquoted
investments is considered to be a
key audit matter as this amount
represents a very significant portion
of the total assets of the Company
included in the standalone financial
statements, combined with the
competence of management’s
expert and the level of judgement
exercised for determining the fair
values.

We assessed the Company’s process for

the

valuation of non-current

investments carried at Fair Value,

Our audit approach consisted testing of
the design and operating effectiveness
of the internal controls and substantive
testing as follows:

Evaluated the design of the internal
controls relating to the valuation of
non-current investments at Fair
Value.

Tested the operating effectiveness
of controls for the review of
assumptions and estimates used in
evaluation of inputs for the purpose
of fair valuation. We carried out a
combination of procedures involving
enquiry and observation, and
inspection of evidence in respect of
operation of these controls,

Principal audit procedures performed:

Assessed the management’'s maker
/ checker controls over preparation
of the discounted cash flow model
for the valuation of investments and
controls over management’s
analysis of the variances in values
in comparison with previous year,

Ascertained whether the fair value

of investments has been
determined by external,
independent valuer, having

appropriate recognised professional
qualifications and recent experience
in the location and category of the
property underlying the
investments being valued based on
information and explanations
provided by the management. We
assessed their competence,
independence and integrity.

The audit team included Fair Vaiue
Specialists for reviewing the
assumptions of WACC,
capitalisation rate and market rent
levels, attended meetings with the
management team and the
valuation experts appointed by the
Company'’s management to
understand the methodology
applied, the main assumptions
underlying their wvaluations and
more particularly, amongst other
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inputs, WACC, capitalisation rate,
market rental levels, toll road traffic
growth/decline, vacancy factor,
impact due to COVID 19.

e Documented the understanding
from the meetings for the basis on
which WACC rate were determined

e Checked the arithmetic accuracy of
the cash flow models.

s Performed procedures to reconcile
the wvaluations concluded by the
management expert and the

recognition done by the
management in the financial
statements.

s Performed analytical procedures by
comparing assumptions and fair
values on a year-on-year basis and
obtained reasons for the variations.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

« The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board of Directors report, but
does not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

» QOur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

¢ In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

e« [If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive loss, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with
the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

L



Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process,

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

+ [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion., The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention tn our auditor's report to the related disclosures in
the standaione financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company
to cease to continue as a going concern.

s Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
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reasonably knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning
the scope of our audit work and in evaiuating the results of our work; and (ii) to
evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’'s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter
or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensive Loss, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in
Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with
the Ind AS specified under Section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31
March 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31 March 2020 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act.

f} With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls,
refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Qur report expresses an
unmodified opinicn on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company'’s
internal financial controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in

) Rt
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our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be inciuded in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its standalone financial statements;

ii.  The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-
term contracts including derivative contracts;

ili.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor

Education and Protection Fund by the Company.
2. As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by

the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm's Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

it

Rajesh K. Hiranandani
(Partner)
(Membership No. 36920)

UDIN: 20036920AAAACA1696

Place: Mumbai
Date: 6 July 2020

A
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ANNEXURE "A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1(g) under ‘Repott on Other Legal and Reguiatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Tata Realty and
Infrastructure Limited {"the Company”} as of 31 March 2020 in conjunction with our audit
of the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that
date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controis Over Financial
Reporting (the "Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controlls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
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records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonabie assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion orimproper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the criteria for internal financial
control over financial reporting established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

R il

Rajesh K. Hiranandani
(Partner)
(Membership No. 36920)

UDIN: 20036920AAAACAL696

Place: Mumbai
Date: 6 July 2020
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ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements

F

Section of our report of even date)

(i} (@) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v}

guantitative detaiis and situation of property, plant and equipment.

{b} The Company performs physical verification of its property, plant and equipment
annually. In our opinion, the periodicity of physical verification is reasonable
having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. According
to the information and explanation given to us, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification,

(¢} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable
properties, as disclosed in Note 4 to the standalone financial statements, are held
in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date.

As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the
Management at reascnable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on
physical verification between physical stock and the books of accounts.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has granted
unsecured loans to efeven companies covered in the register maintained under Section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of which:

{a) The terms and conditions of the grant of such loans are, in our opinion, prima
facie, not prejudicial to the Company’s interest.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of four
unsecured loans, interest along with principal is repayable on demand and seven
unsecured loans are interest free and the principal is repayable on demand. The
Company has not demanded any loan during the year.

(c) There is no amount overdue for more than 90 days as at 30 March 2020.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies
Act, 2013 in respect of grant of loans, making investments and providing guarantees
and securities, as applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit during the year as provided under Section 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act 2013. There are no unclaimed deposits any
time during the year.
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(vi) We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant to
the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed by the
Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013,
and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have been made
and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the cost
records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii)According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues;

(a) The Company has generally bean regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues,
fncluding Income-tax, professional tax, provident fund, work contracts tax, labour
cess, Goods & Services Tax, cess and other material statutory dues applicable to it
to the appropriate authorities.

(b)

()

There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Income-tax, professional
tax, provident fund, work contracts tax, labour cess, Goods & Services Tax, cess
and other material statutory dues in arrears as at 31 March 2020 for a period of

more than six months from the date they became payable.

Details of dues of Income-tax and Service Tax, which have not been deposited as
on 31 March 2020 on account of disputes are given below:

Period to
Name of Nature of | Forum where dispute | which the Amount Amount
the Statute | Dues is pending amount involved Unpaid
relates
X‘C‘éf’rlngeﬁza" Income Tax ITTftmnga;I fr';’]ﬁ;‘:]'i'ate FY 2014-2015 | 4,43,65,426 | 4,43,65,426
Finance Act, . Commissioner of CGST
1994 Service Tax | & Centr‘al Excise - FY 2010-2011 2,67,21,775 2,67,21,775
Mumbai '
Finance Act . Commissione( of CGST FY 2010-11, FY
1994 " | Service Tax | & Central Excise - 2011-12, FY 88,37,820 79,54,038
Nagpur 2012-13
. o FY 2010-11, FY
'i'”ance A, | gervice Tax | Commissioner of CGST | 5414 5 "py 1,82,07,459 | 1,63,86,713
994 & Central Excise - Kochi
2012-13
Finance Act, Commissioner of CGST
1994 Kerala VAT | g Central Excise - Kochi | FY 2014-2015 | 2-00,10,000] 2,00,10,000 |

(viii} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings from financial
institutions and dues to debenture holders during the year. The Company did not
have any outstanding dues to banks and government.

W ad

—t



Deloitte
Haskins & SellsLLP

(ix) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public
offer (including debt instruments) or term loans and hence reporting under clause
{(ix) of the CARO 2016 Order is nof applicable.

{x} To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by its
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid / provided managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V
to the Companies Act, 2013.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
CARO 2016 Order is not applicable.

{xiii} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
Company is in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Companies Act, 2013,
where applicable, for all transactions with the related parties and the details of
related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements
etc. as required by the applicable accounting standards.

{xiv) According to the information and explanation given to us, during the year the
Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting under ctause (xiv} of CARO
2016 is not applicable to the Company.

(xv} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, during
the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its
directors or directors of its holding, subsidiary or associate company or persons
connected with them and hence provisions of Section 192 of the Companies Act,
2013 are not applicable.

{xvi} The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934.

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No. 117366W/W-100018)

W—’__,J-\_
Rajesh K. Hiranandani

Partner

{Membership No. 36920)

UDIN: 20036920AAAACA1696

Place: Mumbai
Date: & July 2020
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2020
{Currency: Indian rupess in lakhs)

Particulars Note No. As at 31 March 2020  As at 31 March 2019
ASSETS
HON-CURRENT ASSETS
(@) Praperty, plant and equipment (PPE} 4 1,504.84 1,743.39
{b} Intangible assets 4 7778 50,43
(c) Right to use an asset 4 146.38 -
{d} Capital work-in-pragress 4 - 3.76
(e} Financiaf assets
iiy Investmenis 5 4.30.771.34 4,06,035.76
(i} Loans and advances 7 39,709.19 52,124,48
{iiy Others B 0.75 0.75
{f Currani lax assets (net) 9 6,934.68 6,012.90
{g) Other non-current assels 10 12,779.98 10,968.46
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 4,92,014,86 4,76,939,93
CURHENT ASSETS
{a) lnveniories 11 30,857.33 41.011.06
fb) Financial assats
iy Investments 5 71,179.33 311.42
(i) Trade and other raceivables 6 1,878.42 1,397.81
(i} Cash and cash equivalents 12 25,580.30 445,25
{iv) Other bank balances 13 4148.25 444 69
{v} Loans and advances 7 2,464.51 2,349.77
{viy Others financial assets 8 1,428.91 285119
{c) Other current assefs 16 431.31 1,086,29
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 1,34,339.36 449,907 48
TOTAL ASSETS 6,26,354.22 5,26,847.41
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
{a) Equily share capitai 14 1.01.730.77 1.01,730.77
(b} Other aquity 15 1.91,605.85 96,955.18
TOTAL EQUITY 2,83,426.62 1,98,685.95
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
{a) Financial liabilifies
(i) Long-term borrowings 16 1,39.419.04 7246015
(i} Other financial liabilities 18 6,071.09 1142558
{b} Long-term provisions 19 626.53 BB5.48
(e} Current tax fiabilities (net) 20 1,751.88 1.751.88
(d) Deferred tax liabilities (net} 21 19,168.35 13,258.38
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,67,036.90 99,581.47
CURRENT LIABILITIES
{a} Financial liabilties
fiy Short-lerm borrowings 18 95303.21 94,685.15
(#f) Trade and other payahles from Micro and Smail Enterprises 17 - -
{iiiy Trade and cther payables other than MSME 17 3,185.65 3.458.03
{iv) Other financial lizbilities 18 64,132,53 1,25,092,20
(b) Other currant liabilites 22 3.084.76 5,115.48
{c) Short term provisions 18 184.56 225.13
TQTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,65,690.71 2,28,579.99
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,25,354.22 5,26,847.41
Signiticant accounting policies 1-3
Notes to the standalone Ind AS financial statements 4-48

The accomparnying notes 1 to 48 form an integral part of these standalone Ind AS financial statements.

As per our report of even date aftached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

{Firm's Regisiration No. 117368W 7 W-10001

Rajesh K. Hiranandani
Partner

Mymbai
Dated : 08 July 2020
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
CIN No: U70102MH2007PLC 168300

F. N. Subedar
Director
OIN - 000228428

Sanjay Sharma
Chief Financial Officer

7

Sanjay Dutt
Managing Oirector
DIN - 05251670

Sudhakar Shetty
Company Secretary
Membership No: 413200

Mumbai
Dated : 06 July 2020



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Statement ot Profit and Loss tor the year ended 31 March 2020
(Curgncy. Indian rupees in lakhs)

Note Faor {he year Far the year
Pariculars Ne. enmfed ended
31 March 2020 31 March 2013
—— —
| Revenue from operations 23 17,584 .54 14,453.29
i Otherincome 24 14,866.08 12,753.95
il Total Income (I +11} 32,550,862 27,247, 24
¥ Expenses:
Cost ol sale of fiats 25 12.118.10 612291
Employge benelils axpense 26 5465.96 5.585.39
Finance cosls 27 28.456.17 22,988.91
Depreciation and amartization expense 24 191.80 140,30
Loss on fair valualion of darivative conlracts 29 - 440,00
Ciher expanses ao 844184 3.883,25
Amounts written off during the year il - 5414.38
Total Expanses 52,717.87 44 575.14
V  {Loss) before tax (-1} {20,167.25) {17,327 90)
V1  Tax erpenses 32
Current Tax - -
Deferred Tax charge {2 417.51) (129887}
Total lax expenses 12,317.51) (1,298.57)
Vil (Loss} for the year (V-¥VI) (22,584.76) (18,825.77)
Vil Other Comprehensive Income:
A, ltema that will not be reclassified to profil or ioss
Remeasuraments of defined banefit (asset) ! liability {17.3%} 52,69
Equity instrumanis Fair valued through OC! 835.21 82,334.60
Income tax ralating ta items that will not be reclassified ta profil or loss 4l 13.492.47) (3,516.56}
B. temns that will not be reclassifled to profit or loss - -
{2,674.57) 28,870.69
X Total Comprehensive Income / {Loss) lor the Year {VTH.vIIT (25,259.35) 16,243.92
X Earnings per equity share (Face value of INR 10 each} 34
Basic {2.22) (}.B3)
Diluted {2.22) * {1.83)
* Diluted EFS Jor the year ended 31 March 2020 is anli-dilutive hence not considered
Significant accqunting policies 1-3
Notes 10 the standzlope Ind AS financlal stalemenis 4-48
The accompanying notes § to 48 form an infegral part of these stanclalone Ind AS financial statemenls.
As par our report of even date alached
Far Deloitte Hasking & Sells LLP For and on behalf af the Board of Direclors of
Chartered Accountanis Tata Realty and infrastructure Limitsd
{Firm's Registration Mo, 117386W  W-100018 CIN No: UTQ102MH2C07PLC18R300
) wokr
\ . ="
| VN w\:wL ; -
Rajesh K. Hiranandani Banmali Agrayda ~ Sanjay Dutt
Partnar Charman fAmnaging Diractor
DIN - 0012002 DIN - 05251570
Muombai
Dated * 05 Juty 2020 }J/
N 7
) - 7 / /_,‘Z_ N //C
“K \_F //./-,A_,}{_ = =
i, F. N. Subedar Sanjay Sharma Sudhakér Shetty
— Director Chigl Financial Officer Company Secretary
DIN - 00028428 fMembarship No: A13200

Mizmbai
Dated : 06 July 2020
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Tata Realty and infrastructure Limiled
Statement ol Cash Flow tor 1he year anded 31 March 2020
tCurrency: \ndlan rupess in lakhs}

o

o

the wnded FOf the Yesr ended
Particutars F; Naron 700 % Morch 2019
A CASH FLOVY FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES
Lags bafore tax 20,167.28) |17,327.90}
Adjustments for:
Dy i ang 18180 140,30
|Gain) ¢ Less on sale of PPE (0.3 217
{Gain} an aala of curment Investmanis [818.52) |263.47)
|Gain] an fair val ofi and deryali {B.737.53) 12.885.50)
integresi Income {B,779.71} 15,537.92%
Urmending oi cail gplion preminm [574.09) 1540,44)
Finange costs 28.496.17 23.988.91
Amounts wiitien off during ihe year B 5,414.38
Praviseon lar eredit impaired Trarle Aeceivables %500
Frowisan for mpaikman of inter corporale deposis 516.62
P rovigion for employes beneits {116.84) 14,483.57 14,15 16,564.08
Operaling {Josx) before warking capilal changes {5,883, 65) (773.88)
Changes in working eapital
thr ) 7 m trade [ {TE6.61) 430.97
Decraasa 0 nvenionaes 10,052 73 730,47
Decrease n advances. olher curranl 855e1s and ofher non-curmrant assets 1.216.81 1.418.20
(! iy’ 1 radg payabies. other Tinanciet liabiktes ang other [2,418.72) 153062
linanchal liandiies
8.085.21 411026
Caah flows ganamted from oparating activities 2381.53 3.336.38
Taw retund / tpaid) during he yaar ) (921,783 (64209
Hal cash flows generaled fram operating achivilies A 1,455.75 2,654,209
CASH FLOW FROIA INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Faymeni tor purchaee of Property, plent & equipment and intanaible assel (273,48} {538.58)
Frocegds on sala ol Propany. plan & equipmernt &.60 a4z2.8
Inwvastmant in Fived deposts under i with maturtty kess
than 12 months {nety v 2544 (23.02]
Invesimant in subsidianes. and jmt vamule :nrnpames {18.885,50} (14.072.95)
Trom sale af i Isin ¥ i} 5177.38 -
Invesatmant in mutual fund [d,48,520.54) (1,45, 427 098]
Py ds Iram sale of i in mural fund 37551278 1523667
Inter-carpoiate deposi refunded 48,799, 48 490,33
Inter-zorporate daposn givan (43,086 52 [24. 71717}
Inerest Reteived 4.592.75 3,115.67
Nelcash Rows used i Investing Aclivities B (69,203.50) {21,824 .88)
CAIH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVTIES
Rights |ssue Agphcation Monay Received 1,20, 000.08
Pioczeds From long-term bomawings 1.07.000.00
Repayrment of lang-tarm bormowings 1,00, 0040, 00} -
Proceeds from shorl-lem botrovings 16,358 B1 35.245.66
Repayment of ICD teken tram relaled partses {14 DDD.OY -
Finance costs pakd [26.477.37) {16,615.70)
Mat cash Aows from Fineneing Activities c 547024 10,629.96
Net increase/ ([decreasa) In cash and cash equivalents {AMeB4Cy 25,135.08 {51071}
Cash and cash equivalenis ai Ihe beginning ol tha year 525 955,96
Cash and cazh equivalonis &t the end of year 25,580.30 445,25
Gash and bank balances at the end ol the year comprise of:
Cash an Hand 0.06 -
Balances with Bank 97024 445,25
Deposit Accounts with kess than or equal ta 3 monlhs maturty 24,610.,00 .
Total Balanca 25,580.30 45,35
Mole:

:}f':
"

Hates to Lhe

The Cash flow statemeni has been D‘enamd under the wmdirect method as sel out m Indian dccgunting Standard - 7 (Ing AS 7) on Cash Flow Stalement

preseribed in C

{Indian & g S

Significant acceunting policles
I ind AS i i

[ Ind AS fi

dard) Rules, 2015, notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2015,

13
448

The accompanying notes i 48 form an dnlegral pan of these

A3 per et repart ot aven date atached

Far Daloitte Hazkins & Salls LLP
Chanered Aocountants
(Firm's Regigrration Mo, 117366%W . w-100018;

Fajesh K. Hiranandan
Partrar

Muni
Caled D6 Jufy 2020

F. M. Subedar
Uiector
OIM - D0a28423
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For and on behalf of the Board o Direclors of
Tata Realty and niresiructuca Limited
CIN Mo: UT0102MH 2007 PLC 168300

==

Sanjay Dult

Waraging Clrecior
DN - 5251670

Company Secretary

Mambarahip Mo 413200

Chief Finanoizl Otficer

Rbiarnibai
Daled 06 Juky 2020



Tata Realty and infrastructure Limited
Staterment of Changes in Equity {SOC|E}

tar the year ended 31 karch 2020

{Currancy: Indian rupees in lakbs)

A Equity Share Caplial

A1 March 2020 31 March 2012
Fartlculars Number of Shares Amount Mumber af Shares Amount
Subscrlbad and Fully Pald up Capltal
Equity shares of INR 10 esch
Opening Balance 1.01.73,07 592 1.01,730, 77 1.01,73,07,692 1.01,730.77
Charges in equity shara capilal during the year - - - -
Closing Balance 1,01,73.07,892 1,01,730.77 1,01,73,07 692 1,01,730.77
B Other equity
hems of Other comprehenaive
Aasarves and surplus Inceme
Share
Particulars applicaiion Equity Instrumems|  Tatal other
FRetained Securities | Money pending | Deiined beneflt  through Other equity
Caphal reserve - N st o N N
aarnings Qremium reserve plan Compr
Income rasarva
Balance as at Q1 April 2018 4,763.48 (17,728.54) 15,769.23 - {18.78} 85,210.00 B4,015.40
ING AR 115 Adjustmenl under transifion - 11,304.14) . - - - (¥,30d.14}
Loss for lhe yaar i18.626.77) . - - - [18,626.77)
Cther comprehensive income for the yaar
Equity Instiuments fai valued through Other - - - - 32,334,60 32,334,650
Comprehensive Income
Remaasurements of defined benefit fiabdliy - - - 52,65 - 52,65
{ncome lax redating on abave - - - - i 13,68} {(3,502.58) [3516.56}
Balanea as at 31 Mareh 25 4,783.48 (a7 ,650.45) 15,769,23 - 20.1% 1,14,041.72 $6,955.18
Loss for (he year - [22,584.76) . - - {22,584.76)
Share application money pending ai) B
received during the year 1,20.000.00 1,20,000.00
Other compeehensive incame for the year
Equity Mastruments fair vahiad through Other . - - - 8351 a35.M
Comerehensive income
Remeasuremans of defined banafit {assatt - - - (17.an - (1731
incoma tax relation on aiove - - - 4.50 {3.486.97 (3.492.47)
Transterad fram OCI 1o Retaned sqmings on (13.307.84 13,307 .84 .
derecogntion of equity instrumants
Balance a5 a1 31 Warch 2020 4,783.49 (60,254.21) 15,768.23 1,20,000.00 7.34 1,11,375,56 1,91,835.85
Significant accounting policies 13
MNoles I1a the dal Ind A% fi S 4-48

The accompamyng rotes 1 (o 48 {orm anntggral part of hase standalond Ind AS financial stalemens,

As per our raport of even dale attached

For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP

Chartered Azesurtants

{Firm's Registratan Mo, | 173668W / W-100018}

/Q’AM

Rafesh K. Hiranandeni
Fanner

Murnbai
Dated . D6 huly 2020

For ard an behall of the Board of Diroctors of
Tals Really and Infrastructure Limited
CIN Mo: U705 02MH2007PLC 1 BRI00

Banmali wala Sanjay Cutt F. N. Subadar
Lheailrm Managing Direcior Dwecrar
DIN - ooppaza DIN - 05251670 DiN - 00028428
h .‘y/ o -/"7 2
= njay Sharma :;udhawﬁy
Chief Financlal Officer Compary Secisiany
Mombershin Na: A13200
Mumbai

Dated 06 luly 2020



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
CIN No: U73102MH2007PLG 168300

Notes to Ind AS financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

]

Background of the Company

Tata Really and Infrastruciure Limited {the Company) was incorparated on 2 March 2007 to carry on the business of investment
advisory services, project management consultancy services and real estate and infrastructure development. The Gompany is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Tata Sons Private Limited.

Basis of preparation

{a) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

These standalone Ind AS linancial statements haive been prepared in accordance with indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Pules, 2015 notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 {('the Act'} and other
relevant provisions of the Act.

(b) Going Concern

The Company is primarily engagad in development of commercial and Infrastructure projects to generate stable cashflows and capital
appreciation over the [ife of the assets through investments in various project SPVs.,

The Company has incurred losses amounting to Ris. 22,585 {akhs in the current year {previous year Rs. 18,627 lakhs). As at 31 March
2020 the Company has a net current liability position of As. 31,552 lakhs where the current Fabilities at Rs. 1,65,891 lakhs exceed the
current assets at Rs, 1,34,33% lakhs. Based on scheduled repayment Rs 2,29 000 lakhs is due for repayment within 12 months from
the approval of these financial statements. The Company has also agreed to provide financial support of Rs, 33,800 lakhs to its
subsidiary companies,

Assessment: The Board of Directors have assessed the above operational conditions and indicators and have come to the conclusion
that ne malenal uncerainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability 10 continue as a going concern based on
cashflow forecasts and the plan management has put in place.

Mitigating factors: In spite of difficult market condlitions over a period, the superior nature of porttolio of the Company's developments
has increased the Fair Value of these assets to Rs 456,000 Lakhs over its histarical cost of Rs 284,4G0 Lakhs.

During FY 2020-21 based on projections, the SPV's are expected tc generate operational net cash flow of more than Rs 450,00 Lakhs
which will increase the value of investments of the Company. The management is evaluating possibility of divestment of selected
assets and change in capitat structure in its project SPYs’ which is expected to generate more than Rs 1,50.000 Lakhs as equity value.
Also, the free cashflow from sale of Ready to Move in (RTMI} residential inventory will suppart its operations during coming financial
years,

Negative working capital is on account of management decision to barrow shori-termn funds through commercial papers lo take
advantage of interest arbitrage. However, management has modified the strategy to replace, to the extent possible, short term funding
with long term funding arrangement going forward.

The equity capital from the parent i.e. Tata Sons Private Limited, of an amount of Rs. 1.20,000 Lakhs received during the year has
improved the company’s net worth allowing the company further ability for additional borrowing in future and is teflected in the ratings
of the Company

Conclusion: The Board of Directors based on cash flow forecasts and management plans have concluded on ability of the Company
fo continue as going concern and the financial statements have been prepared on that basis.

{c}) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are preseated in Indian Rupees (INR}, which is also the Gompany's lunctional currercy. All the financial
information have been presented in Indian Rupees (INR} and all amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lakhs with two
dacimals, except for share data and as otherwise stated. Due to rounding off, the numbers presentad throughout the document may
not add up precisely to the totals and percentage may not precisely reflect the absolute figures.



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

CIN No:

U70102MH2007PLC 168300

Notes to Ind AS financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

(d}

(e)

U}

@
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Basis of measurement

The standalone Ind AS financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following assets and
ligbilities which have been measured at fair value:

1 Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments)

2 Detined benefit plans — plan assets measured at fair value

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation of uncertainty

In preparing these standalone Ind AS financial staterments, managemenl has made judgements, estimates and assurnptions that affect
the application of acccunting policies and the reporled amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual resufls may differ
from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Hevisions o accounting estimales are recognised
prospectively.

{1y Judgements

nformation about judgements made in appiying accounting policies thal have the maost significant effects on the amounts recognised
in the standalone Ind AS financial statements is included in the following notes:

Note 41 - measurement of defined benefit obligations: key actuarial assumptions;

Note 42 — determining the tair value of investments on the basis of significant unobservable inputs.

(ii) Assumptions and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of resulting in a materfal adjusiment in the year
ended 31 March 2020is included in the following notes:

Note 4i — measurement of defined benefit obligalions: key actuarial assumptions;
Note 42 — determining the fair value of investments on the basis of significant unobservable inputs.

Measurement of fair values

The Company's accounting policies and disclosuras reguire the measurement of fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets
and liatilities. The Company has an eslablished zontrol framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The finance team
has overall responsibility for overseeing al} significant fair value measurements, incfuding Level 3 fair values, and reports directly to the
CFO.

They regularly review significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustmenis, If third party information is used o measure fair
values then the finance team assesses the evidence obtained fram the third parties 10 support the conclusion that such valuations
meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which such valuations should be classified.

Whan measuring the fair value of an asset or a liabiiity, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are
categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on (he inputs used in the valuation techniques as foliows:

Level 1. quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets aor liabikties.

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly {i.e. detived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for Lhe asset or liability that are nol based on observable market! data (unobservable inpuls),
If the inputs used to measwie the fair value of an asset or a Kabifity fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value
measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the
entire measuremeant.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rales at the dates of the ransactions.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and
liahilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit of loss,

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair valuz in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange raies at the date when the
fair value was determined. Transfation differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as parl of the fair value
gain or loss. The gain or toss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair velue is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in OCI ot profit or loss are also recognised in OC) or profit or loss, respectively). %

A\



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
CIN No: U70162MHz007P LG 168300

Notes to Ind AS financial statements

for the year ended 33 March 2020
{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

3 Significant accounting policies
3.01 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the exten! that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured.

Sale of completed property.

Revenue from sale of completed properly (resideatial and commercial) is recognised when:

1. The Company has transferred to the buyer significant risk and rewards of ownership of the completed property

2. The Company retains neither continuing managerial involvement 1o the degree usually associated with the ownership nor efiective
control over the completed property sold:

3. The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

4. |t is probable that the econaomic benefit associated with the transaction will fiow to the Company; and

5. Cost incurred or to be ingurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliabiy.

Asset management fees and Project management consultancy fees are recognized in accordance with terms of agreemenl with
customers.

A dividend is recognised as revenue when the right to receive payment has been established, Faor all debt instruments measured elther
at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR). EIR is the rate that discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected fife of the financial instrument or
a shorter period, whete appropriate, to the gross camying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability.

3.02 Property, plant and equipment
{i) Recognition and measurement
Freehold land is carried al historical cost. All ather items of properly, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any accumuiated impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises:
a) s purchase price, including import duties and nen-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and rebates.

k) any costs directly atiributable to bringing the assel to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management.

c) the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on which it 1s located, the obligation for
which an entity incurs either when the itermn 15 acquired

Income and expenses related to the incidental operations, not necessary to bring the item to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management, are recognised in profit ar loss,

If significant parts of an item of proparty, plant and equipment have diflerent usefu! lives, then they are accounted for as separate items
{major componenis) of property, plant and equipmient. Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is
recognised in profit or loss.

{ii) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitakised only if it is probable thal the tuture economic benefils asscciated with the expenditure will flow o
the Company.

{iii} Depreciation
Depreciable amount for assets (s the cost of an asset. ar other amount substituted for cast, less its estimated residual value,

Depreciation is provided using the straight line method in the manner and at the rates prescribed by Part 'C’ of Schedule Il of the Acl.
Depreciation is charged on a monthly pro-rala basis for assets purchased or sofd during the year.

tn the following cases. the useful life is less than the corresponding usefu! life preseribed in Pan "C’ of Schedute || of the Act, based on
internal technical evaluation, taking into account the nature of the assets, the estimated usage of the asset. the operating conditions of
the assel, past history of replacement, anticipated technologicat changes elc.:

[Data Processing Networks - Servers and Nelworks 5 years ]
Motor Car 5 years ]

Leasehotd improvements are amortised over the primary penad of the lease.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each reporling date and adjusted if appropriate.

Gains and lasses on dispasals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount, These are included in profit ot loss within

other gains/(losses),

Expenditure incurred on acquisition /consiructioan of property, plant and equipment which are not ready for their intended use at

balance sheet date are disclosed under capital work-in-progress. Capilal work in progress is slated at cost less impairmant tosses, if

any. Cost comprises of expenditures incurred in respect of capital projects under development and includes any attribulable / allocable

cos! and ather incidental expenses. Revenues earned, it any, before capitalization from such capital project are adjusted agains! the

capital work in progress.

Borrowing costs relating to acquisition / construction / development of langible assets, inlangible assets and capital work in prograss

wiich takes subsiantial period of time to get ready for its intended use are also included 1o the extent they relate to the period tifl such :\'

assels are ready lo be put to use. /
¥
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3.03 inlangible assets
Intangible assets comprise application software purchased / developed, which are not an integral part of the related hardware and are
amenised using the straight line methog over a period of the software license, which in the Management's estimate represents the
period during which the economic benefits will be derived from their use, Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases
the future economic benefits embodied in the specific to which it refates.

3.04 Impairment of non-financial assets
Goodwlll and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are lested for impairment
whenever events o changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amouni may not be recoverable, Management periodically
assesses using, external and internal sources, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.

The recoverable amaunt is higher of the assef's net selling price or value in use, which means the present value of future cash flows
expected t¢ arise from the continuing use of the asset and its eventual disposal. An impairment loss for an assel is reversed if, and
only if, the reversal can be retated objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized, The carrying amount of
an assel is increased lo ifs revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any accumulated amorlization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in
prior years.

3.05 Borrowing cost
General and specific borrowing costs that are directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or praduction of a qualilying asset are
capitalised during the period of ime that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets
are assets that necessarily take a substantial perind of time 10 get ready for their intended use or sale,

investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the periad in which they are incurred.
J3.06 Income-lax .
Income tax expense compnses current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates ilems
recagnised directly in equity or in CCl.

{ij Current tax

Current tax compnses the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment o the tax
payable or receivable in respect of previous years, It is measured using tax rales enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date. Current tax also includes any lax arising from dividends, Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation, It establishes pravisions where appropriate on the
basis of amaunis expected to ba paid to the tax autharities.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT") under the provisions of Income-tax Act, 1961 is recognised as current tax in the statement of profit and
loss. MAT paid in accordance with the tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of adjustment lo future income tax
liability, is considered as an asset if there is a convincing evidence that the Gompany will pay normal tax. Accordingly, MAT is
recagnized as an asset in the balance sheet when it is probable that the future economic benefit assaciated with it will flow to the
Company.

Current tax asseis and liabilities are offset anly if, the Campany’
a) has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounis; and
b} intends either to seltie on a net basis, ar ta realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously,

(i) Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences belween the carrying amounts of assets and habilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from
the inflial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a ransaction other than a business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting prafit nor taxable profit
(tax loss).

Deferred tax assets are recugnised for unused lax lesses, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. Deferred lax assets are reviewed al each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable thal the related tax benefit will be realisec, such reductions
are reversed when the praobability of future taxable profits improves. Unrecognised defered tax assels are reassessed at each
reporting date and recognised 1o the exient that it has become probatle that future taxable profits will be avaitable against which they
can be used,

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, using 1ax rates
enacied or substantively enacted at the reporting date and are expecled fo apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

-
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(3

Deferred tax liabilittes are not recognised for ternporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of invesiments in
subsidiaries, branches and associates and interest in joint arrangements where the company is able (o control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probabie that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deterred 1ax assels are not recognised for temporary differences helween the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
subsidiaries. Branches and associales and interest in joint arrangements where it is not probable that the differences wil! reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will not pe available against which the temporary difference can be uiilised,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if:
a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets againsl current tax liabilities, and
b} the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on the same

faxable entity,

(iii} Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit o1 foss, except when they relate o itemns that are recognised in ather comprehensive
income or directly in equity / deemed equily. in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in ather comprehensive
income or directly in equity / deemed equity respectively. Where current fax or deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a
business combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalent includes cash on hand. deposits held at call
with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liguid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amount of cash and which are subject o an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrahs are shown within borrowings in cusrent labilities in the balance sheet.

Inventories

Direct expenses like land cost, development rights, site labour cost, material used for project construction, cost of borrowing, project
management consultancy, costs for moving the plant and machinery to the site and general expenses incurred specifically for the
respeclive project {ike insurance, design and technical assistance, and consiruclion overheads afe taken as the cost of the project
work in progress and cost of unsold flats.

Material at site comprise of building material, components, stores and spares, consumables

Inventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value, cost is determined on weighted average basis. Net realizable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business. less estimated cosis of completion and estimated cosis necessary to
make the sale.

Financial instroments
A financial instrument is any contraci that gives rise lo a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity insrument of
another entity. Financial instruments aiso include derivative contracts such as put options, call options; and forward contracts.

{i) Financial assets

Classification

The Company shall classify financial assets as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other cemprehensive
income {FVGCH or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) on the basis of i1s business model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are Initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are direclly attribuiable to the acguisition or issue of
financial assets {oiher than fair valued through profit or loss) are added to the fair value of the financial assels, as appropriate , on
initial recognition, Transaction costs directly aftributable to the acquisition of financial assets fair valued througn profit or loss are
recagnised immadiately in profit or loss,

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on trade date basis. Regular way purchases of
sales are purchases or sales of financial assels that require delivery of assels within the lime frame established by regulation o
convention in the marke! place.

All recognised financial assets are subsequently rneasured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending on the
classification of the financial assets.

Debt instrumenis

1, A 'debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following canditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Coniractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates lo cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI
on tha principal amoun| culstanding.

2. After initial maasurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cosi using the elective interest rate (EIR}
method. Amortised cast is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium and fees or costs that are an integral part of the
EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.

3. Debt instruments included within the fair value through profit and loss {(FVTPL) category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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Equity instruments

The Company measures ils equity investments in equity shares of subsidiaries, joinl ventures and associales at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

Equity investments in companies other than equity investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates are measured at fair
value through profit and loss account.

Where the company's management has eiected to present fair value gains and losses on equity investments in other comprehensive
income, there is no subsequent reclassification of far value gains and losses to profit or loss. Dividends from such investments are
recognised in profit or boss as other income when the company's right to receive paymen!s is established.

De-recognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or pan of a Company of similar financial assels} is pnimariy
derecagnised {i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, cr

The Company has transterred its rights fo receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either {a) the Company has transferred
substantially ali the risks and rewards of the assef, or (b) the Company has neither transterred nor reiained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred controi of the assel.

Whan the Gompany has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangsment, it
evaluates if and lo what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the agsel, nor transferred centro! of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involverment, In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the nghts and obligations that the
Company has relained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay,

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of

impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

a) Financial assels that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g.. Yoans, debt secutities, deposits, and bank
batance

b} Lease receivables

c) Trade receivables

The Gompany follows "simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allewance on:

Trade receivables which do not contain a significani financing companant.

All lease receivables resulting from transactions.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial racognition.

For recogriton of impaiment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether thare has been a
significant increase in the cradil risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has noi increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to
provide for impairment loss. Howaver, if credit risk has increased significantly, litatime ECL is used. If. in a subseqguent period, credit
quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
antity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month EGL.

{ii) Financial liabilities

Classification
The Company classifies atl financiz| liabilities as subsequently measured at amortised cost, except for financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss, Such liabilities. including derivatives that are fiabilities. shall be subsequently measured at fair value.

Debt and equity insiruments issued by the Company are classified as edher financial liabilities or equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument,

Initial recognition and measurement

Financia! liabitities are classified, at initial recognition, as financiat liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, foans and borrowings,
payables, or as derivalives designated as hedging insiruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial Kabilities are recognised initially at fair value and. in the case of loans and borrowings and payabies, net of directly
atiributable transaction costs.

The Company's financial babilities nclude trade and other payables. loans and barrowings including bank overdrafls and derivative
financial instruments. (
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Financizal liabifities at fair vaiue through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit ar loss inchide financial liabilities neld for trading and financial {iabilities designated upon
initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabifities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred far the
purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that
are nol designated as hedging instruments i hedge relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109, The company does not have any
separaled embedded derivatives.

Gains or losses on hahilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designaled at the initial date of recognition.
and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For [iabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable 10 changes
in own credit risk are recognized in OCI, These gainssloss are not subseguently transferred to profit and loss. However, the Cempany
may Iransfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in lhe siatement of
profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and Joss,

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interesi-bearing loans and borrowings are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gaing and losses are recagnised in profit or logs when the liabilities are derecognized.

Amortised cosl is calculated by taking into account any discount of premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the EfR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and bomrowings.

Preterence shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are classified as liabllities. The dividends on these
preference shares are recognised in prefit or loss as finance costs.

The fair value of the liability porticn of an optienally converible bonds is determined using a market interest rate for an equivalznt non-
convertible bonds, This amount is recorded as a liabilily on an amortised cost basis until extinguished on conversion or redernption of
the bonds. The remainder aof the proceeds is atiriputable to the equily portian of the compound instrument, This is recegnised and
inciuded in shareholders’ equity, nel of income tax effects, and not subsequently remeasured.

Where the terms of a financial liability are renegotiated and the entity tssues equity instruments fa a creditor to extinguish all or part of
the liability (debt for equity swap). a gain or loss is recognised in profil or loss, which is measured as the diflerence between the
carrying amount of the financial liability and the fair value of the equity instruments issued.

De-recugnition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the lability is discharged cr cancelled ar expires. When an exisling
financial liability is reptaced by another from the same lender on substantially ditferent terms. or the terms of an existing Vanility are
substantially modified. such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability. The diference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in lhe slatement of profit or loss,

Embedded derivatives

If the: hybrid caniract confains a host thal is a financia! asset within the scope of Ind-AS 109, the Company does not separate
embedded derivatives, The Company applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract.
Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated at fair value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recagnised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a changa
in the terms of the confract that significantly madifies the cash flows,

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and liabiities are offset and the net amount is repored in the balance sheet where there is a legally enforceable right
fo offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to setle on a net basis or realise he asset and selle the dability
simultaneously. The fegally enforceable right must nof be contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of
business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruplcy of the company or the counterparty.

Derivative finangial instruments

The Company has entered inte derivative financial instruments, such as put and call option contracts and forward purchase coniracts
1o acquire stake from Non-controlling interests. Such derivative Tinancial instrumenis are initially recognised at fair value on the date on
which a derivalive conlract is entered M0 and are subsequently re-measured at fair value thraugh profit or loss accouni. Derivatives
are carried as financial assats when the fair value is positive and as financfal Fabilities when the Tair value is negative. \

The company has not designated its derivatives as hedging instruments.
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3.10

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires issuer to make specified payments to reimbuse the helder tor a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when dug in accordance with the terms of & debt Instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are initially measured at their fair vaives and, if nal designaled as at FVTPL, are
subsequently measured at the higher of

(i) the amount of loss allowance determined in acgordance with impairment requirements of Ind AS 108; and

{ii}the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the curmulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the

principles of Ind AS 18.

Commitments to provide a loan at a below-market interest rate

Commitments to provide a loan al a below-market interest rale are initialty measured al their fair values and, it nol designated as at
FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of :

(i} the amount of loss allowance determined in accardance with the impairment requirements of Ind AS 109: and

(iiythe amount initially recogniseg Jess, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with the
principles of Ind AS 18,

Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits

Shorl-term employee benefils are expensed as the related service is provided. A hability is recognised for the amount expected to be
paid if the Company has a presenl legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of pas! service provided by the
employee and the obligation can be estimated refiably,

{ii) Compensated sbsences

The liabilities for earned leave and sick leave are not expected to be settled whofly within 12 months after the end of the periad in
which the employees render the related service. They are therefore measured as the present value of expected fulure payments to be
made in respeci of services provided by employess up ia the end of the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. The
benefits are discounled using the market yields al the end of the reporting period that have terms approximating to the terms of the
related obligation. Re-measurements as a resull of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recagnised in
profit or loss,

{iii} Defined contribution plans
Otlfigaticns for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service is provided, Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an assel ta the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments s available.

(iv} Defined benefit plans

The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit pians is calculated separately for each plan by esbmating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior pericds, discounting that amoun! and deducting the fair value of any
plan assets. ’

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is pertormed annually by a gualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When
the calculation results in a potential asset for the (Campany, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of econaomic benefits
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future caatributions o the plan. Ta calcutala the presant value
of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding requirements.

Re-measurement of the net defined benelit fability, which comprise actuanal gams and losses. the return on plan assets {excluding
interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling ({if any, excluding interest), are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income
(OCI). Net interest expense {income) on the net defined liability {assets) is computed by applying the discount rate, used 1o measure
the net defined liability {asset). to the net defined liability (assei} al the start of the financial year ater {aking into accoun! any changes
as a result of contribution and henefit payments during the year. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit
plans are recognised in profit or loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resuliing change in benefit that relates to past service or the
gain or boss on cunailment is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises gains and Josses on the setllement of
a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

(v) Qther long-term employee benefits

The Company's net obtigation in respect of long-term empioyee benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service in the current and prior periods. That benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Re-measurement are
recognised in profit or fass in the period in which they arise,

These plans typically expase the Company to actuarial fisks such as : Investment risk, interest rate risk, bengevity risk and salary risk:
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(i} Investment risk : The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using the discount rate which s determined by
reference to market yields at the end of the reporting peried on government bands. For ather defired benefit plans, the discount rate is
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on high aquality corporate bonds when there is a deep
market for such bonds; if the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a
refatively bafanced mix of investments in governmant securities and other debt instruments. Further,

{ii} Interest risk : A decrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan Hability, however, this will be partally offset by an Increase
in the return an the plan's debt investments.

{iii} Longevity risk : The present value of the clefined benefit plan liability is calculated by reterence to the best estimate of the
mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participanis will
increase the plan's liability

{iv} Salary risk : The present value ol the defined benefit plan liakility ts calculated by relerence to the future salaries of plan
participants. An increase in the Salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s fiability.

a1

-

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profilt / {loss) after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares
oulstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for the events far
banus issue, bonus elemenl in a rights issue to existing shareholtiers, share split and raverse share split (consolidation of shares).

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profi / {loss} after tax as adjusted for dividend, interest and other charges to
expense or income (net of any atlributable taxes) relating to the dilutve potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of
equity shares considered for deriving basic earpings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have
been issued on conversion of all dilutive petential equity shares.
3.12 Leases
The Campany evaluates each contract or arrangement, whether it qualities as lease as defined under Ind AS 116.
The Company as a lessee
The Company assesses, whether the contract is, o contains, a lease, A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract involves:
{a) the use of an identified asset,
{b) the right to obtain substantiatly all the economic benetits from use of the identified asset, and
(c} the right to direct the use of the (dentified asset.

The Cempany at the inceptian of the lease contract recognizes a Right-of-Use (Rols) asset at cosl and cerresponding lease liability,
except for l[eases with term of less than twelve maonths {short term) and low-value assets,

The cost of the right-of-use assets comprises the amaount of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any laase payments made at
of before the inception date of the lease plus any initial direct costs, less any lease incentives received. Subsequently. the right ot-use
assets is measured at cost iess any accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. if any. The right-of-use assels is
depregialed using the straight-line method from the commencement daie aver the shorter of lease term or uselful [ife of right-of-use

assets.

The Company applies Ind AS 36 fo determine whetiher a Right-of-Use asset is impaired and accounts for any identified impairment loss
in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

For lease lfabilities at inception, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments thal are not paid

al that date. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease. if that rate is readily determined, if that rate
is not readily determined, the lease payments are discounied using the incremental borrowing rate.

The Gompany recognizes the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability as an agjustment io the right-of-use assels. Where the
carrying amount of the right-of-use assets is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the measurement of the lease lability,
the Campany recognizes any remaining amount of the re-measurement in the Statement of Profil and Loss.

Lease payments {other than short term, low value leases) have been classified as cash used in Financing activities in the Statement of
Cash Flows.

Lease payments for short-term and low value leases. have been classified as ¢ash used in Opesaling activities in the Staterment of
Cash Flows.

The Company has no assets given on lease 1o others. /
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4 Property, Plant and Equipment , Intangible assets, Aight o use an asset and Capital work-in-progress

2 Property, plant and equipmean! {PPE)

Data N
Particulars Fr::::ld - Leasehold c P!ani & F:!'nitura .1 Processing C_)ﬂlm v ?‘rr Total
provements quipments ixtures Ecuipments Equipments ehicles
COST / DEEMED COST
As ay o1 April 2018 1,144,90 8.97 - 145,76 20792 196,82 T 1,864.79
Addibons - 454,93 7.4 15.62 39.08 528.05
Disposals/Adjustments - - {21.89) {1.59) (15.70} (44.043 {83.22)
As at 11 March 2018 1,194.80 475.30 - 130.88 311,95 22041 26,68 2,310.82
Additions - . 1Bl - 11.34 0.89 - 30.34
Disposals/Adjustments - 0,25 212 {2.01) (21.81) (45.8%) [13.58) {8104}
As at 31 March 2020 t,144.90 478,15 20.23 12B.87 301.36 175,39 13.00 2,259.92
DEPRECIATION
As at 01 Aprif 2019 - 151 6203 240,38 11858 2579 466.30
Charge for the Yaar - 30.57 15.81 3588 717 724 126.48
DispasalyAdjusiments - - {4.07} {1.08) {477 {17.62) {27.55)
Aag at 31 March 2013 - 32.08 * 93.78 274.98 150.88 1501 557.24
Charga for the Year - 108.72 33 9,49 21.92 24 65 4,60 172,77
Disposals/Adjusiments - - .97 {0.75) (19.78) {45.15} 19.61) (74.93)
A3 ot 31 March 2020 - 140.80 3.76 1025 277.12 130.48 10.40 665.08
HET BLOCK
As at 31 March 2014 1,144.90 443.82 = KAl 36.97 §9.33 11.27 1,743.39
As at 31 March 2020 1,144.90 335,35 16.47 26,36 24.26 44.92 2,60 1,594.81
b Intangible Assets
Computer
Particulars Soﬂ:m Tolal
R
As at 01 Aprll 2018 349.74 349,74
Adaddions £.72 572
Dispasals/ddjustmants - -
As at 31 March 2019 355.46 355,48
Additons 4224 42.24
Disposals/Adiusimenis {33.22} (33.22)
As at 31 March 2020 364.48 34.48
AMORTISATION
Ag atQ1 April 2018 281.20 291.20
Charge for the Year 13.82 13.82
Disposals/Adjustments -
As at 31 March 2018 305.02 303.02
Charge for the Year 14,75 14.75
Dizposalsthdjustments [32.98) {32.98)
As at 31 Morch 2020 286.78 286,78
NET BLOCK
As at 31 March 2019 50.43 0.4
As at 31 March 2020 .70 T7.70
¢ Hight to use an asset
- Perticulars Total
GAOSS BLOGK
Ag at 01 April 2MA
Additions -
As at 31 March 2018 -
Addiions 13068
As at 31 March 2020 150.66
AMORTISATION
Chaige for the Year -
Ag at 31 March 2078 -
Gharge for the Year 4.28
As at 31 March 2020 4,23
NET BLOCK
As at 31 March 2619 -
As at 31 March 2020 1456.38
d Capital Work in Progress
Particulars Tatal
As ab 01 Apsil 2018 N
Addilions/Transter o PFE -
Ag at 31 March 2079 3.76
Additions{Transfer ta PPE {3.76)

As at 31 March 2020
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Tata Reaily end Infrestructure Limited
CIN Ha: U701 D2MH2007PLC 168300

Ngtes o Ind AS financisl alatemenls

Tor the year ended 31 waren 2020

{Cumenay: Indian rupass in lakhs)

5 Invastments

Partieulars 31 March 2070 31 Merch 2013
Cuarnity Ampunt Guaniiry Amount

a) Nancurrani [nvasimens
{Ij Falr walued Lhraugh Qiher Comprahsnyive lncome:
Unguoted Equity shares of INR 10 each, fully psld-up:

I in ¥ comp
Acme Living Soutions Privata Limtad 50 000 - 0,000 -
Arrow Infra Extates Frivate Limtas 192309 ER-L-ENe ] 1.82.300 6 162 W
Gurgaan Constructaell Privata Jmitad 65 700 B.1es.00 55 106 8 58900
Geermad Equity invasiments in Gurgacn Constructwell Proals viled - B19EE - G109.68
Gurgaon Agaliech Limited 66508 5.568,00 BE.507 B #1700
TRIL Asads Frvake Limited* FrAS B2 28,243, 74 Frahu1z 32 723400
Deemad Sguiy Mvasimans » TRIL Roaos Privats Limitsn - 2820 81 - 242161
TRIF Gurgacn Howting Projects Fnvale Umidsd 50.000 - sp 000
TAIL Urban Transpon Private Liminaa™ 7.1238.000 5,212.00 2 63,38 000 23
Dizarmed Squ by Investments in TAIL Urgan Transpon Prvate Lirmited - FL ] . 240,43
Walkapt Facdity Management Senaes Prvars Limilag 4.00. 002 - 400000 -
TRIL Consirneligns bimited 24400 Dan 28893 2 44 00,000 243151
TRIL indopark tsmited (Reter Fon Nate 1 £2.69.00.400 112.824.B8 b2 800 000 10332285
TAIL Amrisar Profecis Limilag* - - A2 43.09.408 3.44200
Dopmed Equiy Invastmenis v TAIL Arntagar Projeris Limied - - - 248794
TAKF Aeal Exlate Davelopmant Lirdag* - - el el 8- 51500
HY Farms Prvare Laminad 19,900 1.0 10.000 1.00
MI# [ntrakech Provale Limgtad 13 57 200 - 13,57 300 -
Iregtnanenal intrabuild Pivats Liemsten’ 25000 . 25 460 150.20
Deemed Squ fy imvestmert m In:arhaional Infrabu Id Prvate Limitag - 1.ER13S - -
W} nvasiment In jain! veriures:
TRIL FT & Prvate Limulad 7 40,008 A0 35000 740,000 22427 00
Minadt Realtars Privale Limited.” .38 87,400 24 BOE.TE 198.87.400 33.208.20
btusit al Mineraks and Chemicals Company Private Umided 3256 505779 3355 23,270,680
Lirvqunted Piafarence shares, hully paid-up (Ca d I tal
in P
DA% Compulsory Dc;umb(e Pre‘erence shares 01 INA 1} eacn e TAIL Sorsbiugt uns Limitsg 59280000 704332 5.52.96.400 55970 30
% L t Corwarl bl F shgres or INA 100 Bach In TRIL IM3cark L niteg 3,00,00,004 £3, 855,00 300,006,000 40 57R8.00
1 mquplad Debarturas, ily paid-up:
1) invesiment in jakat venture:
= dy C I of A 100 23ch m ingusttal Minarals and Ghemicars Company Prvate Lt \.t7 97ABD 1251435 10479960 59670
(i) Fait valued thraugh Prodlt and Loas:
Unquatad Debenbures o INR 10 gach, 1ully paid-up:
n in i z
0% Optionatty Conuqmbl's DOeomn|uras m THIL Urban “rarspart Privale Limnied 1.13,40,900 1,176.00 113.40400 1 240N
0 0r% Compulsanly Canwenick Gebedires 0 TAIL Uman T:anszart Irnate Lemrad 175375 282100 313,53 V60 231800
05l Qphonally Conwenitds Dabantures in FRIL Rpads Fovalg Limied 37.58,40.000 o7 5FT.35 24 57,04 004 22.565.00
0.01% Compuisarily Ceavenick Datieniures in TAIL Irfapark Limited. 25.00.00.000 dxp52.00 25 00.00.000 47 27300
0% Cptionally Convartile Dabanturas w HY Szrms Pwyalg Jmiled 108 00,080 £.064.00 10408 009 1R 00
0 Oprionaky Convemgre Debarilred i Infamanona) infrabuid Frvets LeTites 27 BO.000 191,60 27.80.000 211 55
Queled Debentures fully paideup:
I} Investment n joint yenlure:
18% H ikl of [HA 687,500 each in TRIL ITA Prvate Lim ed 1,184 8,140.00 1tad 214000
4,30,771.34 4,06.015.76
Aggregate vafue of quoled nvaatments
Aggregate ook value E130.00 B.140.00
Aggregale [ar value &130.00 B.H0.00
Aggregae vaksa of unquoted irvesiments 42261134 1.97,895.76
b Canrerd Invesuments H Mash 2028 31 March 2019
dventmend in mubsal funds (Falr valued Ibrough Profil ard Loss): Tu St Ot Amoyrd
ABSL Liged Funt - Growin-Direct J2.89.874. %8 - -
MAY par umi (n INR) 2195588 12019 Na)
HOFC Liquid Fund - (ieest ©lan - Srowek Oamen 385,284,866
MNaY per uniz tn INAY 3,306,811 12018 . WAL
KCICH Prudanial Uauid Fune - Chrac) Plan - Gegwin .02 BE. 570,04
MNAY per unil fin INR) 2037316 (2019 WA
TATA kgLt lund - Diract Plan - Growth 481 528,35 1539461 W) 5TB43 11 42
MAY perur im INAY 3 1310848 2018 2844 44
178 a11.42

Foo nple:

1, 50,000,500 (2018 50.J00,000] 2ouly Sharas Naye 0a3n 0130083 wilh Tam:(Mad. Mousival Jeveloomant Somaralnn LeTied 130 2 penod Lgia 31 Marth 2021

T e Compary Nas peovied Nen Dietosal Urderghrgs g (he lenders. ¢ Inpastars of ds subsidanes and junt ventwres for the mimum sharehoding thal e Company ~e&d5 10 Martain unid e el
sehigment dale of the lpan



Tala Really and Infrastructure Limited
CIN Mo: U701 02MH2007PLE 168300

hates to Ind AS financial stalemanis

Tor the year ended 31 March 2020

[Currancy: Indian rupgss in lakhs)

6 Fiwneis] Assels - Trads and ofher recelvalles

Parlizutars 31 Mareh 2020 31 March 2018
Hoan Currern Curent Hon Goryent Gurrent
Trade recaivables from relaind parifos
JRE3pUrEd. COnEid ered gond
Quistanding for 3 penod exceed ng su Monihs - 44551 861
Outstanding tr 2 period ks Ihar 31 Mentns B P 2T451 BT ES
unsacured ponsidersd douthsl
Dutstanding far 8 penpd evceading six Hunihs 306.00
Provision far crecd impargd Trade Racevables 306,00 -
Trade racelables irom olhers
Linsecurted. cursidered good
Qutstandmg for & perod excesd ng s1a marths - - - -
Clutstanding for 2 period s thar six months - 158 90 - B5.94
Total - 187842 - 1,397.81
T FInenciol Azsefs: Loana and Advancas
Particubars 37 March 2020 31 March 2009
Hon Curreni Currmtl Kon Currem Currant
[Unsecured, considered good)
Advencas racoveratie from raldted pares - 1.028.21 - 201568
Inter porporate deposi|s o rakatad panies 39.70901% - S8, 124 40 -
Inter carparale depos s fo other pareg - 575,00 - -
Security deposils - 51533 34.41
Crtivar advansss B 24497 295,70
{u d doubimul
Agvancas repous rabke rom relaled partias B 35.790 3h.00
Inter corporals dapos e 10 relaisd panles - 95.00 300
Leay Orags for creml iImp; d aad LG0s - 130,00 nagon
Imer coTporate degasis g orher panes B S16B2 -
Lass Prowsons for cradd empaved IG0s - [§16.52] - -
Tatal 3%.704.18 246451 52,174.48 2.349.77
& Financial Assals: Olhers
Particulars A1 March 2021 3 March 2619
Meh Conent Current Non Cursam Currant
Tr\evEst ALGTI 90 Recenablz
Consioiarad Good - 142831 - 255115
Consiaren Doutituk - 10.00 - 10.00
Lass - Promson for Doubttul interast - 11000 - 110004
Fixgd Jgposus wilh MEs than 12 manths maiunly (Feter Feat Noley 0,75 - 075 -
Tutal 0.75 1 428,61 175 2,851.19
Fog Mote.
Bank deprst of tNF 3,75 fakhs 2098 INA 9,75 fakrst s having len i izvour of Commarzgl Tax dndcar, KYAT 'Works Gonreact ETeakukam,
B Curreal Tex Avsets (ret)

Particulate 31 March Xl 31 Mareh 2019 _
Advarce Pagment of fares 1532840 104067 B2
2rmves-n i Lax 14304, 73| 8,304 T2

Tatal [XTNT] E012.9
10 Other Asasly
Particidas 11 darch 2020 3 KBarch 2018
Mon Cumant Couraml. Hon Current Currant
Capital Advances T53.91 - 159,81 -
Cal Gption Frestium (Reter Tool ratet 6.299.32 - 5.725.29 -
Dervalvas aasst {(Heler Foot noter 631800 - 5 0790 -
Bakgres with Tax Authonry - 562 . 1 008.66
Prepaid Eapansas 275 13274 4.32 Ti.54
Gther Aecawables - 282,95 - F.og
Tuial 12,7745 43139 10,968.36 1, BEE2G
Fool note:

Tha Company nad pad 40 ingrast Fae advanca of INA 7.9 10 lakhs 10 indidin Hatels Company Limiled (HZL] wie MOU dated 23 Februany. 2000 and MO datad 11 auly 2311,
Tha consmasaion 10 N2 advance 1S with an oALAN [ dcguite N aguiny vesimant al TRIL tntopark Jrmited 'or an smount of WA T 114 - akns, ¥rg far valoe o thes2 sharas arg

disclisea apave 35 Gad gpnon preruum ard Danvative Azsel aparapnately. The shares will be ransfarea on o balore M July, 2026,

11 Inventaries (Lawer of cost and ned reaBsaba valus)

Parlieulacs 31 March 3520 31 March 2019
Bought ful construchian matenaks 53.15 5215
Waork i Prograss - 13,710,790
Firnshaa Goods *Refer Fool nate: 30,505.18 28.248.21
Tatal 30.957.50 41,011.06

Fool note:
Azpresen valup al ra30e Nzl unis. Nl akt NAY prene sien on nventar a8 MEEE 426 78 Lakhe (2019 NiL



Tata Really and infrastructure Limited
CIN No: U7D102MH2007PLC 188300

Noles ta Ind AS financied siatements

for tha yeat snded 31 March 2020

[Currancy. Indian rupese o lakhs)

12 Cash and cash equivedents

Parikutars 31 March 2010 31 March 2019
Gash on Hand T
Balancas with Banks
- A GHient ACIURlS 924 445.25
= W0 O8A0s L 3Ee0ur LS walh aas (han o egual 1o 3 mentr s anganal meienty 2a 51000 -
Total 25, 58030 A5 275
13 Qthar Bank Balanges
Panicularg 31 March 2020 31 Merch 2079
Deposk Accouns with 1855 than 13 morchs maiuniy 413,25 444,85
Tatal 410,85 444 80
14 Equity Shere Capital
{a) _Authoriged, lasued, Subacribed and Fully Paid up :
Pariculars 31 March 2020 31 March 201%
o of Shates Amcunl Ne ol Shares Arn bu ik
Avihorizad Capital :
BA0.00.00.000 12093 3.00.00.00.990] squity Shares ol IN3 10 sacr ,00.0,00.000 B.60,/00.00 100 0000008 3100,000.08
laaued, Submcribed pnd Fully Paid up Capitel
101 7207692 12018, 1 41 .73.07.697) emunty sha‘as ol IMH ' eacr 1,01, 73,07 692 0077 101, 73.07 833 10473077
Tafal 1,64,73,07,602 1,H. 7.7 1,01.73,07802 1,01, 73077
fh) _Aeconclialion of Mumber of Shares O ing
Parliculars 31 Maech 2020 21 March 2019
Mo of Sirres Amourt Mo of Shares Amouni
AS @t e bEgMN Y O NG pear T 01,7307 632 T01,730.7F 1,01 130764 T, 73077
Aod lsswet dulrg Ik yaas - - - -
Ay al Ihe ond of the year 1,09 73,07 692 101,737 1,01,73,07,65¢ 1,01.730.77

[e} Terms and rights attached to tha squity shara

Tha Company nes onty one olass ol squily shares maving par walue of INA | D par ghare . Each halder ol equity shares is gnttied te coe voln e thare, Toe Company declaras ang
ys dhwitlends 10 Ingdien rup2es. Toe dividend proposes by the Boasd of Ditectare & subjae| to the approual of sharehokders in {he ans.img Annual General Maaricg, Inthe event of
houdanar af tha Compary, fhe hokders o the eouly shares will De enttied 10 receive ramaimng assais ol srg Company. atier diswibulicn @ aM pralerendal amourrs The

dhsinbution will be an proporlon o tha rumber of sty 3hares neld by (e snargholdars

td] _Shares ol tha company held by the Hylding company
Name o1 Sharehafder 1 March 2020 31 March 2018
Ha of Shares Amaunt Mo of Sharaz Amound
Equity shares o1 INF 19 aach. Ally pagup
Tata Sens Frivate Limied 1.01.73,0°7.692 LUV RIRTT 1 31.73.07 842 1007077
(2) _Deetalts of sharehokding mare Ihan 5% in the Campany
Narme of Sharshaldar 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Ho of Sharsa % Halding Mo ot Shares % Halding
Eaurty shaies ol INR 11 Bacn, fully paid-up
Tala Scns Privaie Limited 1.01.75.07.692 1005 1.01.75.07 692 005
15 Oumer Equity
Parliculars 31 Megch 2020 31 Masth 2019
Shere applicalion mengy pending allotment 1.30.000.00 -
Resarves and sumlus

Sacuniies Pramium resarve 15.¥55.23 15.768.23

Cactal resarye 4,783.49 o, 783 40

Aetaimad garnings {73.552.15 (37 659,45
Memz of OLher comprahengive income

FYOC! - equizy Irsuuments 1.P4. 687 .80 11a.g41 72

Dehred pangfi E{. adjusten| 738 015

TOTAL 1.91,696.85 25,96E.18
Share apphcation afctment
Parlculars 31 March 2020 A1 March 2013

Balence al ire begirning af tnp yeas -

Aod recawad duirp 1ha year 120,680,080 -
Ealance ot e end of 1ha Y 1.20,000.00 -
Seourities pramiom ressrs
Particulars 31 Morch 2020 31 March 2018

{irening nalanca 15 768.22 15.768.23
Balance al the snd of the Year 15,769.23 15, T63.#3
Capital reserva
Parlicdars 31 March 220 31 March 2019

5pnninu Ta@nce 4 7B3.49 4,783 43

= Ihe and of the Year 478349 4.783.39

.
L



Tala Realty and Infrastructure LimHed
£IN No: UTH02MH2007PLE 188300

Notes fg Ind AS finangial statements

tor the year anded 31 March 2020

{Currancy: Indian rupees in lakhs}

Retained sarnings
Pariculars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Halanze a1 ine begerreng of 1he yoar (A7, 659.45) 117,728,541
IO AS 115 Acyustmenl - 15,304 141
Translgmmed tam OG0 Raaneg sgrrings 0n darecannisn of equity nstruments 113,307,834} -
Adid [La3st Ior the year 22.904.76) |1P.626.7F
Bal al |ha end ai The Year (73,552 05) {37,659.45)
Eguity Inslruments through Othec Comprahensive incoma (0C1]
Partigul 31 March 2020 a1 March 2018
iopaning Dalance t 1404172 B5,21000
Equity insirumenis 1air valug thiough O {FY0CEH 83521 3233460
|rcarne tan eelazirg to tams that will nof be redassifisd L0 peodl Qe iDss 5. 496.97) 13,502.88]
Teangigrred ftam QG i Retained smings oo derscognbion ol syuwity wsinments 13,307.84 -
Dalance al ltw ervd of Lha Year 24, BRI .84 1,14,041.72
Other enmprehenaive incomp » Defined benafil pfan s justmer]
Parilculars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Jpaning calance 20.1% [48.78)
Aermaauramanis of Jefined banelit iasse| ¢ lab Ity [17.31] 5255
Income tae ralging o nems fhal will el o e \opraltar kiss 4.50 | #3.68)
Balanco at tha gnd of the Year 7.8 .43

Namire ang purpess of Ie erve
Securifies praminm coxerve

0014 Cormpulsonily converlble genentieps war3 compuscily convertiblz Irlo Squity shares by 25 Rugust 2016 or betore gt the opbon of mivestor. Durng e Financal year 21817 (on 24 August

2016}, these deCaniurss werg convaried g 192 397,692 Equily shates 01 INF 10 28eh &l a pramium of INAL 3 2apn

Capital reawrve

Capital regatys was crizated (1 record 2XC295 of NEY assels taken sver parsuanl 10 schreme ol margs sanciiored by e Bombay HIigr Couet i e pear 201 5- 146 DFbwean
Tata Aealy and Inrastruciuee milen Mara Budtfer Prvate bamited and TRIF Aeal Estate and Deyelopmen! Lumied.

Debeniure redemption reserve

The Compary nas not creatad debant.re redamghon reserve as pae Saction 71 of 1ne Companias AC. 2013 4.2 10 |053es 1ncuran Sa3| \S3uanea of detBahres.

Equily Inctrumenls through Qther Comprehensive Income

The Gompany FEs 2lEcied (0 BCOJMSE SABADRS 1N e T valus. o Avesimeants o 2ruily and presrence sacuntas of subsdhanes - olher comprehensive NGame, These changes

arz gtoumutaled wilhn the FYOTL equity 1 nvestman s reserve wilhin g2y

The Campary tansfers amguris trorm this resenes ta retarnad marrings when 1he relevan] equaty sacunles 3'9 Jereeoqrises.

16 Financial Lisbi#ties - Sorromings

Parliculars 3T March 2020 31 March 2019
— Men Currend Current Hon Gurrent Curren!
Nen Convartible Debentures - Unsecured, Unllated
17,950 (201 9: 18,2501 & 25% - 2,50% Non convartbla debentures INCOH @ INF O HD Log easn. 1.38.500.00 T2.500.00 -
“slly b up (Fnier Foow Nt No. 1 betoe &
LESs © Un&upited ss5UERcE TDE'S {80.08) 135.85)
Barts Overdralt - 4,117.86
Commegrzial PApss Inim Mvak funds FBegter Foat Noie Mo, 2 belaw) 7B GO0 TrEODOY
Less . Linexpired 40 ount 12.696. 7 133271y
Iriee Comorata Dagoeis rRgier Faor Mate S0, 3 baiow - - - 14.000.90
Shet Tetn Loan from Bank - 20.000.00 - -
TOTAL 1,35,019.04 95,509.21 71.480.15 94,585,715
Tha abave emouni Includas
Zecured BOMfawings - N N -
Linsgcured Hurawings 1,29,.815.04 95, WL 72, 450.15 & B85,15
Foat Nota:
1) Terms ot rapaymant and inlergs| of Unsecured Non Conmvertible Debaniures:
Parliculars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Hon Currant Chrreft Mon Gurreat Curent
Y85 Bank Ltd. -Intares) @ 9.28 % payacle annually Princpal on Bulles repaymant an matunby
un 23-May-an1a. - - 3500000
¥as Hanh L. dmisrest @ 3.25 % payable annually, Boncgal on Bulla (eipman on mamnty,
on 2d-Hdy-201 5. - - 25 Q0000
Haotak Mehwdea Bank Hnieeesi 2 8 t3 % payeble anneally, Prncgal an Auller repaymant on
maturity, on 25-June-2018, - 24.000.00
Katak Mahirdra Bank -Interest @ 49103 % cayahfa anmually. Pnnzpal o0 Bullsl repayment on
matarity, an 23-AugeHH 8, - 26,F0.00
%718k Manindra Bank -interest @ 8.25 T payable on majuty. Prncgal oo Siullet repayment an
maturity, o Z0-Apr-2020. - 12.000.00 1000060
K.oiak Mamingra Bank -Interast @ B 25 %o payanla on matuety Prircgad on Sollst repayment on
MatuFity. O 1 T-ALG-2020. - 10,0000 14 000,03
Kotak Manwidra Bank -Imargst 49 8.25 6 payanle on matury. Prncipal on SRl repapreant on
Mat iy, an 20-ay- 2020, 20 90000 26 000,08
Kolak Mahindra Bank -interest (@ 457 = payablz on mawrity. Princlal gn Elukel repaymem an
matnly, on 20-Apr-2027 32,500 00 32 50000
Kah Mahwdra Bark -kitarest @ 9.50 " payable on matusty Prncyoal an Swliel repayment on
matanty o Gd-Jun-AET. 40.000.09 h h
ICIC] Bank Lig. -Interest & 3 » peyabs arruaky. Prancgad on Gulst repaymEent on mziuty. on .
1B-Minermbes-2 (28, 15 50000 -
108! Irusteeshp Sevoces L. -interes) @ B.S8 Y payable asmualy Prnapal oo Bulle
rageyenl on matunty, 10 28-Aprd-R0EE. 26.000.00
IDE Ifustaeanp Servces LB -wdarest @@ 840 %o payable annoaly Foncipal on Bulla
repayment on matunty, on OE-dune-20Z2, £7,500.00 - -
TOTAL 1,24,500.00 40,000.00 T2.500.00 1,10.400.00

) Commercial pRRe '$8.0d (3 mulual tords 3ve al 2 digcounl rata rangng Irem 6.10% -A00% par annus (203 7 20% - 9.70 % 0er snnum). and the ame dre izpayante wirn

one yaar ai the agreed voon Wl face valus.

3 Imar Comorate Desta o5 oiansd iom & group comsany ar migrasi rabz ranging from T.95% 10 5% gar annum ‘3013 3% par annuml 3nd ;a8 $ama s reoayablz wehin 50

Y.

<)
-



Tala Realty and Infrastructure Limited
CIM Mo UF0102MH2007PLC 188300

Notas b0 Ind AS ffnanciel slatements

few the year ended 31 March 2020

[Currency: (ndian rupess in Lakhsh

17 Finantisl Liah@itles « Trade and other payables

Partioulars 31 Warch 20240 31 Merch 2098
HWon Current Gurrent won Curreni Cuwrant
—_— e — e
Trade Paysbios
Mt arg Small Entarpnses |Hefar Foor Nete! - - - 4
QHher han dcio and Small Enlerprses - 2,185,685 - 3,£58.03
Towt - 318565 - 345803

Foot Note

Brsed on indarmalan racevea oy e GompEhy Hom 5 venoor. the 2mou s of rnoipal Dutstendng in regpest of MSME 95 al Salance Shesd cane caversd under |he Whcio.
Smalt and Weghum Enjzipnses Devekagmen] Act. 200615 INF ML Thers wirz nodelays 0 the payment of gues fo Micre ang Smalk Enterprisas.

18 Financial Liabiitkes - Chera

Particulars 31 March 2020 51 Maech 2019
Mon Current Curren Mon Curren Cumrent
Inlerest aetrued bt 70 due oo Gomawicgs SEILET 1750767 F1.425.50 FRETET)
Currand Malunty 7 Lingacured Long 12em Borrow rngs - 40.000.0¢ - 110 00000
Less Linewpued lasuance cosis . 15.86) (21444
Darvavas - Pul cplion Reter Foo Notes - Fiaeg 72200
Cradifars tar Capial Goods - - - 250 00
Laase Ligblmas 138.52 42.78 - -
8.071.08 54,5325 11.423.58 1,25 08220
Foaol Hals.
Agragmeny A the Company witt Tamil Madu indusinal Davelspmen| Corporaien 1 TIDCOY daved 24 March 2008 and h gngrea Mo

balwasn (he pares, TIDCO has an ophon, swercisaole witd 3% Maich 2021, o sell ts invesimenis it TAIL Infopard Limsted cumpnsmq 5, 00 oo.000 m:lu'ly sharas ol INA1S sach.
repreEsenlrg 6 67% hoklirg v TRIL Wigeark Lmited (o the Company “he consedarahon i t0 bg Compuled a1 an agreed AR on he Sasls ol which 2 consderahon, a5 & 31
darch 2020, 15 [MNA 19 B40 akhs, As a seCunly Ior [ng 3BOwE wancacon, the Gompary nis plecged s imvestmant i TRIL dncopark Limilen with TIOCO 15,00 00.000 aquiy
snaeE of INA 10 3ach, iy paidr and aiso praced post-dated chegue af INP 1854 [akhs

1% Provisions

1 Mewamant i Desmen Equity invastments (Hote 5|,

3t Warch 2020 31 March 2014
Particulars HoreCurend Currant MNon-Currend Curegnt
Provialgn for Employee Bensfils; . —
Granary Azl a1 292.32 75.55
{ompersated absencas 31405 115.7% 333.19 149,56
Talal 626.53 1B4.56 £85.48 HE13
28 Currant 1ax Rabithles {net)
Prari |gulary 31 March 2020 31 Maach 2019
Fravision kor kazaton B.965.85 d,365.86
Advanes Paymant al taves th2 508 17,217 88
Total 1,751.68 175188
21 Dulerred lax liabilibas (net}
Fovimang Wauament
A Hld Ancogised
Pauticalers smrenas | 9 Smamam ot in athar lln{::nn;‘gzl;zu B m:v:; o
Profit and oM prahans e
Loga Income
Delerred Tax Arscly
Propdy planl and equomoant and mlargble asasls TR 1523041 /147
Fair waluation of demaimees ot FYTP| EERRT] (k-2 LY . wa.Te
Oafiied brans't ablgatcn 23a7e 129,38 4.50 21187
Oesned hvastmant gn G0 dieceunting Agier Foat Mate Mo H a7 1975.004 443 25 5852
Deferred Tos Linhilibrs
Far vakialons al Bty mesimanis 5EFVDOT | efer Fosd Nate Ha.2) 11843471 - 1305678 {17.540.43)
Fer valualions al clher fnanc bl acegts i FUTPL 11,730,391 1521681 - - L2360 50}
Tonal [13.258.38)| A u,isz.-ml B 19,788.35]
WeyEmem Wavament
Rocoghi ed Racognlaad
Particulara n m:.uh‘ms i S o n Quhar ﬁ:em?:r‘ a1 u:::: L:m‘.a
Pralt and camprehanslva
LOEE Incoma
Daktited Tay dxsely
Property ptam and squipmant and mianghble aseals V41043 11032 TI0g1
Fair usfualion of dematnes at FYTRL b1 75 135057} - g
Diefmed bar atf okligalion 275,38 {2504 113,681 - J3EFE
Deamed nyesimanl on IC0 dasouming . 1E15.40H - Jagry? vd T
Draterred Taz Labllifes
Faryahinions of Eaufy nvasimands at FyCol #10 GBE &), - (RS0ZAM 13 dBAT
Fawr vabuahons af alher Fancial aseels al FWTPL 12,051 80 AF2,BE - - iF 73390,
Tl [10.470.13)| {1,298, 87} {!.Slsjlji 103717 us.m,m{
Foat Mote:

2 The gan of INA B35 lakhs arsing on Eoudy fvesimants [ valued mrgugh OO 6 nat ol K5 of MR 15 76T fawhs, Defarrsd Tag cetinby at 1NA | 758 1akhe haE Dapn
resoQrisad o ihg Quoss Jain gt S 12 753 kakhs 2na INR 1,302 fakns o Bversal of Delaran Ta: Asat n raspant of Bquily Mheasimants sokt



Tata Realty and Injrastructure Limited
CIN Me: U7 0ZMH2007PLC 188300

Notes 1o Ind AS lnancial stalements

lor the year ended 31 March 2020

[Currency: Indian rupess in lakhs)

22 Qthar Current Lisbilities

Prrliculars 31 March 2030 31 Margh 2014
AVArCES Irom cusiomars 186314 393916
Stawtory dues inchuding pravidant fung ard 1ax educiad at 33U 286.42 g2.02
Compens abion on dsayad posseanan payable 18, 10.88
Cepus tund collgshon 7B0.55 675.09
Advaros marienance dherges - 95,06
Heounly deprwls 10m CUEIGMESE 43.43 63.70
et Aayania 191,14 252.57
Tatal 3,084.76 511038
23 Revenus from Cpaiatigns
Fanlgulars For the yaar snced For the year ended
31 Wawoh MM 31 March 2010
‘Eale ol reademial flata 1305037 EEEE
Sale ol aeyvices
Proj2ct manegement consulianty fees 2.897.43 q.26f .45
Assel maragement fees 1.168.64 113033
Maniznance ard oihar racsipts S08.20 4,540 27 628,14 503002
Talal 17.2849.54 1449329
24 Qther Income
Parliculara Far ie yaar ended Far the yewr enced
A1 Warch 2020 31 Marah 2019
nlerest wtame sn:
Iler Gomosate BECOSS £ NCN CNWErle Jebeniures” 5.6G8.51 544188
comear refund - BT .40
Fuaaa dopos s win pank 17120 95 64
Urmnding af call ophen presium 57409 540 44
Prohl 01 sale ol Current Invesiments .52 26347
Gan or lar valyawans of ewasrmens 506230 4.680.48
Gair: gr bawr value charges
- 0N put DOkONS 1.90 -
-on cal gphons 1,239.00 1 42500
MMk Lo Marar gaim ga Carrart mwesirant i kulual tundz 43523 A0z
Cithar inegma frgm rapdanhal proyacls 5020 161.62
Froilt g1 Salo 1 Prgpemy Plant & Equipmen) ang mtangaole azasts a.33 -
Miscefangous Incore 570 58.04
Tolal 14,966 8 1275385
* Incluges Unw nding of imitadest amounting to INF 3,519 24 lakrs (20149, 2 366,93 lakhs)
25 Caslof sake of llaty
Particulars For B yerar ermied For the year ended
31 Warch 2020 31 March 3@
Material conaumed
Qoenng Stock of consrochas malenal g2.'5 256.3¢
Lass Clasng averio-ies o zcnstruchion malenal|Fefer hote 11} 153.15) (52150
Yotal cast of materfake consumad - 204.16
Expenciturs durlng the year
Opening Stock of myemorias 40,968 3¢ 41 485,22
Adn Raversal of cosi ol O AS 115 1 8738
Acidition dusing 1ha year
Professional fess ant |BEhruc al hees ards 10,00
Frejgc managemant zansullancy znargss AT.E4 peri-]
ApOraval ard parTISsIOn apenses 2587 .00
Caonstruc:ion cost 1,850.°3 131850
Ciher eapenses 19.55 BE.21
4302338 46 BTT.66
43 t328 A7.081.82
=058, (igsing Srock ol Invantar es (Aeter Note 11) 130,805,158} 140,858,311
Tataf 12 11ai0 6.122.91
25 Emphoyes heneditx sxdpanse
Farticulars Fof The year ended Far 1he year ended
31 Mrch 3020 31 March 2019
S3{En3s WaJ23 and banus 618376 S.M
Less Deputatign Znarges racovared VA3 ES) [B37.43]
Gratuty chargzs and Sontnbel 18 10 Pravdant a2d pensize lunds 14256 2z2rdl
Siat wellars expensas 150 25 252.37
Compensated ansences {32.284 JB.45
Told 5.460.96 5.565.39

)



Tate Aenlty and Infrasiructure Limited
CIN No: U701 02WMH2007PLC 1 68300

Hotas o ind AS finangial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2020

(Cumancy: Indian rupees o lakhs)

@7 Firance Cost

Parllgulary For The yaar ended For the yaar ended
31 March 2080 31 March 2013
interas] Experse
- on NGO am DEnks and hrancial ke 14,050.68 16.504.33
- on bank ot raft 146 96 33.48
- on commerc al pacer 11 249.66 6,140,958
- of Larm saar lrom pank 1.54T.47 -
- an G0 Eken 100179 AT
= Gh Laage [anfifies i -
Financea charges 51103 200.33
Total 20,396 17 22,958.91
28 Depragialion & Amoriisatian
Particulars Far ihe year erged Far 1he year anded
3 March 2020 31 March 2019
Tepreciehor on Frogerty prand & equipmen 172,77 126.48
Amaonisahpn ¢ na1gaia dssai 1475 1382
10f rght I J38 AEE8TE 4.28 -
Talal 199.80 140,30
26 Loss on falr valualion of derkvatlve contracts
Particilats For 1he ysar andsd Far the yeer ended
H March 2020 31 Margh 2019
1ns5 DA f&ir valuanon
- qn pui aokions - o400
Total - 24000
0 Hher Expenses
Faor the yeur ended For the year anded
Paniculara N Ilnv;h 210 Ell ua:lm 2019
dyar ang P BTZ 84 7202
Audd Faes 41,38 2354
Hrokarage 633 9348
Arthuration Award pad 1.1 E.45 -
Telophone ard Comamianication 127 3045
CompansaneT 19 Susigmarg - 3BEF
Thrastyes Sithrg Fees 45.00 47.80
Faps E Gonguliatens 1.889,53 585 27
Insurance 38.80 33.0d9
Loss an Sala 2t Propay plan: 3 equipment - 22,17
DHliee and Lomman area maintenanoe chargas T3z.05 Ba2.79
Pawer & wthies 2z2.08 23.8%
Printng. toungr and stavanarny 3.34 25.03
Prowson kar credt mpanrad imae carmerate Jeposis 516.62 -
Fraws o for credn mpaired Trade Aaceiuables J0E.L0 -
Fatas E Taras Lhl:E:1] BE.52
Reptriiment 4nd conterence dagenzes 1272 114,54
Riaal 109.58 362,34
Fepairs and mangnancs .27 13237
Secunty chares R2.85 4" 56
Travelihg and conveyance 13281 19%.48
) BNDISMEAE 48.87 4635
Tuataf 5, 40154 3 BAIIS
Foos Mol
jon 1o Statutery Audi
For the yoar ended Fer the yeas ended
Parliculars i March 3023 31 March 2019
Tiationy A FEXT) 2100
Oithar Setvices 3.96 2.2
Taxaldn Matters 00 150
Lt of Packat Expenses 1.02 e 1]
Tatal 41,98 2165
31 Amaunts written afl during the year
Faf the year anded Far the wiar sndod
Partleulars 31 Masch 2020 21 March 2018
Advances writen o B 541235
Total - 5.414.33

Vg,
gy
\__f'-

1
|
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Tata Aealty and Infrastructure Limited
CIM Na: U701 02MH2007PLC 158300

Notes 1o Ind AS finarcial statements

for Ibe year ended 31 Maich 2020

{Curreney: Indian rupsas inlakhs)

32 Tas Expense

Parliculars

For Lha year onded
F1 March 2020

Far the yaar snded
31 March 14

[al Amounis racognksed in protll and loss
Currant mcame tan

Deferred Taa [2.417.51) 41,298.87)
Tan expense K¢ 1he year {2d17.51 il
{bl Incame 1ax griized in cthar hensive incoms

kame that will net be reclagsined 16 profit or loss

Aemeasuramects of the defined penelt plans 4,50 113.68)

Saquiy sheough {hher C Irega {3.495.87) 13,502 881
Tax wepsnse for the yaar [3,432.27) 13.516.56)
{r} ncome lax expanae oy the yaar can ba recanciied 10 1he aceouning prafit as Inllows
Loss batara 1sx (27,164, 56) 13,275.25

Tax using the Campany's demestc tax rgle 28.00% 2014 26.00%%) - -
Tax effecd of:

Heduclon nias rale - .

Catarrad |ax on (2 valuahon thitugh grot ar loss {1.858.08) (678.95)

Galatrad 1ax gn bumnass sxpansas 1558.43) [E19.921
incomae tax exp ! imd i S wl prefit and lo=s 12,417.51) 2OET}
fd} Movemnent In defarred tax belances
Pariicudars .

Mot balance Recagnised in povieised " ot nakance Doferodtax  Dofarred (ax
1 Aprl 213 prefit or ioan In DEF nvasimants T Margh 2020 LEL] Imhility
TEarTae 134 SEEel - - - - - . -
Oeterred ta lak by (13.258.37) [2.41751) {2.492.47) - [1%.168.35) - 112, 168350
{13,258.37) [ZAT75) (3A32.aT) . {19,769.35) . 118,168 35)
Partioutal
= ot balance Recagniged in Pecogni I;:‘r:g;";‘d.'" Mat bakince Dalerred tas Datarrad tax
1 Apri 2018 proft or losa tn Bl hmm‘}:'"" 31 Marzh 2018 asasl linnliy
efered tax assel - - N N . N .
Dieterrad taw N3k |10 470.11% 0, 283.87) [3.5%6.56¢ f A TR (13.258.37 - 113,258.37]
110.970,11) 11,2087} [3.516.66) 202717 [13,358.37) - {13,256.37]

The Company ollsels $ax assers 2ng habbias i and oriy i 1t has a legally gnlorcaable ngry I 561 O SLIEM Tax 355R1S ard Jurrend [an hatimes and ng e2red tan 355215 and
defgmed ax habdines ralate 10 Moom: taees Jevied by N2 SaMa 1ax authariy

Sigrificant manegemant (uogement 15 iequed in delarmunmg pravision forircome lax, Jefared income (2 as5ets and iaohies and recoearabilty of deterrard ok & (32 as59(s,
Tha raccveracility of Jeferred income tas 255215 15 DAsED n estima;es of taxable wicoma and the genod over whagh galamgd ncome (ax assels will Ge racqeang Any charges im
Fufyra taxahka ncome woold mpace dhe racowarabline JF derr3d tae assals,

Tax inssnn carried orward
Dater-ad tay asssts have nat geen recogn sed o respect o' unabsorb:d business |0ss0s, beoause & ~of probanle tat luisre cagnal garms oroiil wib ba avalable agansl whan
tha Sompany can usa the benehls inerafom.

3z E diture in foraign {on acorual baske)
Foit he yesr anvded For I yasr ended
Particular:
Arveutars 31 March 2020 31 Woren 2019
Protassonal less 137 -
Trainrg and conference gpensas - 121
KA ambaeshil B Subecrphan Expenies 1402 11.58
“raveling eqoenses 1138 0.55
34 Eaming Per Share
Epmings Per Shars (EPS) = Hel Profii to Sharohoid ighied Humber of Shares Ouisianding
For the year sndoed For 1he year ended
Particulars 31 Mareh 2020 31 Mareh 2018
‘Loss aiter tax ailributzole (o enuily sharehokders I |22.564.76) TABMETH
Crkculation ol weighled avernge numbar ol squity Ehares:
“umber of #gulry sharas al re bagirnlng o! the year 1.0%,73.00 B92 101 FIOY eI
ZQu Ty Shares IEs_ed Ouriig tre pear - -
“wuThEr of Buily Sharas autstanding at the end 3f (ha yea 1,01, 2307 532 1,01.73.07 532
Waghtad avarage aumber cf aguly shires gutstanding dunng ihe year B 1,89, 73,070,892 1,0t 73 07682
Fugrs Snanes - ApphTabon Maonay facewed dunng the year - pending aliaiment B0.00,80.000 :
We ghted averags numbs Of Bauiy sharas aulsiand g curieg “he pgar G 1,64, 73,067,602 1,01 73.07 532
Sarning Far Shara - Fase (A (B By a2y 11 831
=amemy Por Shae = Clbuled {IMA (RS [2.22) |1.83

* Anii-dRute - hence Not conskdered

A



Tata

Realty and nfrastructure Limited

CIN Ho; U70102MH2007PLC16B30G

Holes
tor the

\a Ind AS financial sizipmenis
year anded 31 March 2000

{Currency: Indian rupess n lakhs}

a5 G and
Farliculars 31 Murch 2020 31 Mareh 3015
[il Contingem Liabitiea (Refer foommote 1}
Clams against Ihe Comparly ngl ecknowldsged as dabte
- Incame 1ax yme G 413.E5 1.268.94
= Indiret baw demands conteslad by Ine Company 467 39 46730
« Chaims made by cenrraciess (Raler faginoie 21 - A0
- Other Lagel Clams 249 -
Fant Nate
b The Company does nol sxpect any autllaw of seonomic rasouices 10 respac of tha above and fieraline N OrOVIS O 45 Ma38 10 FESEEC Iheras!
2, Clim =gz by COMraciors has B2en e dur ng e curant year and ik 15 debied fa the Staremert af Praft znd Lzas |Flefer fNale 0.
{#} Commitmpnta
Pariculars 231 March, 2020 31 March, 2034
(&) Indesmniy fat e SRMEDANS art warBMes for dis nvasimary in fald| Bosinass 135000 -
iy Bank guaranae wsgusd o berall o e Comaany and is SWSHUANES and Lo Veniures aul Bt iRe averall nan fund cased im.es ot the Campany PR 722231 Lakrs,
(c) The Company ras ssued BB G CZMION 10 ORMMS 1A raspect of [0BNS 1y 3460 by 3 fow of 118 subEdianes | N e ALrES
Nare of Subsklaries ! Joint vertures Mature of Comfgrt giesn
MWikzae Reafl s Avl Lid. Shoatall anderahing 1o meet amy aharmall dunng tre lanura af faclisy
Arrow tnlra Estales Prvate Limdsd Sholall wnderiaking 10 Mast any shomall dunng e fenurs of fasilitg
Gurgaon Consfruchwedl Pnyvate Limited Shertfal| uodenaking fo meet am shorial dunng ke t2nws ot faciity
Gurgagn Agaltech Lamured Snoftfal underaking 1o mes! ay shotad duhng 1ha tenure At facdiy
Iniprnational infrabwla Provate Lmiked T snsure payrrsrt 19 doreeers o 1he event of lerminaton ol e ¢ 139, L,
a1 Tn= Cornpary hasssued hnancigl support leite to lallowing suns iares
11 Aeme Lwng Seluticns Privalg Lomimeg
2y MIA Inltastutture Srvate Lanided
31 Wellkaps Facdry banagament §arvicas Prvars Limast (Rrewtusly snawn a3 TRIL Hosptziiry Private Limirea)
4y TAIF Gurgaon Housing Prgacls Prvate Limites
Ei Buepaon Gonerrucrwell Privalz Umigd
B HY Farms Prvg[e Lmiked
71 TRIL Poads Prraata Lmned
8| TAIL Urban Transogr =rmvale Limited
36 a) Capital commitments.
Particulars 31 Warch 2020 31 March 2019
Exli-ateet amouni of coAlracls re—aiing 1o 08 @5RTUMET 00 cacilal apcowl AnT No0 Croveea |of 270 13t

{rat af advancas)

b) Arancial commitments

Parliculars 1 March 2r0 37 March 2019
Commd™gnis tawards myestmant m 0 (1% Mot Cuetaivee Convarldike ~ratararce snaras of 7.935.85 T8
THR Demsirucions Wit

37 IND AS 118 Digchsme

A

S

Minsiry 01 Corparate Alfairs |'MGA | thraugh Companres |Indsn Accousing Stard2ids, A-endtan Aulas, 2013 and Cmp winchan ynurg 3 | Second Amardmaen| Rules has
nattied Ind A5 115 Leases wh ch replaces the eushing lease siandard, Ind A5 17 lpases. and ather INtamratations., id AS 115 5815 S 1ha ponoiples lor Ihe FRzognilon MBasLrarment, 0ragemMal.on
aret suzclasuie of ieasgs for both fessees and fessors. Hintmoueas a single n-Dalanca shae 19a%E atcouring model 1or lessens.

Efacive 1 Aprd 2018, the company adopied WCAS 116 "_24325° 4n0 APOISE N2 st2rdar (0 Al kase COCTACS s ng the moahed sve mertod. Cer ity 1Pe pany recorded e
lease liahility at (he present valle of the [sage payments discounjed a) e screr-ental borrowing rale and the fighl of 190 2886t 26118 campeny ameount as i e slangard had baer 3pplied sacz 1he
commencemanl dalz of Ihe lease Dut iscounled al lhe lesses s incramenial borrowing ratg gl 1ne dale of nitial agplcaian. 0 ransition the agophon ol Ing naw §landard 7esullzo o racogE cn of
‘At ot Jse asse| 0l As.150.66 Lakhs and 2 |pase hanilties of As, 148,28 Lakhs, The cuTlans effas 3t apokeng 1Ne siangard. 3mouning {0 M5, 1.90 Lakng was debaad 10 retdinzd bar ngs. rat of
[2kgs. Ind AT 116 will 510N 3n Mo BaEE 0 CaSN IPI0wE TFIM ADRAANNG ASNvNAS 27K A0 ASRATE N AN AMnwS fom Ar2nang atmales an acoour of legse payments

The Companry Mad re hhanee |Basas as on 31 March 204 % @nd accordingly 0 "emeasgiment was dong.
O ppheanan ¢ Ing AS 116, e nature & BNpEnsEd Nas changed ITOM |=ase renl In dreviaus pefiods [0 deprectalion casl for the nght lo-use essel. and hnance costlor interesk acorued on kase

[ELIIS \

A




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
GIMN No. U701 02MH2007PLC 168300

Noles to Ind AS financial ststemants

for the yeat evxled 31 March 2020

{Gunancy: Ingdisn rupees in ahha)

38

The gperahans of the Comoany are classlied a5 nfgsirust.re ankiles as daaned wnder Behetule ¥ o e Aci. Accoimnply (he BSCoSUrS teg.Iremends speciad i su-gecl-on
2 g Sechion {BE of (ha ACL i~ aspecl of kaans given, mvesiment made ar guararise gren o SACunry Orovioed and TNe reidled deckisures on purposes wiksdlion by reppent

CCMpaneds. 25 Aot Aphcehls to ke Company,

Cetails of k moda by Company as on 31 March 2020 (intluding Inveximents mads during the year)
Hame of tha Bnliry 3 Warch 218 ":::1":";":::?“ s";::g:::'\"'e":':" Ind AS arljusimants 19 March 2020
B Hop-aurrent invgatmenis
janes
Inkesiment in 1
Azma Lwng Sakutions Poyvate Limitad - - - -
Arigry Infra Estales Sfwate Lim e ,362.00 J2E7S O 260200
Gurgann Conalructwelt Private Limiac .59 B 4 36.00} BIBALD
Dgemed IMvesimant i Gorgaan Consirucowell Prvabe Limitet 19,65 - - (33811
Gurgasn Raallsch Limaed 530700 - Bl AT 5.568.00
TAIL Aoads Prvers Limesd 9,75 - ELATSIE) 28,341,73
Peemed investment in TRIL Roags Anvaig Lmvad 2421 61 - 2,471.61
THIF SUrgacn Housng Diaeers Prvate umitsd : : : .
THIL Urban Transper Prosate Limited 233400 4 30,34 2.0 6.242.00
Jzamaq Inyastmant in TAIL Urnan Transgon Fryale bamded 240,43 240,15
Wallkeol Fazlity Managemaml 3onices Privare U i=d - - -
“AIL Cansyusinns Limited 2.451.52 43788 2,888,20
TRIL tnfopar Lmned 10392245 Bo01 41 11282465
TRIL frdapark Limied Deemed Invesiment - Call opl pr) - . -
TRIL Amilts3r Prolects Lemted 342200 - 349200 -
D2emead Irvesimant i TRIL Amatsar Projeces Limited 248794 2ABT. B
TAIF Aasl Estate Devalopmant Limrag Ta15.00 - FEEL) -
WA Irfrasructure Pavale Limiled - - - - .
WY Farme Pravale Limiad 100 - 1.40
Intzmatonal infrabu ks Prvate L mited £50.28 - 130261 -
Deamed nyesimart m knieengn anal iAfanu k Pryvars Limdse - 02795 - FHEED 1,680.05
18233700 11.359.55 13534544 {9,454 85) 1,72,547.08
Name of the antiey 31 Marph 2013 “‘m‘r"‘:;': ;:f’ “:J:L:"‘I'm"‘" Inet A5 sdjusiments  3) March 2020
Inyaaimant 0 Jowt vantur eompanies
Wireaiment in squity charee
TAIE T4 Prevate Lmited 23487 00 1587100 40,358.00
Induginal Mmarals and Snamitats Comzany Favale Limited FEHEY A7 13 23,057 79
&ikane Asaliors Put Lid 43,238.20 T A2 25 806,76
79.885.00 - 9.236.75 B4 #3756
==
AL Canstruclions Limre EEEORL - 104832 To95E
TR tniopark Limited 43,578,08 - - 425740 5181500
5554840 - 50597 60,454 12
Inyeaimprg jn Oshenfures
TRIL Lrban Tanspon Prvate Limilsd 4. 16000 1ER0n 1223081 3349700
TRIL Roags Prvate Limnait 28 55,00 1311208 1900 26 5736
TAIL IT4 Frivate Lmidad B 140.00 . - 819000
TRIL tricpark _emiaa 41,273.00 2,589.050 24,883 04
= FImE Aryate Limmad ¥.088.00 - - ThRa o 1,0845.00
Irtgmational Iriraooda Prvaes Limiisd 21158 - 112,364 13160
roustnal Mumarals ana Chamcais Company S nvgle Lmied 1083678 131350 - 33475 13,313.3%
BA 17428 14, 54550 - 5 427 25 108, 146,81
8, Trage Iuwatments
ABSL Lguid Fund - Growh-Direct 353500 7% 496,22 5433 1051317
SDOFG L Fant - Dieecl Plan - Grewdlb Opnor F4.3VR.0 73.340.28 5389 15,861,907
IZACT Prugenoal Lgquid Fund - (eget Pl - Growh - ¥6,528.00 45,562.38 134,41 10,220.05
Tala maney marka? Mul.al heds 31142 [ 99.078.95 13001841 122,54 15,384,861
qrr.ag 4 48529.96 4,76.007 27 43523 L1795
Talal &, 06,3478 o, 7d.545.41 4,B3852.27 1875030 5,0t 55065




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limliad
CIN Mo L70102KH2007 PLC 158300

Notes te Ind A5 lingncial slatements

lor the year ended 3t March 2020

|Cumreney: Indian mupees in bakhs)

19 Discloswa of rensactons with Related Parties. a3 req by Indten A g 51 4 (bnd AS}« 24 "Aelated Party Dischosures” has baen 581 aul befow
{a) List ol Aalated Parliaa where control sxists:
Holding Company:
Tata Sons Prvare Lamiten
Eubsidiary Compemes;
Arme Living Selulions Prrvate Limited
Argw Infraes:ate Prvats Limden
Phatamanala Appaway Linited |subsediary of TAIL Liroan Transten Pavase Limled)
Ourg Shvnath Eaprassways Sraalg Limiag {FOrmany krown 55 SKS Shvnath [nirasiniciure Py Lint Iwhally owned subsdiany of TRPL Roadways Private Limied,
Gurgaan Gonalretwal Prvate Limiled
Gurgaon Raahech Limatad
Hampl Edprasssays Prevale Lmited |weelly avwhed subsidiaty of TRIL Roads Prvate Limied,
HV Farms Privats Limiaa
Incernanonal inlfatudd Privaie Lemled
Manah Sogpaway Privarg Limitgn subsiqiary of TAR Urpan Transpon Povate mied)
Matharar Atpe-Way Povans Limitsd {suosdraty of TAIL Urban Transpart Privald Limued)
MIA Infrastucure 1 4arg | imisn
TAIF Gurgaon Housing Prggecis Plivale Limsg
TRIF Rezl Es@le And Jevelepment Limitad (uto 91 Decermoer. 2019,
TRIL Amntsar “ro2cts Lmaed {frmaddy gnown s TRIF Amriigar Prggacts Lmigd) wplo g Decamgss 2005
TRIL Zonstnic] 305 Limited
TRIL Irlgpark Lemitend
TRIL Agads Private Limi2d
TR Irbgn TransocAd “rvaie Lem|sd
TRPL Fpaoways Prydls Lmiten |whalle-awned subsidiary ot THIL Raads Proate Limiked)
Uchit Espressways =rwam Limds] jwhofly pwned subsediary of TRIL Aoads Privale Lmosdy
Wolkiap Faciliy Managemend Sernces Praats Limited {Pravnssly wndwm as TRIL Hozpiabty Fovaie Leviled

Jglng Venture:
A2 T Apac Sorsinuciion Maranemant art Dossatan 2rvaty Lmiled (Jnvestmant & rald by TAIL Azads Povat Limded wiich s 10107, sutsdary or Targ Pealiy 2rg
PR3 lrucire L ded
ndustrial Minesals and Cremicals 2ruate Lermited
Mikado Fealors Snyate Limied
fune Solapur Easresaways Povale Limied {Irmeasiman 15 held oy TRIL Roads Prvate miled wron 15 He%s supsntiany of Talg Feaity ana MIas(tucturs Lmibed)
TARIL 174 Prvatg Lmnez (Freviously <POwWn a8 AFach Busaer Byt Lim et
Pune |T Ciry kdstre Aaik Limited

Cther related parlies wilh whom ransactions haye (aken place during the yiear:
Fellow Subsidlarlas:

Ewarl irvasimaris Limited

Tata AlE Genaral inswance Limuirag

Taia AssaEt Management D ited

Tala Business Excellerce Group A Ch-siar ol Tata Song Pruate Limied)

a3 Consultancy Services Lim:ed

Taiz Conzudpng Engingers Limnag

Ta1a Housing Develapment Compamy Limssd

T&a Quality Menagemanl Sevvices (A Diwnsion of Tata Soas Prvet L mian)

Fimy Mansgeral Pacacnnel:

Saryay Dokt Manag ng Oracior & CEO

Banjay Srarma Ll Fimaneiel theer - we®, 100 Sapiemes 3013
Arwlrie ChokHany Chigh Firanchal Oficae - upuy 28F Fabruary i08

¥ ey Satka Company Satretary - uptn 30th Novempe- 2R3

5 dhakas Sraty Company Sacratary - w.ad 15 Docomipar 2015




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
CIN No: LU70102MH2007PLC 168300
Notes to Ind AS financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

(b} Nature of Transactions / relationship / major parties Holding SUbS'd'?w Fe'llt_:»w~ Joint Ventures Total
company companies  subsidiaries
Share Application Pending Allolment 1,20,000.00 - - - 1,20,000.00
Tata Sons Private Limited 1,20,000.00 - - - 1,20,000.00
Unsecured loan taken - - 42,840.00 - 42,840.00
- {14,000.00) - {14,000.00)
Tata Housing Development Company Limited - - 42,840,00 42,840.00
- - {14,000.00) - (14,000.00)
Unsecured loan repaid - - 56,840.00 - 56,840.00
Tata Housing Development Company Limited - - 56,840.00 - 56,840.00
Interest expenses on unsecured loans - - 838.75 - 838.76
- - (20,71} - {20.71)
Tata Housing Development Company Limited - - B3B.76 §38.76
- - (20.71) - (20.71)
Investments in Equity,CCD,0CD during the year 17.672.00 - 1,313.50 18,985.50
(5,004.04) - (10.473.96) (15,478.00)
TRIL Roads Private Limited - 13.112.00 - - 13,112.00
- {2,450.00} - {2,450.00}
TRIL Urban Transpor! Private Limited 4.560.00 - - 4,560.00
- (2,554.04) - - (2,554.04)
Industrial Minerals and Chemicals Private Limited - - - 1,313.50 1,313.50
- - - {10,473.96) (10,473.96)
Sala of property, plant and equipment - - - - -
(28.32) {2.19) - (30.50)
Tata Sons Private Limited - - - - -
{28.32) - - - {28.32)
Ewart Investments Limited - - - - -
{2.19) - {2.19)
Inter Corporate Deposit Given - 43,086.52 - - 43,086.52
- (24.717.17) - - (24,717.17)
Arrow Infracstate Private Limited 180.00 - - 180.00
- (2,253.00} - - (2,253.00)
Gurgaan Constructwell Private Limited 477.00 - - 477.00
- {4.664.79) - - (4.664.79)
International Infrabuild Private Limited 9,937.95 - - 9,937.95
- {1,540.00 - - (1,540,00)
Gurgaon Realtech Limited 1.060.00 - - 1,060.00
(2,657.00) - - {2,657.00)
TR\ Roads Private Limited 3,925.00 - - 3,925.00
(8,363.00) - - {8,363.00)
TRIF Real Estate And Development Limited 22,837.00 B 22,837.00
{2,500,00) - - (2,500.00)
TRIL Urban Transpart Private Limited - 3.895.18 - - 3,895.18
(1,193.48) - - {1,193.48)
TRIL Amritsar Projects Limited 516.62 - - 516.62
{650.00) - - {650.00)
Cthers - 257.77 - - 257.77
(895.90} - {695.90)

)
S



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
CIN No: U70102MH2007PLC168300
Notes to Ind AS financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

(B}

Nature of Transactions / relationship / major parlies Holding Submd@y FE.“?“. Joint Yentures Total
company companies  subsidiaries

Inter Corporate Deposit Refunded - 48,799,483 - 48,799.48
- {7.490.33) - (7,490.33}

Arrow Infraestate Private Limited - - - - -
{2,453.52) - - (2,453.52)
Gurgaon Realiech Limited . 200,00 - 200.00
{3,228.81) - (3,228.81)
TRIL Amritsar Projects Limited 19,372.00 - - 19,372.00
- (1.030.00} - - {1,030.00}
TRIF Real Estate And Development Limited 25,162.00 - - 25,162.00
International Infrabuild Private Limited - 2.595,00 - - 2,585,00
- (763.00) - - {765.00)
TRIL Urban Transporl Private Limited - 1,462.48 - - 1,462.46
- (13.00) - - {13.00)
Others - 8.00 - - 8.00
NCD Subscription - 20,100.00 - - 20,100.00
TRIL Amritsar Projects Limited - 12,000.00 - 12,000.00
TRIF Real Estate And Development Limited - 8,100.00 - - 8,100.00
Project Management Consultancy fees 1,232.45 - 1,624.99 2,857.43
{2,158.91} - {1,118.49) {3,277.40)
Gurgaon Realtech Limited 493.98 - - 4563.96
- (1,045,486} - - {1,045.46)
International Infrabuild Private Limited - 44,11 - - 43.11
(14.35) - - {14.35)
Mikado Realtars Private Limited - 1,485.21 1,485.21
- {1.118.49) {1,118.49)
TAIL IT4 Private Limited 138.77 139.77

TRIF Real Estate And Development Limited - - -
{208.18) - {208.18)
TRIL Infopark Limited 425.37 - - 425.37
{422.92) - - (422.92)
Uchit Expressways Private Limfled - 269,00 - - 269.00
- {378.00) - - {378.00)

Hampi Expressways Private Limited - - - - .
- {96.00) - - {80.00)
Asset Management Fees - 1,032.89 - 135.75 1,168.64
- {972.88) - (148.40) (1,121.28)
TRIL Infopark Limited - 974.92 - . 974,92
{BB2.78} - - {882.78)
TRIL T4 Private Limied - - - 135.75 135.75
y . - (148.40) (148.40)
Others 57.97 - - 57.97
{80.10) - - {90.10)
Interest Income 1.561.64 - 1,465.20 3,026.84
- (1.609.79) - (1,465.20} (3,074.95)
TRIL Roads Private Limited - 1,164.20 B . 1,164.20
- 1.164.20} - - {1,164.20)
TRIL IT4 Private Limited - - - 1,465,20 1,465.20
- . - {1,465.20) {1,465.20)
TRIF Real Estate And Deveiopment Limited - 223.27 - 223.27
- (183,04} - (183.04)
Others - 17417 - - 174,17
- {262.51) - - (262.51)




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
CIN Ng; U70102MH2007PLC168300
Notes to Ind AS financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

{b} Nature of Transactions / relationship / major parlies Holding subs'd'?nf Fe.lllowl Joint Ventures Total
company companies  subsidiaries
Other Expenses 6.61 627.47 - 634.08
(2.20) - {530.21) - (532.41)
Ewart invesimenis Limited - - - -
- (175.30} - (175.30)
Tata Sens Private Limited 6.61 - - B 6.61
{2.20) - - {2.20)
Tata AIG General Insurance Limited - - 117.41 - 117.41
(151.46) - (151.46)
TC Travel and Services Limited - - - -
Tata Consulting Engineers Limited - - 491.79 - 491.79
(150.03) - (150.03)
Cthers - - 18.27 - 18.27
- - {53.42) - {53.42)
Reimbursement of expenses 9.1 794.42 294.38 36,31 1,144.22
(7.61} {1,093.47} {604.61) {29.38) {1,735.08)
Arrow Infraestate Privaie Limited - 0.02 - - 0.02
- (0.02) - - (0.02)
Gurgaon Realtech Limited - 190.38 B 190.38
- (214,17} . - (214.17)
Gurgaon Gonstructwell Private Limited - 0.07 - - 0.07
{0.04) - (0.04)
International (nfrabuild Private Limited - 20.45 - - 20,45
(68.47) - - (68.47)
TRIL Roads Private Limited - 257.28 - - 257.26
- (425.53) - - (425.53)
Tata Sons Private Limited 19.11 - - - 1911
(7.61) - - - (7.61}
TRIL Urban Transport Private Limited - 233.07 - - 233.07
(187.53) (187.53)
TRIL Amitsar Projects Limited - 7.64 - - 7.64
- {16.64) - - (16.64)
TRIF Real Estate And Development Limited 27.46 - 27.46
(57.30) - . (57.30)
Tata Housing Development Co, Limited 294,38 - 294.38
- (604.61) - (604.61)
QOthers - 58.06 - 36,31 94.36
- (123.77) - (29.38) {153.16)
Deposit Refund Received - - - - -
{150.00) - - - {150.00)
Tata Sons Private Limited - - - - -
{150.00) - - - {150.00)
Deposit Given - - 153.83 - 133.83
- - {34.90) - {34.90)
Tata Cansulting Engineers Limited - 153.83 153.83
- - (34.90) - (34.90)
Employee Benefit Transter - R R -
(56.50) - - - ({56.50)
Tata Sons Private Limited - - - -
{56.50) - - - (56.50)




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

CIN No: U70102MH2007PLC 168300

Notes to Ind AS financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2020
(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

(b)

Nature of Transactions / relationship / major parties Suh.r.ldlgnj Fe:"?w. Joint Ventures Total
companies  subsidiaries
Outstanding Balances Receivables -
inter Corporate Deposit - Cusrent - Unsecured 19,713.90 - 14,713.90
International Infrabuild Private Limited 9,579.95 - 8,579.95
Gurgaon Realtech Limited 1,060.00 - 1,060.00
TRIF Real Estate And Development Limited 675.00 - - 675.00
Gurgaon Gonstructwell Private Limited 477.00 - - 477.00
TRIL Urban Transport Private Limited 3,739,18 . - 3,739.18
TRIL Roads Private Limited 3,925.00 - 3,925.00
Others 257.77 - - 257.77
Inter Corporate Deposit - Non-Current - Unsecured 31.705.90 - - ,705.90
{57,549.38} - - (57,649.38)
TRIL Amritsar Projects Limited - B - -
(19.372.00) - - {19,372.00)
TRIL Roads Private Limited 24,801.00 - - 24,801.00
(24,801,00) - - {24,801.00)
International Infrabuild Private Limited - - - -
(2,237.00) - - (2,237.00)
Gurgaon Constructwell Private Limited 4,817.00 - - 4,817.00
{(4.825,00) - - (4,825.00)
Others 2.087.890 - - 2,087.90
{6,414.38) - - {6,414,38)
Interest Accrued bul not due 1,287.86 - 54.05 1,351.91
(2,806.57) - (64.23) (2,871.19)
TRIL Amritsar Projects Limited - - - -
{1,317.01) - - {(1,317.01)
TRIL Roads Private Limited 1,047.78 - - 1,087.78
(104778} . {1,047.78)
TRIL Constructions Limited 227.80
Qthers 12.28 - 64,05 76.33
{442.18} - (64.23) (506.41)
QOther Recoverable BO1.84 320.39 34.27 1,156.50
{1,429.19) {652.98) {14.46} (2,096.64)
Arrow Infraestate Private Limited 0.02 - - 0.02
{0.02) - - (0.02)
Gurgaon Realtech Limited 173.09 - 173.09
Gurgaon Constructwell Private Limited 0.04 - 0.04
{0.04) - (0.04)
TRIL Urban Transport Privale Limited 21.93 - 21.93
(759.28) - - (759.28)
TRIL Constructions Limited 204.73 - - 204.73
(199,17} - {1989.17)
TRIL Roads Private Limited 275.68 - - 275.68
{198.77) - - (198.77}
Tata Housing Development Co, Ltd. - 317,93 - 317.93
{652.98} (652.98)
Others 402.03 2.46 34.27 438.76
(271.91) - (14.46) (286.37) n

V9,
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
CIN No: U70102MH2007PLC168300
MNotes to Ind AS financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

(b}

Nature of Transactions / relationship / major parlies ci:i':r?y f:;:'::;: sulf;g?:ies Joint Ventures Total
Trade Receivable 22.55 801,92 300.00 734.51 1,858.99
- (749.16) (300,00} (257.69) {1,336.84)
Gurgaon Realiech Limited 391.34 - - 391.34
- {289.37) - - (289.37)
TRIF Real £state And Development Limited - - - -
- (175.79) - - {175.79)
TRIL Infopark Limited B 354.54 - - 354.54
(234.40) - - (234.40}
Mikado Realtors Private Limited - - 734.51 734.51
- - (272.83) (272.83)
International infrabuild Private Limited - B.40 - - 8.40
- (1.67) - - (1.67)
Tata Consultancy Services Limited - 300.00 - 300.00
- - {300.00) - {300.00}
Tata Sons Private Limited 22.55 - - - 22.55
Others - 47.65 - - 47.65
- (47.94) - (14.86) {62.80)
Provision for Inter Corporate Deposit 611.62 - - 611.62
- {95.00) - - (95.00)
TRIL Urban Transpaort Private Limited - 95.00 - - 95.00
{95.00) - - {85.00)
TRIL Amritsar Projects Limiled 516.62 - - 516.62
Provision for Interest Accrued but not due 10.00 - - 10.00
- {10.00) - - {10.00)
TRIL Urban Transpoert Private Limited 10.00 - - 10.00
{10.00) - - (10.00)
Internaticonal Infrabuild Private Limited - - - -
Provision far Advances recoverable - 35.00 - - 35.00
- {35.00) - - {35.00)
TRIL Urban Transport Private Limited 35.00 - - 35.00
{35.00) - - (35.00)
QOutstanding Balances Payable .
towards unsecured loans - - - - .
- (14,000.00) - {14,000.00)
Tata Housing Develapment Co. Ltd. - - - - -
- {14,000.00) - (14,000.00)
towards interest on unsecured loans - - - -
- - {18.64) - {18.654)
Tata Housing Development Co. Lid. - - - -
- - (18.64) - (18.64)
Trade Payable - 165.74 - 165.74
- - {6.54) - {6.54)
Tata Consultancy Services Limited - - 5.36 - 3.36
- - (6.54) - {6.54)
Tata Consulting Engineers Limited - 159.71 159.71
Tata Teleservices Ltd. - B 0.66 - 0.66
Managerial remuneration 1,132.76
{1,521.32}
Sanjay Dutt* 717.64
{1,007.897)
Sanjay Sharma 271.28
{179.44)
Arvind Chokhany -
(224.49)
Vinay Gaokar 111.99
(109.41)
31.86

Sudhakar Shetty

- Figures in brackets perlains to previous year.

* Recavery of managerial remuneration from fellow subsidiary is not netted otf for this disclosure.

g
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40 Seqgment Repariing

Tata Replly and Infrastructure Limited
GIN No: U70302MH2007PLE 168300

Metes to ind AS linantial suaternems

tor the yean ended 31 March 2020
[Cumeney. Indian rupees in lakhs)

Tna Company 15 angaged « oavalopmanr of real BSIAIE anG INIrAStudle TACkIBs 10 Mesderal use and projs Managament consullancy Sefisas tor reak eslale and
frastruCiure Oewaigpmant, Thas. ihe GoMpary 15 engaged i Ivez DuSic23s SEOMAnIS viz, osyelapmant of resdenhal progery Ior outnght sake. promet maragsmen! and
cansultancy aendices asd InvEsIment and tending serviees. Fudrer, |ne Compary 18 ergaged 0 prowding services 1n gomestie merkel onfy, Hence, there Bt no sepatate

o aph cal s

Travaloprwni of a3 ] propey (or oject manageme i and consufancy
ol hghit wale SenVicas
31 Mutch 2020 3§ Mamh 2018 31 Margh 2019

Investmeni and Lepding aervicen

Talal

31 hrergn 200G 31 karch 2020 31 March 2013 31 Wearch 020 31 hlareh 2015
REVENUE
Het sales
Segmenl Hevenus 15,608 57 1085305 4.024.07 4401 45 T4.809.05 1248888 a2 Seafg LIRS
fritar segment salas - - - - . .
Tatal revenus 1360881 1% 253.03 402807 £,401 BB 1450585 12 4BERS FZ a8 kg Fara0
Segmen! Expenses ld0as 87 B,236.33 7000 1 B4 15 504393 10,681,0% 2082543 2031250
HESULT
Sagment Aeswl 433,20 2ma.ro 2308.05 2.7E7Y 73 SHEEAR 1.803 BT 1T ME*? H804.20
Unallerared ngome - - L] 125 44
Unallnzated eqpanias B - - 320447 Gazax
Dparabng Srolt . |Laas wsa.20| 21670 2.300.0% 17E73 9.8845.52 +,B03.87 B 520,72 LRI
Frante zosts allccaied - - - 2843817 16,826.05 2543077 18,825,058
Frianta makl unabiocaisd B - - - - - - 4 *B3.85
[impraciaton | Amarmata s kA¥] 1344 g2.14 3231 214 §33 13143 140,87
Wel Profil . [Losa ) VABLF 200247 221381 ATHED 118 Faved T G823, 21167 25 r3gram
COTHER INFORMATICH
ASSETE
Segrmanl Asaen JLB03.18 &3, JA201 325402 1,203.00 SAt 3625 a.76, 14458 81347085 520 74,51
Unaliot #tsd assefs . . . - . B Gha g7 B 21240
Talal Asseis 3d4.B0T. 18 4136201 325402 130800 S84 36355 47614450 B2 2EL 37 526 AT 41
LIASL TES
Segmar Liahilties 448358 659108 29047207 236,979,594 AT Y5ETS 25362143
Unallaceted Laoilhas - - - 2897155 5454004
Talal Uskiies 4,489 58 BEI4E - 20547207 22697951 A3 AT EY 320 15146
G ncurad to acouie Segmert
propsTy ol and squinmant 171 343 #6845 L 26641 7238 53858

e sha yeak

Segment accounting policles

Segmerd acCuurtng folcias ara n lime with 2- sounbing policies ol the Company b additign |he folowiny speciiz acuoumng pohcies nave bean lollowsd for segmant regariing
Saqmanm ravanuR ACiuoss Mo sl Genihaplz wilk he segments
Espansas (ha are diractly denotahle wak the segments are gonsigered ‘or daermining the sepmani “esull. Eapenses weich rglala o the Company as 2 whola ang nay alocaols 10 s9gmems and
sipenses which ralate 10 tha cperaling actvmias af iha seQment ul are IMGEAGKCANE 10 altogate o 108 3e0mant. 3r8 InuZed Lros "Unallocatis g«pansas

InGama which fgiates 10 the Company 85 2 whols ana not alocatle |0 sagmanda 13 included n Unalkacale mcams aad nefied off Fom Uratiocabls sxpensas,

Segmen| aszets ant hamlipes relude (hoss dirachy

as 8 whele and ol allocabls 1 any segmen

with the respeciive

r

corporats assas and hakil lies represen: (e assels ard lkabiives |Fal refate to the Compss



Tats Realty and Infrastruciure Limited
CiM No: UF N I2MH2007 PLC 1EBIN0

Naotes 1o ind AS Enancial stalements

tor Ihe vear ended 31 March 2020

[Cumency: Indian rupaes i lakhs)

41 Empwyig Bonefs:

iy

1l

)

The Compary has 2200120 Ind AS 19 on “Em¥opas Benatis as prescobad by the Gompan s Indan Accgunhng Stardards| Rulss 2H5 s3uet by *he Central Bovemmeant

Conlribwidn 10 Pravident fund

COnirnuhon [0 providan! lund racognaed 25 An SaGANSE unasr "Empioyes

Benerhils®,

Defined Benafit Plana
Gratuhy

128.79

o W ¥ Wereh 2078

134,56

Tha Company Ras a defined Ganedil gratue Iy plan. Every emplovag wha nas completed live years of ma'e of $anving Qers & gratuy an

dealr or ¢ ar

| Changs in the defined Benafil obiigation

Lizhdily i the begnring of g yoae

krteresl eoest

Zunrerl sannce cost

Senatils pat

Acluanal less on ohliganong

Bty getuirad on acquistan (S50 st or Diyesimres
Llablkty at the and of the year

U Amount Recognised in the Balance Sheet
Liabulzy at the end ol tha pear
=air Yahua of Plan Assats a1 1he 3nd of the peee
ifterenoe

Amoum reeagrised [0 the Balence Shes

E Racogniaed in the
Curen! Samice Cost
imigsagL Goat
Ewpected Retuin on Plar Agsals
wat Acl.and |Gging  Loss Ta Be ABCogrisaad
Fagl seryee cosi

Expense Aecognised in 1he sialement al praft and Joas

of proin and loss

Balance Sheet Reconeilaten

Oparung re1 kability

Espensa as acove

Employer's contnbulion racesed © ipad|

BRIty ACOUFRE oA AtUISIHoN . (321! 1ed 00 Cere stture
Amound recognred i Balance Sheel

Actuarial Assumptions ;
Discoum Fate
Salary escalahon

|cudalad a5 por sha Payrmanh gt Gratmy Act, |97 win nogeding.
TaTwarch 31 Werch 0

I67.93
25,893
S57.08

87.08)
1w

4123

a7.c8
255

BT 3t

kLT )
.38
87021

ELaRL]

RS
7 00%

Arrien Jate Cireciers - M1, Age #1-30 yeais - 5%, Age 3°-40 years - 3%, Age 4159 yoars - 2%

Estmaras oi tufure salary INGreasas. consizared in attuanal valualion raks aecount of milalian sznenhy, prametge and oiber rgkevan] factis, such as suphly arg dar-and in the

amoyment market,

ADT 56
KIK:r
058

(B9.56|

{52.55]

I6T.S3

3793

J67.92
6793

7058
nar

152 65)

1090

60758
48.9)
(&858

TS5

105
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(Currgncy: Indian rupees in lakhsy

42 Financial Insiruments - Falr values and rigk mansgemeni
A, Accauniing classification and fafr vahuos
Tha boklownng 1able sNOWS 1"a CAIMWIG =MAunis and fal vahas ol tngnoal asgets and hnanoial laolines, hefudrg thin [Bvals in e - valug hieraschy. | ooes ngt ingude far vasue inlormatlen to
fnanesal asssis and hoanc al figbilihes f e carrymg amoun! 15 3 reasanable apgroxesanon of far value, The Company's sacurad |nan vnder gurdant malunbas has been ponvacked 21 Apabng faias of
wntgaEst, which arn rasei at short inferyals, Accordingfy, ibe carmpng vakue of such fang-1am 4301 aparon maigs fair vaks.

Carrying amaunl Falt yakie
TR Levil T - Qualed prce Leve! 2- Sgniioant Lavel 3 - Signiken
31 March 2020 FuToet Amarms g Co Tt in agLive mark:u oh um::l npAE unobeerva bgle inpuis Toist
Financial 25aets
Non-cuwant fmancial asseta
- Equrty Indirumarts n 2E1IM A 281 770,21 2417703t 28177035
JubaEnes it i lres and
asscsala
- Figiarence sna'es . 6085931 - 6087433 &0.854.33 E&,B54.31
- Bonds and deben lures B7.691 R 1271445 B 140,03 [ NET:E 104,126 §1 108,148,381
Long-term Twans ind adyances 3371919 - - 36,709,139 3,709,059 39,M15.19
Crner Aop-cunank inancial assals 078 0,75 0rs 073
Currenl Inmoc nl assota
(Currant ryggomenis EAREL N | . TraTea? ELREBE) . TLITEE
Trede racenables 187848 |AFRa2 . 187342 187849
Can and cash @quiyalans - - 25,5803 2558030 25.580.30 25.580.30
[CHha: Bank Satancas 41825 41325 413 8% 41935
Sher-am |sars #hd adwaneces 24845t 2,484,510 246451 ZABLEY
Jrat marcol assmy - - | 42501 1.428.8¢ - - I AzE.81 142851
Tom| Financis) Asses 20, 5004 3.34,935.49 3991274 5.73.432.01 7117432 - 5,02, 252 68 5,73 40501
Financml Habilihes
Wotcurment Financal (o e
Lorg-121m DoTowngs EARAI0R 13241904 1390130 13541903
Inlar & apcrad bud mof 2.8 an - 407109 07104 507109 E.O7T.06
barmening:
Current Flnaneiae lab/ftias
Shart-lerm barasngs - 5 303,20 95.303.21 LR ERL §6.392.21
Tiade and olkar Eayables ojher 1.rB5 65 3.185.45 - 318545 ERLE
Ihen MSFE
enar finar il wenllty Fa000 - ST.011.53 £4,132.43 - 5413253 &4.130.53
Tatal FlrureLal o AT - 3,00,930.52 EYTRETET) - - 3408,111.92 EETREEF 7]
Carrying ameaunt Fair value
Leual 1 - Duoted price al 2. 5l . LT
37 March 2033 FeTeL FyToEl Amartizad Conl Tanal In LCIiUOIIITiIk;T! L:I:llla:vahm:;ll:‘ Lll-:::!!:rvlsxlllﬂll! Tonat
Financka] azapts
fMon-currenl Inancisl azasls
- Fequity INFArLmMancs n 2923319 28231330 2B 0 26231310
909 O ArS. |Re1| ¥RAara s And
asiagiate
- Pra'sranca a-amz 5554340 . 55.548,40 536.538.40 S55430
- Aords and dakrenearag 49 397 56 Y0.EIE TR Banag BBAT4.2E aA 174 25 BA,17478
tang-tarm loars and advancey 5T 124 44 . - 5213448 52 124 43 4312448
Sikar pon-curtan | iaang sl agers - ar5 .75 nr s
Cuerent linancial azasts
Gurrant irematments arrag . Iraz EVRCFS - niaz
Trada razanables - 1.3678r 139751 1378 T, 39787
Camh and rash squnalents - HEE 445,25 44595 a5 25
Crunar Bank Balancat Lb1.89 44489 41458 5
Shantaarm Krank and advan: gs 2MET 231377 234370 FATLN
[{Cxnar Nrancial AgTers - - 285118 2.861.19 - - 286118 LEE1,15
Tokal Finencist Assets £.21.812.46 3,208,038 28 15,619.46 4,85 071.1% 311,82 - 1656547 4,63,871,12
o Iewtnl s

Hor-cwrenl Financial lahilllies
L3AG-IART Bormw Ngs 7?5015 T2a50.15 FRAE0,1T T1,880.15
fudremd Amcrmd Tet 1ok dus on 11,42%, 58 1042558 142558 1142553
barta snas
(Curenl Finanelal (Mbiies
g i borowngs 04 8515 4058515 34568515 94,685,153
Tradw and othr apables ather 345809 145807 405603 a.448.00
than WEME
Cishet lnanessl Hal il ¥ 183 M 1.17 37020 ta503ead 1,25092.20 125,050 9%
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Tata Realty and infrasirucive Limited
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Hales o knd AS Hnancial statemenls:

for Ihe yeat ended 31 March 2020
{Currency: Indwan rupees in Akhs)

FYTPL . Fair valued throeugh grofh o Bas
FYTOC! - Falr valued 1hrough ollver camprohenatva lheame

B. Measurement of lar vahias

Ml and

arebaotvabla mpuls
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valarty
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Troe Yahunhon wechngus Signilie anl int-ralatian ahip batwean
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Aeaars Private Lrmted:
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43 Discloaure In respect of Sale of Residential Fiste
Disclosure with raspeat to ransition adjustment ol vAS 115 Foy the yaar andad
3t warch 2018
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Clpersig Patamed Eammgs 10a13ra ing AF 115 17,728,541
Revarsal gf revenue 37443,
Ravorsal of Copl O 5ak8 187038
Opering Rstained Eamirg (Atier nd AS 145) (19,032.58)
Incronne bn kvendery 187038
Decregse in Trade Recelvable (CHRer than retated Party] {2,174.43)
DAsclogursy in reapect of Conatruction Conlecty
eatEn Far the year ended For Ihe yoar endad
Part ™ 31 March 2024 31 March 214
Coniracl ravenue TECognISad 45 erderd dunng the year 13.050.27 3,463.27
Particul, 11 March 2020 31 March 2019
TumuTaieg "Bvens raceamasd (5010 et ot T BG 115 adjusiman] 5]
4 174,42 Lashg! 1,20 381 48 1.07.330 21
Zumuigiive 345 1B sgsed (2019 re| o1 ind AT 115 adiusimenl KA 2
187028 Lashs) BT 2e0n.23
Sur-utalive manging accounien 356575 34,724 .38
Advanses pad - B3.39
Fetention mongy cayatds 46,10 34754
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limlted
CIM Ne: U70N02MHZ007PLC 168300

Noles 1o Ind AS financial stalements

for the year ended 31 March 2020

{Currency: Indian rupees in fakhst

Risk mansgement framework
The Compary s beard of aireclors has Qearal raspOnG CHING *0F N3 2StE0NSHMEN| ang Gvarsighl 01 tha Comgany 3 [ 5k Manageman: famewars. Tha Company manaies market nsk
coantrol over tha anbire PrOCE3S Ol Market ngk mareagwmem_ The lreuu'y ﬂepamnenr ¢ Ameerds gk

thrgugh 3 Treasury depar whizh am
managmeanl pbjscives and palioies wWhich are dperoved by Boad cll Directors. The aetwdles of thes pepartment incloge - ol cash . g SIELED
BASunn] camghanee with market righ, imis and pol cas.

The Cempary 5 frgh MA"ag palces ag fished tg identify and analyse the ks faced by \re Company, 10 set approonale nisk limits and Lonirols 200 10 MONKSF kG ang
acharerce b limts. Rigk management policies and sys1BMs ara raviewad requlary 1 rallact chamges i market canonons ang Ive Company's achviies, Tha Campary thraugh ks
irainng and management slardards and protedves @ms 10 Malnain g ik ard Gants i wrih 88 ermloyees LrosrsEand thes rokes and
obhgalnrs

Tha audit i nw comgharce with the company's isk Managamen| polices ard procedwes, and faviews e adequacy oi the nsk

MANEGEMEA Iramawork n rslabion i the Tighs faved by Ihe Comgany The audil commities is assistad n s aversighl rale oy inlemal awtt. niammat Audn uAdanzhas DR regurar
and ad hoc rewiews ol 7isk managemanl conitys and pOCR0urss. e 1asults of wiEn a2 epone 10 the AutR ZOMmMas

A Credi Aish

Credn nsk 15 1he 115k oi Lnaroal (088 fa Ing Company 1| @ cusiomer ar Counarpamy 10 & hnana gl INsrumant fds 10 maet 15 coqtraciudl oBigalans, &0 anass phreipally ram the
Compary 5 les from ¢ Inans snd 0 FEIAIEY pAMES 2Nl MwasIments al amarhzed cosl. Creod Asi 1S managed Mraugh b approvals astag)ghng
ated 1 Imls ant cor i3ly g e itmarttiness of tc which |he Company grants credil f&mms In Ihe normal causes of buslrass, The Compary sstablishes
an alkwa~ce far doubiul debis eng rmp thal rap s Al meurrad loxses in respec! of iade and ofe recewables loans and sovarces and avesiments,

Ttadca and clhar racpivables

Tha COmMpany s oxposLne t Creda nsh 15 mNEencall mainy By (M widwit.al ic3 of eBCT . The d 5 af Ihe cuslamar, Inclutdep the dmau rek 31 ine
QSN 3N 20uning ik which ME cuSIo™Es Operates alsc Nas an fkeqce an sred | ek aasessment, Credl agk is managed [hrough credht apcrovals, Bstapieiung cradit limits and
centinudusly markiaring the creditworifungss of customats 10 which the Compary grants o ettt ferm s o tha rormal wourse o business.

Cradil risk for recebab e perinining 1o resldential buskmss
Tha ngk for trads recavaolas geraining Io LUSTESS 15 il 35 e of e prapeny |5 trarsiartzn anly atier 7 receipl of paymEnl Tom

e cLeIgmar.

Summary of the Company s 8xposues 19 Grae ash Oy age of 1he BLAsIENOIng fHOM Y2mous SUSEMEDS &5 &5 [IDWS.
31 erch 2030 31 March 23

Porliculars
Pas| dug But Aol smpsired

Zasi dus =30 Hays 141139 B4A1.12
Past dus 91-180 days 3,05 9 48
Pasidua 1%1-365 days 347 9633
Pasigue o than 365 days 42421 S53.28
1SR ECZ TN

Cash and canh squivalenis
Tha Compary Reld £aSH and DA™k DalBNCEs wIIN Craml wolky Darks ard fnandal (nafiiukans of WA 25 000.730 tashs and INF 89062 fakhs ax gt 3* March 2020 and 31 Mazz-
2013 12xpactively. The credii worthnness of Such Danks and 5 -~areal inkl.tems 18 evaluated by ihe management on an tmgomg Lasls and & consdered 10 be poad.

Dertvsiivs

The gervatives e enlafad nb with cradif warkhy courterps ties. The credit P & 2uakiated by 1he Fal 00 an pngong ass and is congidared 10 09 Goao.

Sacurily deposits givan fo Hasors
The 5a0uf Iy JBpasT ~a)0rly panaing fa rant depoad amaunhing o INFA WK 1axhs and INF 2264 lakos ag at 1t March 2020 and 31 March 2010 respecively, Tre Company 9oms nal

Expecl any Io55es rom non-parfamianes by thesas counter-par 25

B. Liquidity risk

Liuadity s 5 the risk {hal 1hs Domoany wil nod be able g mear s hnansal oolgations 38 Ney 08coma gud. The ComMtany ™anages (s haudlity NSk &y ansulig. a3 far as
possible thal ik will always rave Suthcignr Quediny 10 Magk 15 DA0IMES whar oua. undar BEN A mal and sir2ased CoAMNMOng. wihdul INCuMAQ LNBCEaDIablE IE2as of ek (o he

Company s repliatan,
The Gompany has cofaned wrd and asn-fund based wartng capital loes fror parks, commarngl gapers (53uen (0 Vufual funds &nd Iiroagh issue ol Jebanures  The Company

250 cangenlly monters funting ophons avakable v the 2ebr a~d caplal markgts with 3 wew to mainfaimng imancial e bdioy,

Exposure Io fguidity sk

The acla cakow sralyses the Combany = hnanceal liaotiles 1nto mievan) mawrty proupengs basad on ther conractual mawumegs (o

" @l nor derivallve irancial lratulives

N NG OGS 380180 83 valie dinansal nStrumen|s ko which e cortractel ma'unies are 2asenhal 100 10 undersand ng al [ne by i ihe casn fdows.

Contractuat cash thawe
A # 31 March, 2024 Carrying asnount Totsl 1 yoar or lgag 142 ypars 25 yeurs More than
5 vyaars
Har-derivative financial fnbl|H ks
Commercial paper s sued 1o 75 a0s.2r 73.000.90 Ta.000.00 - -
mural ngs
Irter Soporabe Cepas:s - . - - -
Trada and olher payahias 318545 318565 ERLEY - -
Bank cwardrat - - - .
Othes hranoat habd s §3.032.62 693434 sFanaTT 5332 57 -
Tenm Laas har Garks .06 20 00000 0.000.00 - - -
Man conyerible decenises 13941204 17950000 #0000 Ya.50ma00 BY UGG
3.00,990.52 4.43,679.95 1,98, 16742 ?&u!.&? 5700600 .
Derivativa firancinl Babiities
Deryatives latulitas at far EAFIR Tid ERFARIY - - -
vakie
712100 FA21.00 7.521.00 - - =
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members of TATA Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of TATA Realty and
Infrastructure Limited ("the Parent”} and its subsidiaries, (the Parent and its subsidiaries together
referred to as “the Group®) and the Group’s share of loss in its joint ventures, which comprise the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2020, and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and
based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate financial statements of the
subsidiaries and joint ventures referred to in the Other Matters section below, the aferesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”} in the manner s¢ required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended ('Ind AS"), and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2020, and their
consolidated loss, their consolidated total comprehensive loss, their consclidated cash flows and their
consolidated changes in equity for the yvear ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consclidated Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing specified under section 143 {10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibijlity for the Audit of the Consolidated
Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group and its joint
ventures in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibiiities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI's
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us and the audit evidence obtained by
the other auditors in terms of their reports referred to in the sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters
section below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements.

g ets

Regd. Office; Indiabulls Finance Centre, Tower 3, 27%-32™ Floor, Senapati Bapat Marg, Eiphinstone Road (West), Mumbai - 400013, Maharashtra, India,
{LLP Identification No. AAB-8737)
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Infarmation Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

. The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board of Directors report, but does not include the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

«  Our cpinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information
and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

s In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financiail statements, our responsibility is to
read the other information, compare with the financial statements of the subsidiaries and joint
ventures audited by the other auditors, to the extent it relates to these entities and, in doing so,
place reliance on the work of the other auditors and consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained
during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. Other information
so far as it relates to the subsidiaries and joint ventures is traced from their financial statements
audited by other auditors.

e [f, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements

The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financiat perfermance including other comprehensive
income, consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in eguity of the Group including its joint
ventures in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint ventures are
responsible for maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and its joint ventures and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adeguate internal financtal controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting recerds, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial statements by the Directors of the Parent Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Beard of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and joint ventures are responsible for assessing the ability of the respective
entities to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either intends to
liguidate their respective entities or to cease operations, or has no realisti¢ alternative but to do so.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its joint ventures are
aiso responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its joint ventures.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
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but is not a gquarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circurmstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are
also respeonsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Parent has adequate internal financial
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

« FEvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the management.,

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and its joint ventures to
continue as a going concern. If we concluge that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the refated disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group and its joint ventures to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

+ Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group and its joint ventures to express an opinion on the consolidated
Ind AS financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the audit of the financial statements of such entities or business activities included in the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other
entities or business activities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which have
been audited by the other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them, We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other entities included in
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Other Matters

{a) We did not audit the financial statements of three subsidiaries, whose financial statements reflect
total assets of Rs. 3295,03,88 lakhs as at 31 March, 2020, and total revenue of Rs. 816,11.20
takhs and net cash inflows amounting to Rs. 23,10.52 lakhs for the year ended on that date,
as considered in the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements
aiso include the Group’s share of net loss of Rs. 1,38.59 lakhs for the year ended 315t March,
2020, as considered in the consolidated financial statements, in respect of three joint
ventures, whose financial statements have not been audited by us. These financial statements
have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management
and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts
and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries and joint ventures and our report
in terms of subsection (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiaries and joint ventures is based solely on the reports of the other auditors.

{b) we did not audit the financial statements of two entities who were subsidiaries up to 9 December
2019 whose financial statements reflect total revenues of Rs.25,54.37 lakhs and net cash
inflows amounting to Rs. 4,66.39 lakhs, as considered in the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2020. The group divested their shareholdings In these entities on
9 December 2019. These financial statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us by
the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in s0 far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, is based solely
on such unaudited financial statements. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us by the Management, these financial statements are not material to
the Group

Cur opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements above and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our
reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements certified
by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of the reports
of the other auditors on the separate financial statements of the subsidiaries and joint ventures
referred to in the Other Matters section above we report, to the extent applicable that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid
consolidated Ind AS financial statements.

%2 Ll
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b)

c)

d)

f

9)

h)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the
aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from
our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors.

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including Other
Comprehensjve Income, the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows and the Consolidated
Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS
financial staterments.

In our opinicn, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Parent as on 31st
March, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company and the reports of the
statutory auditors of the subsidiary companies and the joint venture companies incorporated
in India, ncne of the directors of the Group companies, and joint venture companies
incorporated in India, is disqualified as on 31 March, 2020 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in the Annexure
which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent, subsidiary companies and joint venture
companies incorporated in India. Qur report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of internal financial contrels over financial reporting of those
companies.

With respect to the other matters to be inciuded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
infarmation and according to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Parent
to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and accerding to the explanations given to us:

i) The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on
the consolidated financial position of the Group, and joint ventures.

i) Provision has been made in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, as required under
the applicable law or accounting standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on
long-term contracts including derivative contracts.
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i} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Parent Company, and its subsidiary companies,
and joint venture companies incorporated in India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

W"-"ﬂ"“”

Rajesh K. Hiranandani

Partner
Membership No. 32690
UDIN: 20036920AAAACC1788

Murnbai, 06 July 2020
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ANNEXURE TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’'S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph f under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls: Over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of TATA Realty and
Infrastructure Limited ("the Parent”/ “the Company”) as of and for the year ended 31 March, 2020, we
have audited the internal financial controls aver financial reporting of the Parent and its subsidiary
cornpanies and joint ventures, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Parent, its subsidiary companies and joint ventures, which are
companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reperting criteria established by the respective
Companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance
of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Parent, its subsidiary companies and its joint ventures, which are companies incorporated in India,
based on our audit and based on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate Ind AS
financial statements of the subsidiaries and joint ventures referred to below in the Other Matters
paragraph. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other
auditors of the subsidiary companies and joint ventures, which are companies incorporated in India, in
terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit apinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting
of the Parent, its subsidiary companies and its joint ventures, which are companies incerporated in
India.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refiect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the ¢company; and

3. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internai financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial
controfs over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree
of complfiance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinicn to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based
on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors referred to in the Other Matters paragraph
below, the Parent, its subsidiary companies and joint ventures, which are companies incorporated in
India, have, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31
March, 2020, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial reporting established by
the respective companies considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India
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Deloitte
Haskins & SelilsLLP

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of
the internal financial controls over financial reporting insofar as it relates to three subsidiary companies
and three joint ventures, which are companies incorporated in India, is based solely on the
corresponding reports of the auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

M’A

Rajesh K. Hiranandani

Partner

Membership No. 36920

UDIN: 20036920AAAACC1788

Mumbai, 06 July 2020
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Consolidated Ealance Sheet as a1 31 March 2020
[Curency: Indian nepess in lakhs)

Nate 3t March 2020 31 March 2009
i ABSETS
1 Mgo-current #ssels
(2l Property, plant and equipment Hay 1682 LRI
Ib)  Capital work-in-progress N 118 121
1y Inangible assers - Softwir. 8 L] B
1l Investment property 4 (ap pEIE 2] 30211
te]  Right 0 use an asset ERT) 124 833 -
1fr Invesiment property under conttrucimon 5 B.ATI 141 368
Ig)  Goedwill oo consalidation +1c1 19,053 Mize
[h}  Intanpible assets unger de\dapmen)u.ndﬂ Service Concesnan r 148,518 24,163
Adtanpaments
{1} Imangible asseis under Service Cpncession Arrimgemenrs L] L7124 4535
(0 Fmancial assets
{it nvestment accounled using Eguity Method q 70,687 T3,130
{it) Other Invegtments 14 2z 21
(i) Oiher Financial assets HH 7,204 17T
ik} Defomed tas assels (Meth 12 9592 G35
) Noo vument Lox assels (Mal) 13 L2359 . 10,389
(m}  CHhET ROR-CWITERE RRsels 4 21311 15,175
MNon-current asyety 925400 2,16,751
2 Curreat assels
fa} Invenlories 15 kLR 43.718
ik} Financial assets
11} Trade and other recerables 14 2,365 2.B44
{ii} Cash and cash equialents 17 19,940 391
(1ii} Bank balances gcher than 1) above L] 119 1.579
[iv) Other Trvestmenis 1% TR 1,383
{vp Shon-derm kans and advances an 1389 JAsd
tvil Qiher Fmancinl assels n 5,303 L.98¢t
Ic)  Other eurent ass=ts a 10,161 o]
Currend asgets 154,844 65,870
TOTAL ASSELS 10,806,244 .82.621
1L EQUITY AND LIARD ITIES
1 Equity
fal Eguity share capital n 100,73 14,7310
{buiy Other equite 4 4910 173.834)
Equity atrribuable 1o owners 1.06,641 11895
{bIli} Mon-conmollmy ntoesis 4 6,354 6,617
L1305 19502
2 Noa-Curremt Linbilities
130 Fmancial Lahilities
iy Borrowingy 25 596,749 344488
18} Ouher financial fiabilinies il Q8814 [RIEN L]
(b}  Lang-term provisions iy 1358 3260
(cp  Deferred wax liahifines | Nett 4 2011 1584
17 Other nomcurnent liahilities a6 175 11340
111117 6,63.937

3 Correay Usbilities
{2} Financial fiabilitcs
(1) 3hont term borrowings an L0541 | X374
(i) Trade and ather payabhes

Fom Micro and Small Enterprises 3 £ 3
fom ather than Miczo and Small Entarpnses n 5473 LR ]
1} Other financial liahikities ks 128,765 IR ]
ik Oither current fizbilities 33 7..01 T35
€} Shurt term provisions M kN ot
fd]  Curreni ras liabiitees [Met) 35 1756 I.783
234492 80am2
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIARILITIES 10.80.2H 9.82,621
Sigmilicant accounting policics -
Notes to the consolldaded Tud AS Fmancials sratements 3enl
The neees referred above fomm an muegral pam of these I financial stat
As per our repary of even dare afached
For DELOFTTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP For and on bebatf of the Bogrd of Directocs of
Charlered Accoumianis Tata Realty sad [nfrad tructore T imited
tEurm's Registranan Na £ E73eoW - KH &1 T Ko: UTH B2MHNRTR, C [H33MA0
’\-/4-\, . " Ll
- - s Lg,b//‘
W LS !»i_- s :/”_I‘ i
Rajesh K. Himnandami Banmall wals Sanfay Darr F. N. Sabedar
Fariner airan Manaying CHrecror Directar
DIN - 0120029 DN - 05351670 [N - 028423
N
X anjay Sharma
Chief Financial Officer Company Secrerary
tembership No- 413200
Mumnbai Mustbai
Dt July, 2020 0 July, 2020
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Tata Realty and [nfrastructure Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
{Currenicy: Indian ropees in lakhs)

Note
1 Revenue from operations 36
11 Other income 37
LiL} Total income (I +11)
IV Expcnses
Cost of flats sold kL
Construgtion costs 39
Employee benefit expenses 40
Finanee oosts 41
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3iby
Dnlier expenses 42

Total expenses (IV)

v Loss hefore share of lass {net) from Joint ventares and cax (I11- 1Y)
VI Add:  Share of (loss) from joint ventures
VIl  Loss before tax (V-VD
VIl Tax Expenses:
Current tax
Deterred tax charge
IX  Loss for the year (VIL-VIII)

X Less:  Share in loss twansErred to non-confrolling inlerest
X[ Loss for the year attributable to gwners {IX - X)

X Other Comprehensive Income
A Itemns that will mot ke reclassificd to profit or loss
Remeasuremenis of defined benelit hizbility
Income tax relating te ikems that witl not be reclassified 1o profit or loss
B Items that will be reclassified to profit or lass
Xt Tota! Comprehensive lncome for the year (XI + X1}
(Comprising Luss and Other Comprehensive [ncome (s the year afier non-coniralling interest)
XIV  Eamings per equity share : (Face Value per share Rs. 10 gach)
(1) Basic 43
{21 Diluted *

* Dilwted EPS for the year ended 31 March 2020 is anti-dilutive hence not considared

tot

Significant secounting policies
Notes to the consolidated Ind AS Nnancials staternents i-al

The notes rafermed above torm an inlzgral part of thesz conselidated Brancie! statements,
As per our report of even date anached

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered docountanis
(Fimm = Registiration Mo 1 7366 AW 1000 | 8y

2

Rajesh K. Hiranandani
Partner

[l

AN

Mumbai
06 July, 2020

/: i
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\ "]
™

Banmali Agkawala
Chdioman
DEN - 01 20029

31 Mareh 2020 31 March 2019

1,57,87¢ 167,816
5,998 5616
163,877 1,74,432
12,119 6.2
64,023 83,003
7,965 8259
60,186 52,053
17,251 16,858
37,951 18,355
1,99,515 1,949,944
(35,638) 120512}
{198) {633)
{35,816) (21,145)
353 B
300 1806
(36,48%) (21,915}
{233} (221
(36,256 (23,693}
3 33
{3 {14)
{36,254) (23,651)
(3.56) (23N
{3.56) @33

For and on behe!l of the Bourd of Directors af
Tata Realty and Inlrastructure Limited
CIN No: UT0102)H2007PLCI68300

NV W P2

v i D
SATEY LAl

Managing Director
DN - 032315670

F. %, Subedar
Drectar
DIN - Q0028428

.'.Ei @[J &r’ 77 -

Sanjay Sharma Sudhakar Shetty
Chief Financial OHicer Campany Secrelary
Membership No: A13200

Murnbai
06 July. 2020



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Consolidated statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 Morch 2020
{Currency: [adiad upees o fakhs)

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
A Cash flows lmom operasing aedvitles :
|Loes) hefars tax 135.836) 121.143)
Adfusted tor:
Depreeiation and amurtisation 17,251 (0433
Excess provision written back (141 7
Profit o sale of current vesnpents @ Alenal Funds 1H02) 1273
Proviston Tor doubttud debts - credit impaired wntten back 172 -
Provigian for Major Mainteramc= of Road 1218 Lo
flark to Market loss  {gam) on Forward * Denvatwe Contracs 1103 3320
Mark to Markat gain on curment investroens i s lurual fnds 425y 10l
Provision for credit impaorcd Trade Receivables Jub in
Provision for cradit impeired Inter corporate deposits 517 .
ddvapces writien oif 07 4430
Inierest income (467 11953
Finance custs 60,186 1WA
Share ol loss fom joint ventures 198 LX)
Frafit on sale of properry. plant and 2quipinent il -
|mpamment loss on Goodwil) - 750
Impament oss on assers 11,314 -
Loss on Suic of Nog-Cwrent [nvesmients 34 -
Provizwon for Ewmploves Denefils 1 |38
Loss on sals of property. plant and equipment ] 3l
BT.244 MM
Onperating profit before working cepiral changes 51404 48434
Changes in working capital
|Incrense)  Deerepse i Trade Recoivables 1133y 1315
Decreasa in Inventorias 10,131 T4
iincrensed - Decrenase in Leans & Zdvamess, Other Financial Assets and Olher Currear Assers L3 1005
Decrease ip Trade payables {13843 182340
Increase * {Dgcrease) o Other financl Habiliies, coreod and noa surrent Liabitites andd provisions 13,132 12,7651
18,396 4001
Cagh Mows generated from operarions 69,B01 54,390
Taxzs paid |oot of refund mogivedt | 1,835} 12,320
Met cash flows generated from operating acavities a7.945 52,500
B Cash Aows From investing activibies :
Payment for prchase and consmuciioo df propery. plaot and aquiptien (109 16572}
Proceeds on sale of property. plant and equpment 15 [Kik]
Purchase off zihiz assets  intangibke assets under develgpiment {68280y (82 3435)
Purchise of investment property ' invesnnent propenty under constructico {15651} 3R
[NVeSIImEE in JOINT ventres 13.756) (L 470
[n¥eshoenl in equity shares af other colnpanics [LE9)
Praceeds from sake ol investmenis tn murual funds 3, T804k
lavestments o mutual fimds 14,46,5303
Redempbion - {Invesmoent) in fixed depusis under lien (meld 1360
Proceeds on account of Jivesrmem of invesiments in subdidiares q177 .
Interest recerved 3,783 L
Nel cash flows fused in) investing acoivides {1.53,121) 11.23.502)
C Cash flows from Anagcing activities ¢
Proceeds ¢ (Repayment) fom shon terin borasw inges e 4840 39,274
Proceads fom lony term bomowings 99216 125,583
| Repayment} of lony kemin borow ings {47,310 1In 479
Righis |ssue Application Money Received 120,000 B
Procoeds from Minonin nterest - 13
Fimance cosis paid 1680615 154,615
Ner eash generated from financing activities L.08. 466 59,782
Net idecreaset incash and bank balioces (4~B+Ct A0 [P
Cash mud bank balances. bewimning of the year 3921 7141
Decrease in cash and cpsh equrvalents due tw divestment in subsihanes 47
Cash and hank bafancas, end of vear (refer pote 171 29,940

)




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Consolidated statement ol cash flows as at 31 March 2019 (Comtinued)
{Currcncy: Indian rupees in lakls)

Notes:
3] Cash and bank balances include the following :

Cash nnd cash equivalents ) 3 March 2020 A1 Murch 219
Cash balence k! a3
Balance with scheduled banks:
- in ewrent accounts 3300 1,089
- in deposit accounts 26,610 3,729
29,940 3921
Stgnificanr accounting policles 2
Notes to the consolidated Ind AS firancial state ments 3-6i
The notes refermed above form an intepral pact of these consolidated Gnancial stalcments
As per our repon ofeven dale attached
For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP For and oo hehalf of the Board of Directors of
Chanterad A ccountants Tata Realty apd [nfrastructure Limired
(Firm's Regrsiration No | 1 T366W/W-100018) CIN Nop: UTO102MH2007PLC 163300
M_‘ _‘L—-" ‘—"""‘-— R\ pgrbm_ | j = =2
' LT
R-WMU%‘JL & A e Z / ,/{ ’

Rajesh K. Riranapdani Banmali/qsrawala Sanjay Duti F. M. Subedar
Parncr hairman Manaping Chrector Directar
DI 00 20029 DN - 03251670 DIN - (00294258

. o 7
Sanjay Sharma " Sudhakfr Shetty
Chief Financial Officer Company Secnetary
Membership Na: A13200
Mumbai Mumhai
July 06, 2010 Tuly 06, 2020
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Tata Realty and infrastructure Limited
Comsnldated statement of changes n equoiry for the year ended 30 March 2020

Auereney Indun rupeses oo likhgh
31 Ybweh 1070 ) March Y1H

0 Eguiny share copltal Mates Amuont Ameunl
Balam a5 2l | Apnl LeLT2 La1TH
Changen s pquity chare copital duniag the wear ]

Halenoe ws wi X1 Mareh LTS

{teh Llther equity

Aftribtablc to Jbe abers ol b pavent Total
“hore Rewerves eod corplim Dber Toasl oiber
applicatian comprekemalve ey uity
Farticulsry oy insome
pouding Capital Seewriticn Retaloed Defined henehir
LLU reaemve premium enrologs | plonadjomiment
[ aT)
|Balancema s 1 Aprl 2R - 481t 15760 [REAY 14y [LER L] 5B (47045
Lot fur e year - - ERAX ] - 113685 172 LA ]
Bamwrsrmenls nddelimed benedt - - i5 58 - 55
tasue ol o sharse 1D w subsiianes - . . - [l 13
Incume &% lafoa o iues that wif ol be nes laes Bal b praefl ar Juss - - - [IEY 14y . [LE]]
ansndilation adjusiments . - 131 - 5, 45|
T ramsng i Jd) e e appl of NI A5 B15 - - [ - 11.384)) - 1130y
Halagee na a1 31 %larch 20T - 451 15.16% 199,543 a7 (THE &) 5817 172,224y
Shoe spplicaton pandig o enc recers ed dienag e year [ %1% a0 . . - - 1.Inmug - Ml L]
Lassg o ahue year - 36 29R) [l vl 1233H 136,429
Rasttved cuzemennis o Jerenad benedit labbiy - 3 3 - 3
Locome 1w rebating b il cms Lhat nll 801 b reclassiGed & peellt o 1oss - . B - 4k [y - i
LII_In(t ay at 31 Merch 820 120,04 4911 E5TRS 1135198 ks ] 4914 444 12
Shnlflan ol aceountlog palle = .
Noiou i |he Hidried [0d W5 ikl
[he o les peferred above form om deyral part ef these cansa rdated Anancial sahemems
A prer g pepart o Feven e aliachel
For BELOIETE HARRINS £ XELIS 1L P ¥or and on brhall of the Board of Dirextors ol
Choneret Aweeoontasts Ttz Arnlny aod Eefranirnciure Limited

1T s Bepssimts Mo [ T35 W WS Dddhs, ’_J-— LT M BRI T PLL 1R
. r
LA {
' . \ y S
P o P X ;" N

Bajexh K Biraaandanl Baomell 3 mals Eo M. Suferdar
Pt i Dhrazloe
D - el 1 LN - 128436

.-, =
Sudhnhksr Shetry
clal Offtcer Company Seeretary
Membership Mo ATIIN
Mumb Mue
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Tata Realry and Infrastructure Limited

Notes ta the consolidated financial statements
for the vear ended 31 March 2021

iCurrency: Indiar rupees io lakls)

I Background and basis of preparation

1A  Background
Tala Realty & Infrastrucrure Limited |~ TRIL" ot ‘the Group ) elong with i3 subsidianes, join ventures and assaciaies, collecnvely referred (o as the ~he Graup™
is cnguged in the business of vestment advisory services, project aanagemenl consultancy services and neal estte and nfrasmucture development. The parent
company is a wholly owned subsidiacy of Tata Sons Privare Limned.

1B Basis of preparation

(a)  Statement of compliance

These Cansolidated Ind A% financal staterments have becn propared in accordance with Indian Accounting 3tandards (Ind %) as per the Compancs (lodian
Accounting Siandards) Rules. 2019 norified under Seciion 133 of the Companies Act. 2017 {'the Act'y and oiher relevant provisions of the Act.

(by  Goiopg Concern
The Group has incwred losses amounting i Rs. 36,256 Lekhs in the current year (previows year Re 23,093 Lakhs). As at 31 Mench 2020 the Comprny hos a net
cwTenl ligbility position of Rs. 99,648 Lakhs whene the current liabilities at Rs. 2,534,492 Lakhs exceed he curment assets at Rs. 1.54.844 Lakhs. Based on
scheduled repayment Rs 1,985,492 Lakhs is due for repayment within 12 months o the [rom the reparting date.

Asgessment; The Board of Directors lave assessed the above operational conditions and indicators and have come to the conekision thal no palerial uncertaingy
exists that may cast significant doubt an the Group's ability to conbinue a3 8 going concem baded on cash Dow forecasts and the plan imanggement has put n

place.

Mirigating factors: The Group is in the business of developing commercial & residential Beal Estate and Infrasttucure Developrment to gencrate siable cash
llows over the life of the asscts, The Graup is developing asset theough investments in Swhsidiarics and Joint Ventares in various profect SPVs, During the year.
two projects become operationsl and started ing lease rental and one infrastruciure project has siartad 1ol collzetion in addition to ongoing projacts.

During FY 2020-2) based on projecticas, the SPY's are expected 0 penerawe operstional nal cash Now of more than Rs 450,00 Lakhs which will increase the
valuc of nvestents in subsidiaries and joint ventwe SPVs, The Group has robust divestment strateyry which is de d by div of Relail t

SPV during FY 2020, The management is cvaluating possibility of divesiment of sclesicd asscts and change in capita! structurc in its project 5PVs” which is
expected to geseralz more then Bs 150,000 Lakhs as equity value. Also. the frec cash flow fom sale of Ready 1o Move in (RTI) residential inventory will
suppon its aperations during corming financial years.

Negative working capital is on 2ccqunt of managemenl dacision to barrew shor-term funds through commercial papers to take advantage of inlonest artritrage,
However, management has modifkd the stravggy to eplace. b0 the cxtenr possible, shod term funding with fong term funding arrangement poing forward.

The equity capilal tom the parent i.e. Taiz Sons Privaete Linied. of en amount of Rs. 120000 Lekhs received during rhe year has improved the company’s
retworh allowing the compary funher abilice for additdonal borrowing io fure. This plan is alse supported by rmeings Gom ICRA and CLRE. for shon term and
long v borrowings of A | - and 40 with swable outiook respeciively.

Cuooelosion: The Board of Dvirectors based on cash fow forecasts and mansgement plans have concludad on ability of the Comparty 1o contdbue as going congem
and the financial starements have bean prepared on 1hae basis,

(¢)  Functional end presenaroE currency
These Consolidated 11 ia) am i d in Indisn Rupees (IR}, which i also the Company™s functonal curreocy. Al the financial information
have been presented i Indian Rupees (INR) and all amounts have been rounded-of to the neare st lakls with fwo decimals, except for share data and as othenwise
stated, Due to rounding off. the numbers presented throughouwr the dosument may ool add up preciscly (o the tolals and percentage may st preciscly ©fect the
absolute figures.

{dy  Bagis of reeasurement

The Comsolidated ind AS Anancizl satements have been prepared o Lhe historical cost basis except for Lhe Following assets and Liabilities which bave been
measured at fair value;

Certain financial asscis and liabililies | ineluding derivative nstruments)

Defined benefit plans — plao assels measured al faur saluc

ey —



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
for the vaar eaded 31 Marel 3030

{Cwrrency: Indizn rupees in lalhs)

{e)  Critical accounting fudgements and key sources of pstinuabion of vecerininty
In preparing thest Consolidated [nd AS fnancial statcments. monagemen? has made judements. estimates and assumpeions thae affect fhe application of
secotnting policizs and the reponzd amaunts of asscts, lizbilitics, income and expenses. Actusl results may differ rom tiese estimales.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed an an ongoing basis, Revisipns o accounting csrimates are recupmised prospectively.
{i) fudgements
Infarmation aboul judgements made in applymng acconnring policies that huve the most significant 2ffects on the amounks reeogised inthe Ind A5 financial
statcments 15 included in the subscquenl notes
{ii) Conrrol
IF the Group owns less then one-half of the voung power ard it is able to conmol the company which inter-alia provides the Group with power 1o appoint majority
of the board of dircctors and power over relevam activines. Consequently, the Group consolidates its invesiment in the company.(Refer Note No, 521a))
I the Group owns mose than vre-hall of 1he voténg power but it does not have controd over the Compuntes Lhen the Group has joint contrel ever Lhe companies.
In othcr words, decisions ahour the relevant activities - Le. thage thar significantly affect the retums of the armangement - require the affinmative consent of the
investors. Conscquenily, the Group has classified its interest. in these companies as juintly conmabad entity [Refer Note no. 52(bi}
(i) A ptiens aod esti inm uncerva o
[nformatian about gssumptions and estimation uncersiniies thas have a significant risk of resulring in & material adjustment in the year ended 31 March 2020 is
included in the following moes:
Noke - unpaimeal fesi of non-fmancial assers: key assumptions underlying recoverable amoonts invhuding the eccoverability of expenditure on auquired
intangible assets {goodwilll. Uscful life of Propeny. plant and equipment,
Maote - recopmunon of deferred 1ax assels availabilitg of fururs axable profit agemst which mx Iosses carned forward caa be uscd:
Mote - recopninon md ceeasurement of provisions and conld jes kew ptions ahout the Jikelhood and magnimde of an outflew of resources:
Note = mzaswrement of defined benefn obligauons key actuanal assumpitons .
Nok - acquisition of subsulisry: fair valur of e consideration mansferred including contimpen consideration) and fair value of Uk Bssets soquired and
liabilities assumed. measurcd on a provisioma)l basis, and
Mote - deicomunimy (he faor value of wvesiments on the bass of significent wiobservable niputs;
Mote — umpaument of fivancial assels.
th  Measnrement of fair values
The Group's accounting policies and disclostres require the rieasurement of fair values. for both financial and nun-tinancial asscts and Liabilities, The Group has
an ¢stablished control framework with respeat to the messirement of fair valies. The Gnance team has overall responsibility for oversseing all significary faic
value measurements, including 1.ovel 3 fair values. and repots direcity to the CFO.
They regularly rvicw sipmficant unobservable inputs and valuarion adjustmenis. 1€ thind pary information is esed to measare fair values then the fimanee tcam
assesses the evidence obfined Grom the third parties to suppart the conclusion that such vahstions mees the requirements of [nd AS, including Lhe Yevet in the fair
volue Werarchy in which such valuations ghould be claysified.
When measuring the fair valug oF an assct or & labiliry, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are calegorized into different
levels ina fair value lierarchy based on the inputs used in whe valuation techniques as foliows.
Level I: quoted prices funadjusied) in active markets for identical assets oc liabilities.
Levei 2: inputs other than quoled prices included in Level | thar are observable for the assel or liabiliry. atther direcily {ie, as prices) or indircctly (1.2, derived
from pricesh.
Lzvel 3: inputs for the asset or Liahility that ans not besed on observable market data ¢unobservahle inputs).
If tha inpus usad 10 measure the 1Bir value of an assct or a fiabily &0 o differey levels of the fair value berarchy. den e fair value measurement is
categonzed in its encirety in the same lave! of the fair valoe hizrarchy asthe lowest level input that is significant 1o the entire measurement.
(g  Forelgo curredcy fransactions
Forgign currency ransactions are ranslaled inbo the functional currency using Ui sxchange mics at the dates of dwe camsachons. Foreipgn exchange pains and
losses resulting from the setlement of such transactions and from the wranslation of monetary assels and liabilites denominated in foreign curencies at year cod
cachange rkes are penerally recognised in profis or loss.
Mon-monetary items that ar; measwed at fair value in a foredym currency are mransleed wsing the exchange mies at the date when the fair value was deiecmined.
Transletion differmoes on asscls and Habilities carried at fair value A reparted as pan of the fair value gain or loss. The gain or loss arising an rangtation of non-
manerary fiams measured ac Fair vaiue is eaked in ling with ithe eocognition of the gain or loss on the change in air valug ofthe ilem {ie., manstarion differences
on items whose fair value gain or boss is reeogrised in GCT or proft or loss are also recogmised in £C[ or profit or oss. respectively)
] I
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements
Jor the vegr eaded 1§ Sarch 2020

{Currency; indian rupees n lakls)

01
(i}

1)

{iv}

PRI

.03

1

i)

Basis of consolidation

Subsidinries

Subsidiaries arc all entitics {including strucrured entities) civer which the proup bhas conrol. The group conmals an entity when the poup is caposed (o, o0 has
rights to, variable reums Fom #ts invobvement with the cniity and has the ability (o affect those remms hrapgh ks power to direct the relevant activides of the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which contral is pansferred ro the group. They are deconsolidated from the date that contzol censes.

The group combines Lthe Anancial statements of the pareot and its subsidiares line by line adding togelhier like iterms of assets, liabilities. equity. incomc and
expenses. Lkergmup transactions, balanves and uorealised gains on ransactions berween roup comparics are ¢liminated. Unrealised fosses are atso climinated
unless the bransaction provides evidence of an impairment of the wansfemed asser. Acc ing policies of subsidiacies havz been changed where necessary to
engure comsistency with the policies adopted by the group.

Non-conrolling interests in the resuls and equity of subsidiiaries arc shown scparately in Lhe consolidated staternent of profil and |oss. consolidated siztement of
changes in cquity and balance sheet respectively

Jotni arvangements

Under Ind AS 1 Joint Arrangements, investmerss m joint arrangemens are classificd as cither joint operations or jainl veniures. The classification depends on
Lhe conmractual riptus and obliganans of each imvestor, mther than the kgal structure of the joim armangerent, The group das only joint ventures,

Join: vantires

Jaint veniures ar; enmitics over which the group has joir comyol afong with anoiher catity. [mierests in joinr venmres are aceounted tor nsing the equity mathod,
after initially bemg recognised st coat in 1he cansolidated balance sbheer. The investmenl is initially recognized at cosl, and Ow camying amoum is increased or
decreased to recoprize the investnr’s share of the profir or loss of the investee after the acquisition date.

Associaies

Associsics are enfities over which the group has significani influence but nor conmol. Invesiments in associates are accounted for using the equity mewhod of
accounming. The investment is initislly recogmized i cost. and the carying amount is increased or decteased to reeognize the nvestot’s share of tlie profit or loss
of the invesiea after the acquisinon date.

Sepment reporting
Operating segments e reponed i @ menner consistent wirth the nrernal reporting provided o the chlef aperating decision maker (CODM!. Chief operating

detision makers funchion is ta allovate the resousces of the ennry and access the performance of the operating segmen of the Gronp
The M ing Drirector the fi tal perft ce and position of Lhe {iroup and makes sirategic decisions and is identified as being the chial operatine
decision maker for the Grmup. Refer note 46 for seginent infinmatian presenied.

Revenne recognition

Sale of completed propecty

Revenue from sale of completed property { esidential ond commercial) is recognised whem

L. The Group has mansfemred to the buyer significant risk and rewards of owneeshup of the complered propeny:

1. The Group retains nedlher comiming managerial involvewnent 1o the degree ususlly associared with the owmership nor effective conim| aver the campleted
property sold;

3. The amount of revenus can be measured retiably.
4, It is probablz that the coanomic benely associated with the mransaction will law o Usr Group; and
§ Cost incurtod of to be incurned o respect of the ramsaction cen be measired reliably

Service coocessinn arrangements

Concession amangsments ame recognied in accordance with Appendix © of Ind AS 115, Service Coneession Amengements. [t is applicable lo concession
amangements comprising a public service oblization and saris fring all of the following criterda:

'+ the concession grantor congrols of Tegulstes the services 1o be provided by the operawr using the assct. the infrastructure. Hie bepeficianies of e services and
prices apphed;

- Lhe granior conooks the siznificant residual inieres in the infrasouctune st the end ol the term of the arangemen.

Pursvant (o Appendix C of Ind A5 113, such infrasmaciures are oot recagmired in asscts of the operator as propenty. plant and cquipment bt in Dinancial asseis
{"financial asset model”§ andror i ible assets (*inangible assat modeT") depanding on the remuneration Somminmenis given by the gramor,

The intangible asset model applics where the operator is paid by the users or where the concession prantor has not provided a conmracrual suaranes in rspect of
the recoverable amouns. The incangible 2sset correspoids to the right granied by the concessiot pmamer o the operaror o charge users of the public service in
renumeration of Goncession seTvices.

[maogible assets resuiting from the application of Appendix € of Ind AS 115 are recarded in the Bnancial statements as inlangible assels. The Group

accounts for such intangmble assct [along with Lhe present value of coramined paymens lowards concession amangemen 1o the gramor at i appointed date e.2.
Neparive Grant, premium etc.) in acconrdame with the provisions of Ind AS 38 and s amertized based ou projecied maffic count or revenue, as detaifed in Nore
2.07{ii), taking into acrount the estimated period of commersial operation of infrastructute which pencrally coincides with the comcession peced. 4nd e
amon ized, gecerally on a soeight-line basis, aver the congrace 1erm

Uinder the intangible asset model, evenue includes: [
revenue recarded on a cormpletion basis for assets and infrastructure under construction fin accordance with IND A5 {154 A
charges collected from users ‘1_#/
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However. in cetlain concession amangemens. conmaels may meoiude & paymem commionenl oo the pan of the womeession prastar covenng andy pan of the
investment. with the balapee covermd by amount charged to users Whers fthis is the case, the imvesiment amount guarintced by (he concession pramior is
recognized under the Bnancial asscl modcel and the residual balance is recognized under the infangihle psset model Financial assets resuhing from that are
recorded in the financial statzinems under the heading other fi o} assets and recognized at amortized cost.

Furher, where infrasttucture is partly regulated and partly unregninied, the pomion of infrastrucrure ¢hat is physically separmbk and capable of being operated
independently and ineets definition of cash generating unit as defined under Ind A5 36 is analyscd separately if it is wsed wholly far unregulated purposcs.

Rendering of services
Assct manageinend fees aod Project i ltancy fees are recognized m accordance with terms of agrecmen with customers.

Rental income

Renlal ingemne from investment property is recognised as part of revenue from operations in prolil or (055 0R a siraight-line basis over the jermoof the lease. Lease
incentives granted arc recognised as an integml par of 1be total rental income, over the torm of the kase, Rental income from sub-leasing 5 also mcognised i a
similar manner and inchided under other income.

Interest and dividend:

A dividend Is recopnizad as revenue when the riply 1o feceive pay has been esmblished. For all detw instruments measured either ai amonised cost or a1 Fzir
valuz throvwgh other comprehensive income, interest income # recorded wsing the effective inlerest raie (E1RY. EIR 15 (e cate dhal exactly discounis the estimated
future cash paymenis or receips over the expected lifs of the Financial instrument ar a shoner period. where appropnate, e the grose camying amount of the
[nancial asset or 10 the amortised cost of 4 fnancia liability

Grovernment graois

Girants Fom the govermment are inmally necopmised as deferred invome at Lheir fair value where there is a reasonable assurance tha the mant will be received and
the proup will comply with all atached conlifians, they are chen recognised in profic ar loss as otber incotme on & sysiemarie basis over the useful life of the psset.

Grants that compensate the Graup for cpenscs mewred arc recogmised in prafit or loss an a sysicmabic besis in the perinds in which the expenses are recognised.

Praperty, plant and equipment

Recognition and mexsnrement
Freehold land is carried at historical cost All other jrems of property. piant and cquipment arc measured at ¢ost 1es3 accumulaled depreciation and amy

accummlated impainent losses.

b cost of an item of property, planl and equipinent comprises:

al ik puchase price. icluding impont dutics and non-refundabie purchase 1axes. after deducting made discounts and rehaies.

bl any costs dimctly attribuwable lo bringing the asset o e location and candition necessary fov it to be capable of operaring i the manner mfended by
¢l the inifal estimate of the cosis of dismantling and remeoving the ter and resloniog the site on whicl il is located. the obligation for which an enlity incurs
eilbier when the iem is aoquircd

Income and axpenses related o the incidemal opermions. not necessary ¢ bring the iten to the Jocation and condition ascessary for it to be capabie of eperating
in the manoer iniended by management. are recognised n profit or loss,

IF significans pans af an itzm of property, planr and equipment have differenr vsefu! lives, thea they ane accounted lor as separate ems (major compoments) of
prepery. plant and equipment. Any gain or loss on disposal +f an wem of property, plant and equipmenl is recognised in profit or loss,

Subsequeni experdimre
Subsequent expendinure is capitalized oaly if it s probable thar the furure economic benedils associated with e expendinue will Bow Lo the Group,

Property, piant and equipment (Continied)

Depreciation

Diepreciable amount for assets 5 Uie cost of an assel. or other amuunt substituted For cost, less #ls estimated residual value.

Depreciation is provided using the siraight lime methiod in the manner and al the rates preseribed by Fan 'C* of Schedule 1 of the Act, Depreciation is charged ana
menthiy pro-ratz basis for assets purchased or sold during the wear.

(o the following cases. the useful life is less than Ihe cormesponding useful life prescribed in Pan 'C" of Schedule 13 of the Acl. based on miernal bechaical
cvaluation. takiny into account the nature af the asses, the estimated usage of the assel. the operating condifions of the asset. pest history of seplacemenl,
antévipated wechnological changes eic:

Plant & Mechinery 8-15 years
Fumniture & Fboure f-10 years
OFfice equipments 3-6 years
Compurers 34 yrars
Muotor Vehivles 5.7 years
Commercial building 5-17 yenrs

Legsehold impravements zre amortised over the fzase penod.
Depreciation metliods, useful lives ard residual values are reviewad a1 each reperting date and adjusted if appropriae.
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carmying amount, These are incloded in profi o loss within ofer pains: 1losses)

)

s
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[ovestmient property

Propeny that i3 held fur loog-teemn reaeal yields or for cepital appresiation or both. and that s nol ceoupied by the group, is classilfed a5 mnvesioent propeny.
[nvestmenl propery is meesured initially at ils cnsl, including related transection cosls and where applicable borowing ¢ests. Subsequent expendinure is
capitalised to Lhe assel’s camying ameunt gnly when i is probable that fumre ecoromic benefits amsociated with the expenditure witl flew ta the proup and e
cost of the ftem can be measurcd reliably. All other repaics and mainienance costs are expensad when incermed. Whan pan of an investment property is replaced.
It carTying amount of the replaced pan is derecognisad.

Investment property undoer construction
Praperty that is being constructed [or fulore wse as invesinem propery is accounted for as invesument propemy under constuciion ontil consiuction or
development is complete. Al costs which are dinecily atirbunable wo consrruction of the invesmen property are capliolized.

Entangihle assets

Gaodwil}
Goodwitl en acquisitivns of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amoartised bur it is tested for impainment anrmally. b is carmied a1 cost less

acewrmulated tmpairmenk losses. Gains and Josscs on the disposal of Bn entity inciude the camying amount of goodwill relating ra e eniiry sold

Goodwill is alloeated to cash-generating utiits for the puqaose of impainment tesring. The allecation is made 1o those cash-gencrating units o proups aof casb-
peneracing units et are expected 10 benelit from the business combinarion in which the poodwill aruse. The unils or groups of units arc idennified 3t the lowest
level al which gondwill is monitored for intemal management purposes, which in our case are the operating scgments.

Intanble asscts comprise application soflware purchased. which are not an mtegral part of the related hardware, and are amortized on a wrinen down value basis
oves a pencd of ten vears, which 1n M lanagement™s eshmate represeats the penod dunng which the ceonomu: benefits will be deaved from ter use

Subseguent cxpenditure is capnalized only wlizn it icreases the funare econamic benefits embodied n the specific o whicl il relates

[ntanpible assets under development

Passenger ropeway facilin

[olangible asscts comprise @ dght 1o change users for passenger ropeway facility, which s currenly under developroeni. The cnst of intangible assets acquired in
exchange of monetary o non-monetary assets is measored =1 Bair value unless (o) the exchange mamacion lacks commercial subsiance or Th Ihe Taic vakne of
neither the nsser received anr the assel given up is relishly measurable 1T acquired assel cannot be measured ab fair value. its cost is measured al the carmying
armount of the asset given up. The fair vatue of the asset 3s mcasured with nference 10 the fair value of construction services provided.

Subsequent expenditure is capilalized only when it increases the fulure economic benefits cenbodicd in U spevilic to which it relates.

Toll entection right

Toll collection rights representing Gats o meocive foes oo users of Facibity ars obtawcd m consdembon for rendering consuction, aperatins and man2hance
services in relation lo building and maintenance of the progect on Buikd, Operate and Transfer basis. The cansideration received in a service concession
amrangemen! is measured at fair value upon indtal recapmition, ik, consmaetion cust. Subsequent W initel recopnsiion the imaugible assel s meesured at cosL
which includes capitalised borowing costs, less aceumulated amomisaton and accumulated impairmen osses.

Amoriization ¢f concesslon inangibte assets

Amortization of ingangible asser under SCA Tha imangible rghis relsting o infrastructune assets, which are eeognized in tbe form of night ro charge users of the
infrasruenire asset ore amonized by wking peoportienate of actual roflic count for the period over tatal projected raffic count from projeet o oot of mtangihle
assets; Le. propartenote of achual taffic for the peried over 1atal prajected raffic cownr from Lhe intanpbl: asgels expected (0 be eamed aver Lhe balanes
cancession period as estimated by Lhe manageroent, However with respect 10 ol road assels constructad and in apetsion as at March 34, 2016, the amortization
af such imangiblz riplts are basad on ocwal revenue samad compared 1o taral peojocied revenue from the project over the balance concession period fo cost
intangible asse1s, wstead of tratTic coum. Toral projecied revenue + affic count is reviewed al the end of cach financial year and is adjusted (o reliecl any changes
in the eslimates which kead to (he actual cotlection at the cod of the cancession period.

foapairment of noo-financial assels

Goodwill and intangible asscis that have an indefinile useful life are oot subject to amortisation and are st gnnually for impairment. or moce frequendy i
evenls or cungss n clroumsiances indicate that they might be impamel Chibet assers se rested for impaimment whenever evenls or shanges m circomstances
indirate tha the carmying amount may not be recoverable. Wanagemeru periodically assesses using, sxtcmal and int2mal sources. whether there is ap indicarion
thal an asset may be tmpaired.

The: meoverable amount is bigher of the asset's pet sclling price or value in wse, which means the present value of fueme caslt Nows expecied o arise from the
conbming use of e agsct and it cvernuat disposal. An impairmem |oss for an asset s reversed if, aod only i, the reversal can be reiated sbjecnvely 10 an event
occurring sfer the impaimment loss was rogenized. [he camying amoum of an assev is incceased (o @s revised recovernble ampunt, pruvided Lhai (s ameaunt
does not exceed the carrying amount thas would have been detenmined (net of any sccumulated amartization ar depreciation) had no impairment foss been
recopnized for e asset io prior years

4
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Barrowing cosi

Genern! and sperific hormowing costs that are dicectly altnbuble io the acquisition, construction or production of 2 qualifying assct arc capitalised during the
pedod of iume it is required fo complete and prepare i asset for its ntended use or sale, Qualifying asscts are assets that necessarily take 8 substantial perind
oftime ta pet ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income +amed on tbe empacary invesrment of specific borruwings pending \beir expenditure on qualifying assels is deducied from Lthe borrowing
cosis elipible for capitatisarion.

Onher borrowing costs are expensed in the perind in which they are incurred.

Income-tax
[ngome tax expense comprisas current and deferred tax. It is recopnised in profit or loss except 13 the exozm than it relates dens ecognised direetly in cquity or in

ol

Current tax

Currem tan camprises the expected 1ax payable or receivable on the tasable income or lpsy fior the year and any adjestiment 1o the 121 payabke or eeceivable in
respect of presious years. |t is measwed using tas ralcs enacled or substantively caacted at the reporting date. Current tay also inclides any tax anising fom
dividends. Managemenl periodically cvaluates positions taken in fax refurns with mespect o situetions in which applicable ;x regulation is subject o
mterpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amowns expected 1o be paid 10 the tax anthorinies,

Minimumn Allemate Tax {MAT under the provisians of {orome-tax Act, 196) is recognised as current tax o the stalement of prvfit and Inss. MAT paid in
sccordance with ihe rax fows, which gives funye evonomic bene(its in the form of adfusiment o future income Lax Hability. is considored as an asset iFtere isa
convincmg evidence that the Group will pay nommal e Accordingly, MAT is recognized as an asser in the balance shoet when it is probable that ehe fumre
econamic benefit associated with it will flow to the Group.

Current 1ax assets and liabilities are ofiset anly if, the Group:

al  hasa iepally enforceable dpht te set off Uie recognised ameunts; and

bl imends cither to seble on a et basis, or (o replise the assel and settle the liabiliy st aneously.

Deferred lax

Defered lan is recoprused i respect of temporary differcnces between the camying amounts of assets and lisbilides for Gnancial reporing purposes and the
amouns used for taxation puposes. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recopnition of woodwill. Deferned invome tax
is also not accoumed for if B anses (hom inicisl resepnition of an osser or lebility in 2 \ransaclion ciber than a business voembization tha an the time of the
mansaction affects neither accounting profit nor 1axable profil (tax loss).

Deferred tax asscts arc recopnised for unused tax losses, unuscd 1ax credits and deductible temporary differences 10 the extem thac it w probable thar funire
taxable profits will be available apainst which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporring date and are reduced ro the exient ihal i is no
longer probable that the relatzd tzx bepefit will be realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of fumre axablke prefits improves. Tinrecopnised
deferred wx assers am reassessed al each ceponiog date and recopmised to (he eatenl thar i s becoms prabable that ferure mxablc profits will be available
against which they can be used.

Deterred tax is measured at the tax rates that are cxpected to be applied to temporary differcoces when they reverse, wing tax rates enacted or substanively
enacied at the reporting date and are expected bo apply when the related deferred income tax asset s realised or the deferred incone 1k labiliry s seftled.

Defecred 1ax habilities are not recopnised for tempomry difforences bebween the camying amouni aod 1ax bases of investments in subsidianes. branches and
associates and interest in joinl amangements where the group is able to conimol the timing of the revesal of the temporary differences and il is prabahte thias the
differcoces will pot reverse in the forcseeable foun:,

Defarred mx szsers am oot recoprised for remporary diffenemces becaven the carmying agrount and tax bases of investments o subsidiarics, branches and
associales and ineresl in joim amangements whert it is not probable that the differences will reverse in the forvsecable future and vaasble profit will no be
available against which the temporary difference can be wilised.

Deferved ran asaets and liabilities are offset only il

a)  the eotity has 8 lepally eoforcensble rgha ro sor off eurvens tax assels against current tax tiabilities. and

b)  the deferred 1ax azsets and the defermad (ax liabilities relate to tneome axes levied by e same taxatioo autherty on Lhe saime taxabl: enrity,

Business combina tions
The avquisition meilxd of aceounting is used ro ascount for all business combnarians, mpardless of wherher equity insrmumens or other assets are acquined. The
consideration 1ransferred for the acquisition of a subsidiery comprises (he:

farr valucs of the assers mansferred;

Yahilitics 1ncurmad to the former pwoers of Lhe acquired businass;

cquity inrercsts issued by the group: and

Fair valuc of any assct or lability resulting from a conttngent considerarion arranyzoment

[deiuifizble assets acquired and Habiltics and comtingent Labiities g in 8 business combination ane, with limired exceptions, measumed wmirially ai their Fair
values at Lhe acquisition date. The group recognises any non-cantrolling imerest in the acquired encity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis cither ab fair value ar
at the non-conirolling interest™s proporionate dhare of the acquired enniny's pen ideniifable asseis Acquisihon-related coss are capensed as incuared

The sacess of the \
- cousideration trenslomed:
- amoun of any nou-conirolling intercst in the acqunsd entity, and 4/
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Argusition-date fair value of any previous cquiry interast in the acquired ennty over the far vnlue of the net identifiabke assels acguired is recorded a5 goodwill,
If those amouwns are less than Lhe Mair value of the net idennifiable assets of the business acguirsd. Whe differcoce 15 recognised m other comprehensive income and
acoumulated in cguity as capital Teserve provided there is clear cvidence of the undedying roasons for classifying the busincss combinatian as a bargain puret
1n other cases. the bargain purchase gain is recogniscd directly in cquity as capira! rescne,

Where sctlement of any parl of cash consideration is defomed, the amounts payable i the future are discounted to their pregznt value as at the dare of
exchange. The discoum rate used is the entin’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rure at which s similar borrowing could be ohtained from an independent
financier under comparable terng and condit
- Contingend consideration is classified either as equity or 2 Gnancial liabitity. Amounis classified as a financial lisbility are subsequently remeasured 1o fair valus
with changes in Bir value moognised in profit or loss.

I tive business comibination i achicved in slages, the acguisition date camyipg value of the acquirer's previsusly beld equity imcrest in the acquire is mmeasured
tur fair value al the acquisition date. Aoy gains or losses arising from such emecasurement arc woogniscd in profil or loss or other comprehensiva income, as
appropmale.

Cash and cash equlvalenis

For che pumose af presentadon in the seuement of cash lows, cash and cash aquivalenis includes cash on hand. deposits beld at call wilh Rrancial institutions,
oter short-ferm highly liquid investmenis with original mamities of three menths or tess that ars readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which arc
subject to an insignificant Ask of changes in value. and bank overdrafts, Bank overdrafis are shown within berowings in curment lisbilities in the halance shest.

Invemdorics

Diirect expenses Lika land cost, development cighus, site labour cost. mneral used for project construction, tost of bormowing. project managemeit consultancy,
costs for moving he plant and machinery 1o the site and genera) expenses incwmed specilically for ihe mespective praject ke Usurance, design and technical
assistance, and construclion pygrheads ane taken as the cast uf the project work in propress and cost of unsold flats,

Material at site comprise of building malerial. companents. stones and spares.
Lnventories are valued at lower of cost or net realizable value, cost is deternuined on weighred sverspe basis. Ner realizable value is the esttmated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, tess esiimated coats of conplerion and estimaied cosis pecessary to make the sale

Finnocial instrumects

A financial instrument is any contmct that gives rise to a Fnancial assct of one entity and a financiat liabdity or equity instrument of anather entity. Financial
instnuments alse inciude derivative contracts such as forign cumency fortign oxchange forwerd contracts, interest rate swaps and clomeney options: and
embedded derivatives in the hasi conract.

Floancls| assets

{Cla sxifies oo

The Group shall classify financial assets as subsequently rmeasured al amonised cost [ar valpe through other conprehensive income [FYOCTH or fair value
through profit or less (FYTEL) on the basis of ils business mode] lor managing the lnancial assels and the contraciual cash flow characteristics of the financial
assel.

[nitial recognition and measurememt

All financisl assets are nacoypmised initally at fir value plus, in the case of financial assers nor recarded at fair value shrmugh proft or Joss. mansacton vosts that
are arribulable to the acquisition of the Rnancial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that reguine delivery of assels within a time famwe established by
rgulation oF convention in the market place (ropular way trades) arc recoymised on the irade date. ie.. the daie thar the Group eonmiits to purchase or sell U
asscE,

Debt instruments

§ A debt mstrument’ 13 measured at the amornsed cost (Cboth the following condinans are meg

a] The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to bold assets for zollecting contracmal cash Rows, and

bl Conimctual terms of (he asser give rise on specilied dates 1o cash flows tha are solelv payments of principal and imerest {SPP]) on the poncipal amount
outstanding

& Aficr infmial measurement, such financial asscls arc subsequently measured at amortised cos wsing the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amormsed cost w
caleulgted by takdng into aceount any discount or premiumn and fzes or costs thar are an inteyral pan of the EIR. The EIR amomizanion is included in finance
incarme in Lthe profn or loss

§ Debt instlruments included within the fair value Lhrough profit and loss [FVTPLY category #rc measured a1 fair value with olf changes recognized in the
statement of profit and Ioss,

Lquily instruments
§ The group subscquently measures all cquity investments in companies other Lhan equity imvestments in. joint venteres and assaciates at fair velue. Where the
gruup's munagemem bhas clecied o present fair value gaind and josscs ap equity investments in other comprehensive income, there & no subsequem
reclassification of fair value gains and losses 1o profr or loss. Dividends frown such invesiments are recognised in profitor loss as ather income when e grop’s
right ta meceive payrienis is estab s bed

A
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De-recapnition

§ A fimancial asset {or, where applicable, a pere of & Gnancial asser or pan of 8 Group of similar financial assers) is primenly derecogmsed (i.e. nemoved froe the
Group's balance sheety whea.

§ The rights to receive cash Oows from rhe asser have expired, or

§ The Group has mansferred ins Aghis 10 receive cash Mows from the asser or hes agsumed an abligaion 1o pay the reeeived cash Baws i full without mozrial
Jelay to a tird party under a *passthrough” arranpement: and either (al the Group has mansfeeed subswatially all the risks and newarts of the asser, or 1) Lthe
Group has aeilher transfzmed oor retained subsiantially all 1he risks and rewards of the assel. bt has mansfered contrel of the assel.

§ When the Group has ransferred its rights 1o receive cash Aows from an asset of has entered inta B pass-throuph arrangement, it evaluates if and 1o what exten)
it has retained the risks and rewands of ownership. When & has neither transfermed nor recsined substaneinty all of the risks and rewards of the asser, nor
transfermd control of the asset, the Group conlinues oo recognise the ransfeered asset 10 the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. [n that cose, the Group
also recognises an agsociated Hability The transfooed 2sset and the associated Lability are oxasured on 2 basis ihat rellects the rights and obligations thai the
Group has retained,

4 Continuing frvolvernent shat 1akes the form of a guaraniee over the gansferred asset is measured ar the lower of the griginal carrying amoun of the asset aud
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group ¢ould be required 1o repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with [nd-A%S 102 Uic Group applics expected credit loss (ECLE medel for measurement and recognition of impairment toss o the Tollowing
financial asseis and credit risk cxposure:

a) Financial asscts that are debr mstruncnts. and are measured at amortised vost ez, loans, dety securities, deposils, and bank balance

bt Leasc rocivables

¢ Trode receivables

The Gaoup follows simphified approach’ for recopmmon of 1o i lass
¥ Trade receivables which do pot contzin a significant financing component.
§ All lease receivables resulfing from mansacrions

The appbcation of simplified approach does nol require e Group 0 gack cheages in credit isk. Radier, o recopnises impairment loss aliowadce based on
lifetime ECLs 2t rach repocling dake, right from il indrial recogmition.

[For recognition of impainment loss on owler Gnancial asgers and risk #xposure, the (Group determines thae witether ther2 has been a significant increass in the
credit risk since inifal recopmition. |f credit risk has ot inceeased sienificautly, | 2-month BECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased sigmilicently, liferioe ECL is used. [T, in 4 subsequent peniod, credit quality of the instrumest improves such that there is ne longer o siynificant ncrease
in credil rigk sinee initial recognition. then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based oa | 2-month ECL.

on

Fingocial instroments ¢ Conrinud)

Derivative contracts

The group cters nw 2 vancty of derivetive Doaocial nstuments to manage s eaposee © oienst rate and foreign exchanve rate sk neloding foripgn
exchange forward contraces, imerest rate swaps and cmss curmency swaps. Denvatives are ioitally recoprised at fair value al the date the denvative coatracts arc
entzred into and are subsequencly remeasered to Lheir fair value al the end af ¢ach reporting period. The nesuliing gainloss is reeognised in profit or loss
immediately.

Finamcinl lisbilities
The Croup classifics all financisl Habilnes as subsequendy measured at amortised cost, except For [inancial lsbiities at fair value throwgh profit or boss Such
linhiiitizs, including dervacives that are liabilities, shail be subsequentty reasured ar fair valua.

Initial recognition and measuremenl

Finencizl liabilities are classified, at initial recogmition, as finaocia! liabililiss ai fau value through protit or 10ss, loans and borrowings, payablcs. or as derivatives
designated as bedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriale,

All Grancial Liabililies are recognised initially al fair vabue and. in e vase of Joans and bormowings and payables. ned of diresily abribukabls transaction costs.

The Group's financial labilitics include made und other payabics. leans and borrowings iocluding bank overdrafis. linancial guarintee contracts and derivative
financial instrumenzs.

Finnncia! liabiliries a¢ fair value through profh oe loss

Financial Liabilities ai fair value throweh profit or boss include Ginancial hebilities held for mading end financial Nabiliies desimated upon wnifal reopniion as ai
fair value through prolit ar bass. Financial Labilitics are classificd as beld for mading if they are incurred Far the parpose of repurchasing in the oar i This
calegory also includes derjvative finaneial mstruments enfered inie by the Group that are not designated as hedging instrurnenus in bedge relagonships as defined
by Tnd-A5 109. Separated embedizd derivatives are also classified as held for rading wnless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or Iesses on lizbilities beld For rading are recopgnised it the profit or loss,

Financial lisbilinies designeied upon initial recognition a1 fair value through profit or toss are designated at the innial date of recogninion, and only if the crizeria m
Ind-AS (0% are satished. For liabilities desipnated as FVTPL, fair value gaims’ losses anrbuable o changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI These
painstoss are ool subsequently mansfeord w profl and foss. However. the Groger may tensfer the cumulative 2ain ot [oss within oquity. 3l other changes in fair
value of such liability are recoymised m the slateoent of prafit or koss. The Group bas ool desiprated any Grancial |iabiliry as at fair value through profi and Las.
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Lasns and borrowiogs

Afer inirial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method, Gains and losses are
reeognised in profit or loss when ke liabilincs are derecoprnized.

Amonised cost is cakeulzed by mking inte account any discount or pretiam on acqmsition 2nd Tees or costs that are an intcgral part of the EIR, The EIR
ainonisation is included as linance costs in the stalcmen of profit and Joss.

This cawegory peacrally applies 1o intarest-bearing |oans and borrowings.

Preference shares. which are mandatogly redeemahle on a specific date. are classified as liabilitics. The dividends vn these prefirence shares are recopnised i
profit or loss as [inance cosis.

The fair value of the lisbility portion of an optionally conventible bonds s derermined using a markel interesi @ie for an equivaknt non-convertible bonds. This
urbowial is recorded 85 e lisbility on an amormised cost basis until extingwished on conversion or rodemption of the bonds, The remainder of the proceeds s
antnbuiable to the equity pomion of the compound istrumeot. This & roormised and included in shareholders’ equity. mel of income 1ax effects, and nel
subsequently remcasured.

Where the terms of a financial Liability are rencgotiared and \he entity issues aquity instruments 1o a credivor (o extingwish all or pan of the liabikity tdebi For
equily swap), a pain ot 10ss is recagnised in prof or loss, which is measured as the difference beoween the camying amaount of the financial Lisbility and the Fair

value of the ermity insruments ssued.

Derecogrition

4 finencial liability is derceogniscdt when Lhe obligation under the Liabity is discharged or cascelled ar eapires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different 1enms, or the moms of an exisiing liahility are substantially modificd. such an exchange or modilication =
reated as the derecagnition of the original ability and the recognition of a new labilify The differcnce in the respective camying amounis is recognised in the
stzement of prof or loss.

Embedded derlvarives

If e liwbrid conoact conins a host thol is & (nancial assct within the scope Ind-AS 109, the Group docs not scparaic crmbedded derfvatives. Rether, it epplies
the classification requirerments confained i Ind AS 109 1o the entire byhrid contract. Derivatives ¢mbedded in all other host commacts are aecourted for as
separate derivatives and recorded at Fair value if their economic cheracteristics ond risks are not closely related 10 rhose of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for rading or designated at fair value throwsh proafic or loss. These embedded derivaiives are measured at fair valuz with changes in fair
value recognised in profil or Joss, unless desipanied as effective hedging instruments. Reasscssment only ocours if there is either a change @ the kemms of the
conmract thai sigmiicanrly modifies the cash llows.

Ofiserting of financial instruments

Financia] asse1s and fiabitides are offset and the net amount is repanted in the balance sheer where here & a lepally enforoeable nght 1w offsct e reoogniscd
amuumis and there is an imentdan 1o sznk2 on a aec basis or malise the asset and setlle the liability simulancously, The legally eaforocable dght must not be
contingent an fulure events and must be enforceable in the nonmal course of busingss and in the evenrt of default, insobvency or bankruptey of the group or the

counierpany

Derivative financial instrumenis

The Gmup uses derjvarive financial instrumenis, such as foreign exchanee farward coniraces and inercs! mbe swaps ko manage ils exposure 10 @teresi rte and
loretgn exchange osks. For contracts whene hedge accounting is nol followed, such derivative financial mstruments are initially recognised at fair velue on the
date an which a derivative contrat iv entered into and are subscquently re-measured 8t fair value througli profit or loss account. Derivatives are carried s
Ginancial assets when the fair vatue 15 positive 2nd as Hnancial kabilifes when the [ir value 15 neganve.

L13  Employee benefits

i) Shore-term empboyee bepelies
Short-erm emploves benefits are expensed as the relared service i provided. A listlity is recogrised for the amoun:t expeeted 10 be paid if e Group has a
presenl legal or constructive obfigation ke pay this amount as 2 result af past scrvice provided by the enployze and tbe obligation can be estimated reliably

i) Compensated absences
The ligbilittes for earmed leave and sick leave are noi eapected to be settled wholly within 12 months aier the god of U period @ which 1he employees reoder the
related service. They are theretore ineasured as Lhe presenl valug of expecied future paymemts ta be made in respect of services provided by employess up 1o she
emd of the rcporting period using the projected unil credit method. The benefis arc discountsd using Lhe market yields at the end of the repuning perind thar have
ferms approximating to the torms of the related obligation. Re-easurements as @ tesult of experience adjusunents aod changes o actarnial asswmptions are
recognised in peofir or loss.

(ifii  Defined contribation plans
Oblrparions for contribations 0 defined contribution plans are expensed ac e related service s provided. Prepaid conmibutions are recognised as an asset (o the

extznt that 4 cash refund or a reduction in fiture paymenis s avaslable
N/
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217
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Deflioed benellt plans

The Group’s net obliganion in respect of defined beneflt plaas s calculated separately For cach pian by estimating the amount of futuwe benedl that employees
have eamed in the curreal and prier periods. discounting thar amoont and deducting the fair value of any plan assets,

The calculstion of defined hepefi obfgations is performcd annually by 3 qualified schuary using the prejecied wnit credil method, Wieo the caloulation resulls in
a potential assel for the Group. the recognised asset is limired 10 the presem value of econamic benefits avadlable m the fomm ofany Buture refunds fmm Lhe plan
or reductions in fohure contributions o the plan. To calculne (he preseal value of economic benefits, consideration is giveo 10 any applicabl f
requiremenis.

Re-mapsurement of the et defined benefil Jiability, which comprise actuanal pains and lesses. Whe return on plan assets (excluding inteeest) and the effect of the
assel ceiling (if any, excleding imterest), are recognised mmediately in other comprehensive income (OC). Net interost capense (income) on the nel defined
liability {assets] 15 conputed by applying the discoum e, used 10 measure the nat defined liability (assety. to the net defined Lability {asse) 2t the stan of the
financial year after taking into account any changes as a result of conmibution and benafir paymenes during the year, Net infercst ¢xpense and other capenses
related 10 delined bene 5t plans are recagnised in prafi or 1oss.

When the beasfits of & plan are changed or when 2 plan is cutiailed. the resulting change in bene fir that relazes o past service of the gaiu ar |oss on curailment is
recagnised immediately in prafit or loss, The Growp recognises gains and Josses oo the scttlement of a defined benefit plan when che setllement acenrs.

Otber long-terrn employee beaefis

The Group's wt obligation in respect of long-term employee benalis i the amount of funtre benefit that eployees have carmed in return For their service m the
current and prior periods. That benelil & discounted ro devermine ils present value. Re-measurement are reeopmised in profiv or loss in the period in which they
arige.

Provisions

Long-ierm provisons are derermined by disroussing he expected funure cash Dows specilic w the liabiliy, The unwinding of ihe discount is recognised as
[inance casl.

Provisions are meastred at the present value of menagemen’s best 2stimate of the expenditure required to setlke the present ebiigation at the cod of the reporting
peniod. The discount rate used to determing the praseqs vabue i 8 pre-tax mite that reflecis cumem market asscssmems of the 1ime value of moncy and the Hsks
specilfic 6 i lability. The increase inthe provisioo due Lo the passape of dme is ecognised as mnierest 2xpense.

Onerons contracts
A provisien for onerous contracts is measured at the prescnt value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expecead nel cost of
contiuing with the comrare. Bafore a provision is estgblished, the Group recoprises ary impainoent loss on the assers associated with thal conlroer.

Earnings per share

Basic eurnings per share is compurcd by dividing the proefil loss) after iax by the weighted averape oumber of equity shares outstanding dering the year The
weighted avermpe number of equity shores outstanding during the year is adjusicd for the events for boaus &suc. bonus element o a rights issue 10 exising
sharcholders. share spln and reverse share split | consolidation of shares).

Diluted eamnings per share is compuled by dividing Lhe profii « (Ioss) afier tax as adjusied for dividend, interest and oher clsarges 1w expense or income ( net of any
aneihutabl2 taxes) relating o the dilutive potcntial cquity shares. by the weiphted averape number of equity shares considered for deriving basic eamnings per share
and the weighied avermge oumber of equity shares which could lave been issued on comversion of all diludive poteatial cquity shares

Leases

Ministry of Corpomic ARais 1“MCA™) though Companies |Indian Accounong Sundards) Amendment Bules, 2019 and Companics 1Indian Accounting
Siandards) Sevond Amendment Rules, has rotified fnd AS | 16 Leases which replaces the exisring lease stndard, Ind AS 17 luases, and ofher mterpretations. [nd
A% LIE sets oul the principles for the rooopnition, measurement. preseaation and disclosure of leases for bolh lessees and lessors. It introduces a single, an-
balsnce shept lease accounting mode] for lassaes,

All of the Group leases al [ April 2019 were either canceliable or short term or had a remaining peried of less then one year from that dat, Accoedingty. the

transirion 1o Ind AS 116 did not have any impact oo the Mancal steemems of te Company as al that dare.
M

\

\
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MNate dia)
Property, plant sad equipment
Purticatars Leasehokd Freehold Bulldings Plant & Furniture Electrical | Computers | OfTice aad Metor Toral
improvemenis Laad Machioery | aod Grfures finlings Oher vehicles
Evipments
Caost /) Deemed Cast
At 31 March 2018 i 1600 ]| 61 437 12 Hi hu il 5 474
Additions 467 - - B 0 3 30 Lo i4 72
Dispesals - - - 1} 129, - 12 £20) & 195}
At 31 March 0¥ 475 1616 41 M 493 13 M =\ 227 5316
Addiriaons - - 9 4 2 - 34 4 a5 1
Do account of disposal of @ w1 subsidiaries - 18 148 ) [ (833 . (211
Drisprsals © ad|usoments - - - 2 [ - [jat] [CL] {20 [HI5]
A1 Mareh 2020 475 2.61& 50 351 E[iX] 114 b5 S0l i 5008
Depreciation / amortisatlan
At 31 March 2018 l - 3 63 32§ - 129 255 BT 1,131
Charge for the year A - 5 al 55 12 &9 T s 3N
Disposals * adjustmenis - - - it i3 - 47} 1 (4] 135
At 31 March 2018 32 - § 3 376 k1] 97 33 B0 1,410
Charye Tisr e year 1ng - 5 3 s 1? 3 63 0 3
On accoim of disprsal of invastments w subsidiarias - - - [nf) {33 in 14 1750 - {125
Drisposals - - - ] (LGEH . 1204 145 (7 £ 190)]
At 31 March 2020 141 - 13 (1] 157 161 413 mt L4t l.dlgl
Net Bloek as at A1 dlacch 2019 443 2.616 Ex) [ ¥i] 132 33 T 237 147 3,906
Net Bloek as at 31 Mtarch 2020 334 1616 7 3 46 15 3 213 119 ME'
Naie 3{b)
Tepreciation and amoetixation cxpense
Particulars 1 Mar 220 1 Mar 2019
FProsperty, [Hlan and equiptient 3 314
Irves e Peopserts 13,737 L5035
Right to use an assel 1417 -
L ihle assets 1776 1.503
Sub-tolal 17251 16942
Less: Capilalized bo Investmen Property under consruction - {35}
L2181 L6858

\
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Natedra)
Imveshment Froperty
Particulars Freekeld laod Eeagehold land | Baildings | Computers| Fueniore Office Electrical Mam £ Tatal
and Axtores | equlpments

Cra ¢ Devnsed Cost

At 31 March 2018 k.1 14121 20532 132 EL] L1

Alkitiune . . TE . 1= yl

Despewals - . - - - il

Ar 2 March101% Pt 1411 242049 b2 525 12RY 11,952

Loy reclassefia| by Raght for wse a0 oty - 1141279 - . - . . - {LARLITY]
(Refer nxe 4 by

Additione iy - M 255 - (L) e 3,86 AT 34,483
O arvowr aFdigpos al ol covestments o subsalires £ 19,4437, 1137 1134 [RIE T {4 A (R.14%1 155,351,
Doy - - - - - . - - -
Ar 3 March 2020 1887 - IETATH L L5 [NEE] 15,3113 TR ER LRI

p i and |mpal,

A13! March 3018 h1%] 13,753 AiLdlir 120 3 152 R [ 2,004 TT.985
Chorge for dbe year® - 1axt WATI B L] 127 L1 3ix 15,035
Drisiprd - - - - - idl LIl 66Ty 1609
ALM March 2019 A 191 15, L1 49,581 126 au 7 5, L4y 15,3k 441
Less reclasaufied to Right Loowse o ssany [NEN L 15, LR
{Refa poe by

ingrapnend Juss f By Mol 3riqbn 1,578 - - - 1,878
Charge for the year * . - LA ALY - i 1L 187 B 13,737
O et nj dispasu] O my SUmERs B wbsidlries [ERxtT) I 1124 1348 %3] 1Ly 14,343y 122,206
Disposal - - - - - - - - -
At 33 March 1030 45T - SLu%6 - 5 345 532 13472 T bl
Nel Bloek at 1 31 March 204 14,457 L0 ) 53 1 185 98 £ 76 20,193 3526k
Men Blork as ai 31 Maech 2020 L85 - 206,407 I 121 Bld 1591 2814 L1 B
* Croymeci w Property uncler Comstruiion Bs Ky Previon vew R, 95 lakdey.

il Amoums recogmised [0 profit & leax for bovesimeet property

Particulars H March ¥ March

03 e

Freatal hecome #3532 4158

Direct apeEralng Exfanises b pregarty Lt penrsed reotal weots AT I5LlN

Dgect Spenkiing expues from penpaty ol il nust groerare ronte! yocoms: Rre] 1

] Leasiog drramgeitals
The Group s Yeused properti s under won-cimw dbibke vpernbme frasci in the copaeny ol st Rela Mote 47 fbr flune nenm lesse ey o pequen of e properues ol e sy of ock 1 penod.

M) Measarcmen of fair valoo

Thie 7ar walwe of propaTy afler vl stk bry an mEloponelent wiluer i Bk o b o] Tidinant p | quhifi e o resped o e Wvesmer
penipaITy beog valual

‘The D vl sise all ot ey ropaTy by e | 2 0 Level 3 Gt uniue hawslon U gpugy e the vahuhon |ocogue osel

In) Yakuaulon 1echebgme:

= mlumion o some sy el property hod e done by Salies Coogansen blothod s ks Appenich 4 companson e omde o the popesy of vlucaen with Sl propaizes tha bave recenth ot Sl i thie
markil and e Wove 3 Uansacion Erice Thi sl compunson Eppmach s e prismal upprooch when sales deie e avodshle Ceoparable propertes s selectal ior simlaniy wthe subyevt propey amswhang
ahritles ke age, size, shape, qualite of cotans: v, ballog feounes, conddium, design, gentry, 2. Thetr sak frees e i djusil o e i Tonmee Fom the bl pregesry Finatly 4 marker vohee 3 e suhpad
mropery i snmaed Fom the alfustu? abe proce of the companat € propetiss.

b The G urt L 61 Llvaesd b g g Bunws | echabgue S5r sUime rOpATy wich Lomsiders e present valog of et sish Grws 10 be generalad (i e pROpery, asimg osk- adpsial decoun mtes,

Lo In case of 0 valuaing of 2 barge Bimd pueced, whire Uie developuati mertnita] o realisal v o ponod of o e mue vehee oF ey conws M e proturd | nd also s bere there e o0 o W mmelae simle
reperues e eompacable) aalabie fir compmon. DCF method uoisiteng rdievant poteniz detolanmiets s the project 15 usal

Lo vestmenl oy comprises 4 oumber of comuariagl properies din are |eased 1 thanl paries, Exsdn oF e Tenses osferod 252 somially KiF & parwal ot § 10 [0 yerrs Subsieginnd nonewals o cerohalol with Ui loves: nf
2 puT Uw varms ol inrhal opr i Ihy rencwnl iy st chearge]

Reconcifatinn of fabr valoe

The follpwinpa the reconc/liadion i e fair values a3 of March 51, 2R19 and Magch 30, 2030

Pacticulars Amom|
DOpenlog haboce as of Apwil b, 205 St
Addtnns 4434
Fuur valug dilferenee 246
€ toing baloneo xa of Yiarch 3, 3069 S50
Addilerns 54,683
Deterion m aconms o dispnsad ol iswesiniets i subeidianes ri3 1451
Rexlasafivd 19 Raght fe wse an mssots (Refer s d thiy 11,2618,
Frur vl e diifyrmme SEI
Clayizg balance 25 of March 31, 2028 110,800
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Kote 4 (b
Righ1 10 use an assed

FParticulsrs Lezschoid [and | {dTce Premives Tatal

Last
At 3L Hlarch 2018 - -
Addirions - -
Disposals . _
At} March 2019 - -
Add ; reclesifcd from lwvestment propemy 1412
Additions -
Disposais B
i 3 March 1020 B 151

- 14
151 158

1AL A3

Amgrtisation sod im pairment
At 31 Mareh 2018 -
Charge for the year -
At31Aarch 2019 -
Add - reclassified fom Invesomem propems [RAL -
Charge for the year 1415 1
Disposaks - - -
AL 31 March 2028 [6.591 ] 16,547
Net Block as a9 31 March 3019 -

Mot Block asan 31 Marck 2820 124686 H7 114,833 |

L5440
[R1y

HNales
As al April 0L, 2004 the Group s reclassified gross amonnl of Right to use asset af Rs 141,280 dakhs wilh accumalated amormisation of Rs 15, 1a0 fakhs and the amaun amortized for e year ented

Manch 31, 22 is Rs [ ATT fakhs which has been charged 10 Sistement of Profil & Loss Account 1Refer Mo Moo 2 1%

Mota 4 e}
Geodnill om consotidation
Goadwill acquired oo bustaess combinalico is aliocated, al arquisition to the cash g g units {CG LY Inal are exgied 1o benafit from that business combination. The camying
amoum af Goadwill has been afocated 35 Rablows:

Pactlculars 50 March 2020 | 31 March 2H9

will i af;
TRIL Infopark Limited [ERINES F9, 53
- | Fty

TRIL Amritsar Projecis Limited
{Met of imparment (Reder e 2o 3 mdthn
TRIF Raal Esate Developmen Limited - hF
e of umpaimenty | Refer Note Ma 3 ea) and (o

2L716

;

(
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As 8l A5 gk
31 Mareh 2020 M Merch 2019
MNote 5
Capital work-in-prugress
Land demarcation and reforesiation 35 55
Project consuliancy and technieal charges 6 &6
14 121
MNaole 6
Tnvestment progerty Lnier construction
Land 24,584 24912
Direct expensas 60,389 116,546
B0.673 1,41 468
Nme 7
Intangible assets under develupment under Service Concession Arrangements
Project Uevelopment Exponscs 95,172 62,308
Professional Fers Fid ] 1363
Project Management Fees - 3100
Finance {osls {including unwinding of micresi} 13, k30 13937
Coastruction Cost to Coniractar 7485 T4.996
Financial Liability for premivm payabl ised at fair value 30278 62155
Cither Expensss 2,023 1308
118518 2,344,165
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Note §
Intangible assers
Particulars Saltwares Service Cancession Tan}
Arrangements
irefer fnal nate
beluw)
C st ¢ Deemed Coat
At 31 ¥arch 200% Suy 41T T ]
Additions 1 w2 9231
Disposals - - -
40 3 Margh 2019 4118 =03 30,744
Additone T L4378 1A) 126
I account of Jispasal of inv esmrents 10 subsideanes LT - 117
Dizpasals 21l . 113
AL Vlarck 1026 05 [RUE R 1.53.815
Axurtisation and imeairmenl
At 31 Maach 200 il 3424 it
Charge ko the vear 1 [571 L3493
Digposals - - -
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial stalemens (Continued)
{{wrency: [ndem mapees in lakhs)

MNate 9

[nvestment pocounted using Equity Method (81 carrying vosty:
Unguoted equity shares, fully paid-up

2AB6.T1) (2019; 1,3%6,7[1) cquity shares of Pune Salapur
Expressways Prvate Liniizd, of Rs. 10 cach fully pard up.

740,000 {2019; T40,000} equity shares of INR ) each in TRIL IT4
Private Limited { Forrerly known as Albrecht Buflder Privaie Linted |
HH#

30,000 (201%: HON0) equity shares of A & T Road Consmuchon
Management and Operation Frivare Limited. of B 10 cach fully paid
up. ##

3.256 12019:3.7561 equity shares of INR (00 cach 1o Indusirial
&hincrals and Chemicals Company Privae Limited

19087400 1201% IDABT400) equiry shares of TNR 0 each o
Mikade Realtors Pvt, Ltd,

4 AG7 A0 (2319 Ny equiry shares of TNR |0 each i Pune IT City
Mewro Rail Limited

1A
Iovestment im debentures of joing ventures
§14 12019: 814) Quoted Redeemabie Noa-convertibla Debentures of
INR 10 Lacs cach mn TRIL IT4 Frivate Limited
LA 7ET, 460 (2019; 10.473,960} L'oguated Compelsanly Convertible
Debentures of INR 100 ¢ach In [ndustrial %inerals and Chemicals
Company Privare Limited
18]
A By

# Unrecoenlsed share of Losses in Joint ¥enture
TRIL IT4 Private Lymited
A & T Road Consmuction Management and Cperaiion Private Limited

Note 10
(rther lovestments (non-rorrent)

lovestment m Unquoted, Fully paid-up, Equity insruments of Cher
Companies [Faur Valued Throogh Profic and Lass) r Refer Foot notz)

TIPG00 (2019: 117600) equity shares of Yagarm W indfarms Lonited
1R.90.000 (2019 Nily equiry Sharas o of Permyy iveep Privale Liniied

PISART {2019, 109.08T) equuy shares of Echanda L'rja Private
Limmted

Note:

As at
31 March 2020

Ax gl
31 March 2019

21348 T
1
11,950 21910
M35 436
4226
58760 MSIlb
8140 8140
11,787 10474
19.927 18.614
T8.687 73,130
121517 t1e3]35
- N
12 32
18 B
1 11
211 23

The above investments represents mvestment in cquity shares of the above mentioned entities pursuant to the requiremeni under the
Electrivity Act. @ connection with the pewer purchase arangement that the gmup hos in place with Lhese partics. As per the terms of
these myesiaents. the woup 15 not entitled to any other returns or benalits and will be entitled to receive the amounl invested equivalend

to the face valuz af the equity shares upon expiry of such agreements.

Note 11

Oiher financial assess nun-current)

Unsecwred, consldered good

Fired deposh havinp marurn more than 12 monihs under lien
Lease remlal receivable

Recoverable from Pimyab Lithan Developunent Aucharit
Secunty Deposils

=

5977 ano
Ia3 1933
- 517
984 67
7204 1,677




Tata Realty and [nfrastructure Limited
INates a the consolidated Mnancial stalements (Contioued b
{Currency: Indian rupees wn lakhsy

Note 12
Deferred tax assets (Net)

- WIVESIIEnts in as50Ciakes and J0inT Vennures

- glher financial assels ai Mair velue trooph profic and loss

- Un other provisioms |mcludmg provision for employee benelits and
ather amounts allowablc on 4 payment basis)

- on accawet alPPE and Intangbles

- derivatives (mcludmy call put opioas)

Nate 13

Noao Current tax essets (Neth
Advance Lax
Lass: Provision {or ta

Mote 14

Other non-cusrent assets
LUinsecured. considered good

Capital advances

Balance with Governmeni Authories
Security Deposit - Others

Prepaid expenses

Lrase cquakisation reserve

Unbilied Revenue

Cther aon-current assels

MNaote 1S

Ioventories

fvalived af cost or et reafisable vitfue whichever is fess)
Bough put construction materiaks

Consumables stices and spares

Work-m-projmess

Fitiished poods (Rafer fool nute)

Foal mote:

Represent value of residentnl units. Net off MRY provision on myearanes INR 142078 Lakhs (30 E9- NIy

Nate 16
Trade end other receivablcs

Onestanding [or a period excecding six months:

- From others

Outaranding for 2 panod less thon s months;

- From others

- From related parties

Less : Provision for credil uopaired Trade Receivabies

Break-up for security details:
Secured, congiderad pood
Unsecured, considered good
Unzecurad, considered Jaubiful
Allpwance for doubiful debs

Note 17
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on band
Belance with banks
- in Swrent accounls
- in deposit Bdcounts

Note 18
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Term deposir with onpmal maberity fess than welve momhs under iien

As at Agat
31 March 2020 31 March 2019
131 2487
157 1,340
M 239
4397 ™
2,130 1,59%
0,592 6,456
18,787 15,848
(6,424} (4.986)
12359 10,889
B.6M4 16676
[EY] 112
17 -
&20 8
L1,59% 9310
157 -
+ 115
21,311 26275
52 il
- 7
2430 15.341
Jo80F 8,248
33587 43718
H +3
2003 2110
b ddd 938
{306} 12751
2 865 28446
1,675 1067
L.190 785
doe 25
(306) (275}
1,865 2846
= ]
30 43
3300 1068
26,610 3,729
29940 5,921
219 1.579
219 1,579

o



Tata Realty and lofrastructure Limited
Notes Lo the consolidated linancial statements (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupexs in lakhs

Note 19

Other [nvestments {curTent)

Investment in mutval funds, fair valued through Profit and Less
Unies Held 491,528 935 (X113 : 10,576.43} of Face value of Rs 1,004
(NAY - Bs 5,131.99 (2019 : 2.044. 41} each in TATA mopay warke
fund -Crowth Option

Linits Held 3.289,874.36 [2019: Hil] of Face value of Rs (D (%AY
Bs 319,56} each 1 ABSL Liquid Fund - Growth

Lmats Heid 385.284.66 [2019: Nilj of Face value of Rs 10 {NAY - Rs
31806 61 aach in HDFC Liquid Fund - Growth Option

Linus Held 10,286.570.04 [2019: Nil] of Fage valuc of Rs 10 (INAV -
Rs 293.78) each in 1CICT Prudential Liquid Fund - Growth Dphion

Units Held il |2019: 28.831 67] of Face value of Rs 100 each
NAV - Rs. 2,780, 16} im Franklin [ndia Treasury Management Account
Super (nstitutional Plan - Growth Option

Lmrs Held Nil {2018: 10,12.407.79] of Face vatue of Ra 10 each
IMAY - Bs. 20270 m Frankln [odia Uloa Sheort Bond - Super
Institunional Plan - Growlh Option

Note 20

Short-term leans and advaoces
Unsecired, consdered gaud

Advances given

Security deposits

Advances recoverable Fom Related Paries
Other loans and advances

Noee 2
Otter Noancial assels (current)
Unsecured, cansidered gaod

Inserest accrued on depossts

Claimz Recaivable from NHAT |milny shiffng}
lnter-conporate Deposils given to Related Partizs
tinbilled revenuea

Foratgn Exchanpe Forward Contract Recetvable
Security deposits

Others currenr (inancial nsser

MNote 22

(Hber currept assets

Unsectred, considered vood

Advance to veadors

Balances with Government and other authioritics
Prepaid expenses

Lease equalisation reserve

Claim Receivable from WHAL {Refer foot note below)
Others

Foot Note;

As at
31 March 2020

As nt
31 March 201%

13395 311
10,513 -
153052 -
220 -
- 804
- 268
71,180 1,383
- 2000
3 iR
579 [T
807 kX% ]
1. 349 3034
198 £13
1,232 674
2510 -
438 537
103 -
775 263
4 392
5,501 1,981
13 681
3107 L463
9 805
1079 1,360
1547 1,048
355 3l
10,161 5388

Claim Becervahle Brom NHAI portauns lo claims towards change in law a5 per clanss 411 of Service Concession Ayreernent enwered with
MHAL These are hack o back claims made by EPC Comtractor as per clause 24.2 of EPC agreement and Uwe same are payable 1o the
EPC Comrncmor only o the extent such claums are racognised by WHAI as change o law and paywents are released To the extent such
claémes arc not accepled by NHAD the same shall accordingly not be payable w EPC contractor and aczordwmgly corresponding lishiliry

shall reduee,

1/'
L_f’



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements
as at 31 March 2020
{Currency: [ndian rupees in lakhs)

Note 23

Equity share capital
Authorised share capital

8,00.00.00.000 (2019: 3,00,00.,00,000) equity shares of INR 10 each

Issued, subscribed and paid-up
1.01,73.07.692 (2019. 1.01.71.07.692) equity shares of INR 10 each

Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

Equity shares

At beginning of Lhe year
[5sued during the year
Qutstanding at the end of the year

Terms and rights attached to the equity share

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

8,00,000 3,000
01,701 1,01.731
1,61.731 1,01,731
31 March 2020 M March 2019
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
1,01,73.07.692 101,731 1.01.73.07.092 1,001,731t
1.01,73,07.692 101,731 1,01.73,07,692 1.01,731

The Company has anly one class of equity shares having par value of [NR 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. The
Company declaces and pays dividends in Tndian repees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject 1o the approval of sharebelders in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting. [n the event of Liquidation of the Company, the halders of the equity shares will be entitled o receive remaining assets
of the Company. afler distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion (o the number of equity shares held by the

shareholders.

Shares ol the company hield by the Holding company

Equity shares of INR 10 each, fully paid-up
Tata Sons Private Limited

Details of shareholding more than 5% in the company

Equity shares of [NR 10 each, fully paid-up
Tata Sons Private Limited

4

31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
1,01,73,07,692 101,731 1,01.73.07 692 1.01,73]

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Number of shares

% Holding

Number of shares

% Holding

1,01,73.07,692

140%

1,01.73.07,692

[0D%

v



Tata Realty and [nfrastructure Limited
Notos (o the € lidated fi tal stai nts {Conti i}
{Currency: (ndian rupees in lakhs)

Nute I4
Other equity

Share application money pendlog attorment

Reserves and surplus
Secunties premium reserve
Capital reserve

Relamed eamings

Oiher comprebensive incgme
Defined benelil plan adjustment

Sharc epplication mpney pending allotment
Opening balance
Recceived dhring the yea

Retained earningy

Opening balance

Transition adjf due te application af INDFAS 115
(Refer Nowe 31 {ap)

et Ioss for the year anrburable (o owners
Conzolidation adjustment

Other comprehensive income - Defined benefit plan adjustment
Opening balance

Remessurements of defmed beaefi Liabilin

Incame tax relating to ilems that will not be reclassified 1o peofit or loss

Nomcontrolling intercals

Openipg balmec

Laosz for the year

Issue of new shares r CCT i sshsidiarics

Nature end purpose of the reserves:
Secuvities premium reserve

As at
31 March 2020

As ar
A1 Mareb 2019

1,20,000 -
15.769 15,769
1911 491
(L35,79M 199.543)
19 27
4,918 (78,836)
1,20,000 -
120,200 -
(99,543 {74,541}
. (1,304
(26,256} (23.663)
- (5]
(1.35,799) {99.841)
27 (14
1 53
{n (ldy
29 7
6,617 BA25
23y 124
- Ly
6,384 6417

D014 Compulsenly cenventible debenmures were compulsonly coovernible mio equity shares by 25 Aweust 2006 or before at the option
of investor, During the Financial year 201 6-17 ton 34 August 201861, these debentures were convenied inte 192,307,692 Equity shares of

IR 10 cach a1 a premasum of INR 3 zach.
Caplizl reserve

Capiial reserve was created o record excess of et assets aken over pursumnt 1o scheme of merger sancnoned by the Bombay High
Courl in Lhe year 2013-16 between Tata Realty and Infrasmucoure Limited. Mara Builder Private Lamited and TRIF Real Estate and

Development Limited.

Note 15

Borrowings {Loog-torm) (refer footnote below)
Seeured

Froms Banks and Financial nsnbrions

From Others

Unsocured

Non convertible debanmures

Froin Banks and Finaneial lnstindions

428,356 44,736
19,045 4010

133419 114,792
12,929 -

596,149 544,488
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Tata Realty and [nfrastructure Litnited
Nores to rhe o lidated financiaf srae 15 1Continuedy
Curency: [mdian rupees in lakhst

A5 A at
21 March 2024 M Vareb 2019
Nate 16
Otber Mnancial liabillbes (non-current)
Financal tiaksligy for premium payment at fair value B9.4H6 LRI
Security depusils Tom customers 10,797 18211
Interest acerued but nol due on bormowings 5933 11.419
Darivatives not designated as hedges
- Forwards - 423
- Put eplion 1391 1218
Liability towards purchase ar shares 601 A1
Retention muney payable 947 | 2
Sevunt Jeposits - 23
Project development ltes payahle - 43
Lense Linbdities | Refer note 2,181 13 -
88914 t,03, a8
Note 17
Long-lerm provistons
Provision for emplovee benefin:
- Ciratuity 46 3t
- Campensated Jbsences 02 ald
Provisian for Construetion Cost 1280 -
Brovision for Major Maintenanee of Road = 121 1115
2364 3268
2 Ay per the hes) ag of tho t, provizion is been made. wowards cost of major maimenance af te roads. Such major

muintenance 15 te be 2xecuted 10 the Finaneial Year 202020 in rerms of the agreemlent entered nto with National Highways Awhenty af
India.

Parvicolars A1st March, 020, 315t March. 2019
Opening balanee 2215 .ige
4.3d: Proviston for the year 1.27% 1014
Add: Lowinding of descounts on provision %6 ' B
Closing balance:
- Long4enn Provisien i1 2214
- Short-term Fro isign 3500 -
Yote 18
Deferred tax lisbilities {Netl
- on account of PPE and Mntangibles 4364 s
- ether finaneigl assets at fair value through proi 100 less . 367

- O other provisions fincluding provision tor emplosec benefits amd

wiher amounts fifowable oo a payment hasist 157 -
3021 354
Nire 19
Other non-current Habilities
Advance received fTom customers 7050 PR
Advance rent recened 1113 4390
9,774 1D
Mate 30
Short-tevm borrowings (refer Toutnote fe Nere Yo, 33)
Secured
- Frem Banks 101 3,789
Unsecured
- From Bank 000 -
Commercial paper
- From Mural funds = 13,11 T, 367
Bank Crardrafy - 4118
Iater Carparate Deposits trom Related Pantiss B | . LKHI
Laans from Othaes * £} o
L0514 J3374

Mate:

= The sud harrowing represents Commarmal paper 153ued (o mulual funds at 1 disenont rbe ranging Goot o, b - 90040 per wnem
{2009 7 2F - W.14% per annum), and the same are repayabie within ooe 3ear at the agreed vpon 7l face value,

* Borrowings outstanding as an 30 March 2024 and 31 March 2019 15 towards mteress fres. unsceurad loan which shall be due and \
vepayable after satisfaction of icanche | ennditions (o Mnberan Ropeways P, Lad, 1 -

o

|



Tata Realty and I1nfrastructure Limited
MNotes e the ¢ lidared 6 inl stak s {Conti
1Currency: [ndian rupees in lakhs)

As at As at
31 Merch 2020 3t March 2019
Note 31
Trade and other payables
Due 1o Miero and Small Enterprises | Refer Note 48) 6 53
Due 1o athers 5,873 2413
5,879 9,168
Nate 32
Current - Other financial liabilikigs
Current Maturity of Long Term Barrowings (tefer foomote to Note No. 23|
Non<coovertible debennsres 30,994 1.18.754
From banks 35T 463
Security deposits from customers LGI9 134
Capital creditors 10,867 12442
[nterest accrued but nat due o6 borrowings 17,204 8.332
Derivative Linbility oa put opticn 17432 15477
Financial hiabiliyy for premium peyment ar Eair value 1815 10350
Payahle - Claim ra EPC {Refer foot note to Note 223 4.647 -
Other fimancisl liabilities 307 824
1,289,765 169,725
Note 3]
Other enrrent liabilities
Advances from cuslomers 1976 3.454
Stanuory duss 3,577 [HEX
Corpus Fund collection 781 L]
Advance Maintenence Charyges - o3
Comp ion on delayed p on payable 4] 11
Uneamned rens 1385 1332
Secority Depasit Fon Cusiomers 43 B4
Crher current lisbilities 128 49
7.001 754
Note 3
Short-term provisions
Provision far ¢employee benefirs:
- Gratuiry 83 52
- Compensatad absences 152 181
Pravision for Major Maintenanee of Road (refer footnote ko Note No 3,500 -
ko]
Orher Provisions it} _
3777 263
Note 35
Current tax liabilities iNet)
Prowigion for Tax 8973 AT
Advance Tax and Tax Dedueted at Soarce {T.219) 17361
1,756 1,788




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continyed)
{Currency: Indian rupecs in lakhs)
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Note 36
Revenue from pperations

(A} Sales of products
Sale af residential flats 13,050 9463

(B) Sale of services

Construction revenue 68,417 83,760
Toll revenue ¢ fncludes raceipt of demonetisation claim Rs. Nil Lakhs (2014: 12,732 12819
Bs. 11907 lakhs))
Leage rentals 18,077 41,870
Muintenanca and other receipis 6,911 5.953
Litility income 2614 6,243
Parking fees income 1,296 1.231
Project management consultaney fees 1.625 1,123
Asset Management Charges [ncome 136 144
Reverue fram other services - 186
157.87% 167814
MNota 37

nher income

[nterest income 3.8a47 1,933
Interest on incomz-1ax refund 06 74
Profit on sale of current investments in Mutual Fonds B2 273
Mark to Market ain on current investment in Mutual funds 435 Lan
Prefit on sale of Property Plam and equipment | -
Other income from residential projects 50 162
Fair value 2ain on dervatives { net| - 33
Forfeiture of security depesits - 4
Excess provision written back 19 177
Provision for doubttul debis - credic impaired wrinen back 172 -
Miscellanaons jpneome 365 54
3,998 6,616




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)
(Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs?

Note M

Cost of materials consumed

Opening balance - Bought out construction materials
Less: Closing inventonas

A
Expenditere incurred during the year:
Opening stock of [nveniorigs - Finished Goods and Work in Progress
Add: Transition adjustment pertaining to IND AS |15 application
{Refer Note 31 ia))
A ddition during the year
Coastrugtion cost *
Approval and permission expenses
Professioni! fees and technical fees
Other expenses
B
A+B

Less: Closing Stock of Inventorias - Finished goods and Work in progress
Cost of flats sald

* lncludes NRV provision on inventories of INR 1.420,78 Lakhs (2019: NIL},

Note 39
Constructian costs

Note 40
Employee benetlt expenses
Salaries. wuges and borus
Contributions to : Provident and pension tunds
Stafl welfare
Grafuity expenses
Compensated absences
Less: capitalised to investment property uader construction
Less: capitalised to intangible assets under developrient

Note 3

Fimauce costs

[nterest costs:

- on term loans and NCDYs from Banks and Financial [nstitutions
- on cash credit and overdrafts from Barks

- on commercial paper from Mwua! Funds

MTM on forward contract

Finance charges

Unwinding of interast expense

Iess: capitatised (o investment property under construction
less: cupitalised (o intangible assets uader development

A
J. /c'

31 Miarch 2026

31 March 2019

52 136
{52) {32}

- 204
43,589 44113
- LATU
1,950 3319
26 0

69 47

20 86
43,654 49,507
15,634 19,712
33,535 13,589
12,119 6,122
64,023 B3.09%
7.608 3,787
123 167
255 31

37 9
(33 126
(26) 207
(17 {74)
7,083 8,159
47,160 30,732
142 33
11,350 6140
33 603
1,594 +Ha
5,666 31,736
(5,306) (3000
{353} {3,770}
60,186 51,055

{
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements {Contireed)

{Cuerency: Indian rupees in lakbs}

Note 42
Other expenses
Power and fuel
Impaiement in value of Goodwill (Refer Nute 50 {a))
Impairment in value of Intangible asset under SCA and Building
( Refer Note 30(b))
Repanrs and maintenance
- Building
- Plant & Maehinery
- Proviston for Major Maintenance of Road ¢ Refer Note 27)
- Others
Openmtiog and inzinterance charges for infrastructure facilities
Fair value loss on derivatives {net}
Advertisement and busingss promotion cxpenses
Legal and professional fees
Rates and taxes
Rent { Refer Note 47)
Travelling and conveyance
Bank charges
Telephone and communication expenses
Busingss development expenses
Training and recruitment expenses
Provisions and write-ofTs:
Provision for credit impaired Trade Receivables
Bud debis
Advance wrinen off
Prowision for credit impaired Inter corporate deposits
Loss on accoum of disposal of investments in subsidiacies 1 Reter
Note 50(c))
Auditor's remuneration | Reter faol note below )
Brokerage
Arbitrudon Award paid (Refer Nate Mo, i)
Insumnee charges
Fees to NHAI
Printing, courier and smticnery
Directors sitting Fees
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Expenditure on Corporate Social Responsibility
Compensation paid Lo customers
Compensaticon paid to vendors
Miscellapeous expenses

Faot Note:

Auditor's remuneration include pavments towards:
- for statetory awdil

- for taxatiun maner

- for viber senices

31 March 2020

M Marel 2019

5297 T2
- 73
134 -
T0 74
55 %0
1219 RO
482 317
7159 AT
1,103 -
1.098 1,229
3,158 2237
1.162 1129
322 338
3n3 387
124 34
53 137
B33 36
13 127
306 300
- 22
v 1,050
317 -
K)E -
107 a0
T68 191
1,120 -
140 ot
86 1ng
13 4
43 48
| 3l
L& [77
- 588
i3 -
90 137
37,951 28,555
34 &3
|3 L]
o L]
107 90




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the lidsted Moangial 18 i)
favr Mhe vear suded 31 \arck 20

1 urrency- Indian mpers in (akhss

Tate 41
Earnings per share
31 March 1020 J1 Murch 2019
Baale earrtings per share
Luosa affer tax aticbutable to cquus shareholdars A 136.258) XN
Number F2quily shires vitsranding a1 the beganming at e wew I,01,73,07.622 (1 BRI,
Equity shores msued dunng the sear - .
Murnber of squiry saress oulsianding Jt the and of e vear 14H . 73.07.802 13317307 a0
Wenghted werage numher of equity shares sustanding thming the vear (based on daie 1 [c) 1.00.73,07 69X LU, 7307642
wsug af gares|
Rights Shate spplicanan money recened Juring the v - pendmy allomment RN LIRTHEV ]S -
Waghted v ermye number of sty shares outstanding dunne the zear [y 1,61,73,07.697 1K, T T o0
Basic easninus per share of face value of B 14 mch 0= 4 BT 13.50) aAEm
$Dlured aarnings per siart
Dituted caminys pev shorz af fire vatue of TR 14 each = iE =40 123
= Anti-dilutive - hence not considerad
Note4d
T} and v
1) Coni Liabilities { Reler n
Cloims agalast the Company ol acknowledyed as debes 31 March 1ot 31 March 2009
= Incame tay demands contested by dwe Company [R5 2567
- Indirect tax demands comeaed by e Company T 67
- Claims made by sonercioes (R2fer foauwate 2 - L.t
- Lther Lagal Clawms B2 .
Toor Notes

b The Group does nal expect amy outthes: of scongmic resaurses in raspect o the abova and Thertfore no prowdtien o made 1 respect thereal
2 Clum mads by conlrators tas hoon pad dunng 1)e vlomens vear. and ir & Jebited to the Staemeo of Profie and Loss | Recer e 421,

{li] Commilmants

(ap! far RS and Far 4 ane rata | - R 1,350 takhs (2019 Wit}

(] Benk Juarantas wsued gn behall of lha Company and s Subsilanes and Jaint Venhsres out of he overall non fund based limis of 1ha Sompany
INR 7,222 Lakba {2015 INR 5948 kakha)

iz} The Parent Company has iéued later 2 comiart to banks v respad of loans ayaded by a faw ol 15 subsidianes an [om? veniuras

Name of subsidlaries ¢ jolm veatures Mztuse of Comfor given
i |Mikado Raaliors Py Lid Zhorfsl undatakeg b masl any shorilal dunmg tha tanure oF Sl
it |Arow Infra Estales Povata Limted Sharfail undarakmg w mag any ahortfal durng tha renure 3f Lacility

il |Gurgaocn Constnuctwel Pevate Limitad | Shartfall underaling e mesl any shordall dunng the enure of Facliy

Iy |Gurgacon Raaliach Limbad Sharfall undenaking te meet any shortfall dunng the lenua of faciiy

v | Intarnahonad Infrabwid Preare Limitad To anguie payment o dabaniure holders ot the gvent of lammnaton af he
cancesaion ‘Agreement.

{d} The Parant Company hae icgued fnanclal latter to following subaidiarias 30d joint ventures on the baals of which the ssparate
i have besn p ¢ on gaing haals

1 Agama Living Solutens Prvale Lirrtard
i MILA Infrasirucurs Privala Limited

i Wallkept Fagillty Manageman! Sarvicas Pruele Limilsd {Pravicusly known as TAIL Hasgiralie 2 nvate Limitad) \
v TRIF Gurgsnn Housing Pryjects Private Lumited

¥  TRIL Urkan Transparl Pnvals Lunded \
vr TRIL Roads Prvale Limilad

wi Gumgasn Construbheel| Preate Limited

Wil HY Farms Prvats Limited




Tata Realty and lnfrastructure Limited
Notes to (ke Aid. il {Cantinued)
Jor the year entled 31 March 2000

(Cwrency: Indian tupecs in lakhs)

Note 45
Capital and other commimments

Particwlars 3 March 2024 31 Maerch 2019

Estimaled ameunt of it 12 b evecuted on capial account and not provided e (el of 33,424 60,491
mdvances)

Nate 46
Seproent reporiing

A, Basis lor segmenmetion
The Group has ihree repooatile cepments. as described below, which ane the Gmups smtqpc basiness umm These business uaits offer different produats
and services, and are managed separatel because ihey nequire dift oy and

The following summary describos the operations incach uf the Croup's reparable segmems:
Reportable stgmea;

- Development of Residential property Gt oulright sake.

- Real Esialz

- Inlrasiruchure

B. laformaliea abdut reporioble sepmemris

Informaticn retamdiy the results of cach re is meleded below Porh [ ) based on seun profit {before tax), a8 incloded
in the inicmal managemeni Teports thag are neviewel h;. the Groop's CODM Sewment profil is wsed 10 measure porfonmance as manapement believes chat
such infbrmagion is 1he st relevam in evalaling the resulls of certain sensments relatiy ¢ vo glher entities thn gperate within these ndustries Tnier-segment
pricing 15 determined an an arm's fenagh basis

Refer Anneww A

C. Ilnfo Jon abreat major
There are po customers fom whnm Group recogmuses rovetus s tan | % of caal revenue of the Group




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the Consolidated financial statements

Sor the vear ended 31 March 2020
iCnreeney: Indian rapees w lakhs)

Keter Nute Mo, 46
Anueiure A

Development of residenlial

Real Estate

Infrasirucivre

Limalluvaied

Twial

Purtivulins propeety fur gutviply sale

31 Abareh 2020] 3 Murch 2009) 31 March 2020) 31 Mareh 2019|310 Maeeh 2020] 31 March 2009 31 Mareh 2020] 31 March 2009 31 March 2020] 31 March 2019
REVENUL
Net sales
Ruvicnue 13010 14,253 62,224 35,278 Bi,56] {2328 6,48) 6373 163,877 174,332
Tutal revenar 13,600 10,233 62,224 55,278 BL363 1402 37y 6481 4,573 1,635,877 174432
Experses 14,062 8230 25,003 17,123 TLA1T ¥ 240 11,397 1t 432 1,22.074 126031
RESLIY
Sepmuii Kesult (453} 2017 37121 38,154 164G RS ] (4,915) 14,858 11,799 RERTHN
Finaumee custs - - 24,725 23 400 0,964 B,bl2 IR U7 22 987 Gik, 186G EERTRS]
DrepreciatunyImpairment . - 15,410 15 163 1,649 L,554 84 144 17,251 |43, 838
Nel luss belore Bues and sturee of (eind {35,634) {20,512y
yeulures
OTHER INFORMA TION
ANSITS
Sepmenl Agsels 34,503 43,383 404,663 637 3,67,664 281 62 1B 10w 83 330 L84 244 ER AR
‘Tolal Assels 34,803 43 382 4,594,663 5,63 .347 367609 290,062 1,83, 1049 83,330 Lin,gi), 244 RN e |
LIABILITIES
Seeiner Liabilines 4,484 6.6y 3,46.266 367457 2,94,277 225726 322192 353,234 967214 9583 11w
Tatal Viabilties 4,484 (4] Jgtl.lﬁ(: 307 457 L4277 223,770 3.22.192 3,53.234 Y 67,219 EEENTL

5N




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
“otes fo the lidared Ananeial (Continaed)

e

e vear eaded £ Lhapch 2120

tCumrency: Indian rupess i lakhsy

a
h)

1ify

Mate 47

Lexie arvangements

Operaling leases - 05 a ssee

The Group has 1aken various premises under capselleble operaliny feases.

The Growp has alse laken & commergial propercty and cemlain residential premises on non-cancellable pperating leases. The funure mnimum tease pmment:
in respect of these properues a5 on 3) March 2020 & o Folbows:

Leasz Pax e nls 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Mol Inter than ane wear 194 174
Laier than ore year but mot later than fee years i3 T

Later than five years -

Paymens of lgase ramals durimg the year 3 258

There are Ao eaceptianal s Aaive cuvenants in die tease areements

AS A Lessar

Operalimg Loase

The froup has leased some ipvesimimt properies As on 31 March 2020, (he Fulute minimum |case paymens in respect of these properties bll the expm
of lock in period ¢ e follows

3 March 2620 3 Mareh 2049
Now |arer rhan one vear S50 33,891
Later than onc yewr but not [ater than fve years L9 HT 1 ANLGE
Later than fiv e vears A 42080
148,850 246500
Leste Rental Income for the year 46332 H.168

Finance keases - Fiz-out and interiar work

The Graup's leasing wranoement represents the Sr-out v mterar work completed for the customers which have beem classified wnder Ind AS 1i6 as
Finance bease, The lease wrms are for 1he periods nf Ave to seven years whete subsianbatly all the nisks and rewards of pwnership are iransfered 1o the
lessee. The Group reconds dispasal of the property concemed and recuinizes the subsequant inierest b finance lense. No contingen! cent o recenabls in
Lhis regard

Finance lepses are recaivabbe as follon s

Grots investment in bease 31 March 2020 A1 March 2019
Reueivable within ong yenr 2 toh
Fecenable befwoen ane and five yoars 44 152
Receivable afier five years (4.3 -

573 318
Presend value of minkmom [2Rse paymeols 3L March 2020 31 March 2019
Mut later than one year 144 119
Ealer than one year but pot Baler than 3 vears k] [R&]
Later than 3 vears 164 -

IE7 230
MNate 48

Micrp, Sorall and Medium Enterprises

Under the Micrn. Small and Madium Enlerpraes Bevelopment Avt, 2006, (MSMED| which came ingo {orce Fom 2 Gorober 200G, centain declosures are
ruquired 10 he made relating to Micre, $mal and Medinmm enterprises. On che basis of the wformation and recards available with the Manaaemten, Lhere are
ma owtstanding duss 1o the Micro, Small and Medium cnicrprises as defingd in the MSMED as set aut in fallow e diselosurs,

31 March 2620 A1 March 2019

Principal amuunt remaining uopid to amy sunplier a3 al the poar end (o5 for Jess than M L] 5%
daysy

imtetesl dug therean . -

The amount of wterest paid by the buyer as per the Micro Small and Medium Enemprises - -

Dy elopment Acl, 2006 1 MSMED Act, 2006)

The amouats of the paymenss made 1w avors and small suppliers beyond rhe 2pp d - -

day dunng epch aecounting year

The amounr af interess due and payzhle for the penod of delay in making payment {» luch B -
have bean paid bui bewond the appoinled dav during the szar] but without addmg the
mieresl specified under MEMED Ay, 2006

The amound of interest accryed and romaining unpaid a1 e end of zach accounting year -

The amaant of furher wierest rmainig dus and payable even in e sucomeding years. - -
unkil such dare when the fmterest dues as above are acrually pad oo the smalf enferprise
Amauni of ieres1 accrued and remmining unpaid s the ead of the aceounting year - R




Tata Realty and Infrastructore Limited
Wated 1o the B fimancial tCantimueds
sar she vear srided 3 tlaech NG

iCurreney: Indian mpes in lakhg?

Mote 49

Expenditure in foreign currency ton deeruit bashsl 1 Mareh 1020 3 Mlareh 209
oo feesional fews 123 L5
Traimwng and donferance o perss: - 12
Travelling expenses 1" !
Wembership & Subsonpiion Expenses [+ -
ol 3

{a) Impairment in value of Govdwill

The mroup hos resred the ropument of yoodwill anary on sweoent of consolidation memger. Based on e per formance of the propect duripy, the currerll
year and Amme projecions. an Tparment dnalyss fnd been cimed out dunng e year and impainmen oss reromised during the vear oF B Nl 2009
Rs. "5 Lakhs)

thi Impaicment in valae of Intinyible assel under SCA an] Builling

Ag on Il Warch 2620, the Enperprise Value jas per the DCF rechmiques of the group 5 Imesmment Property and Ietangible Axsels {Senice Camimsian
Amanvanens (SCAHw one of its subswdiry Le. International (nfrabuild Privale Limeeed  B5. 3 401 lakhs whuch @ [2s8 than the baok +afue of Rs 16,777
lakis, Therelore, an mparment loss of B3 11,314 lakhs has been recopmmed in the books of aceounes, The luw enterprise valse prmorily peraing w Mtn
Leve! Car Park and hepce the intangibhe 1ssers under SCA periaming to thal isset is emurely wrinen down of Rs. 9450 lakhs The mrpawmerny over and
by the Iniangible Assets under SCA pemains to the Rewail space e on cenr witeh is represented by Buildine under Imisstmerns Mroperty, lience the
babwce amoeunr of Rs. 1377 lakhs has been mmpamod therefrom

o} Loss an accousl ol disprsal of By in ies

Diering the current vear the Group has disposed of invesomemts m ow o sibsidianes 2. TRIL anmisar Prajecs Lioated 1nd TRIF Real Estate Development
Limuied a5 oA Deemiber 19, 2004 far a sabe consideranon of Ry, 4,177 [akles, The amoum of nil wsets dsposed off is Bs 9491 Lakhs 1 weluding goodwil]
nfRe 2]al) lakhs The net %oss on disposal of investmerts of Rs 314 dakbs has been charged 10 Statenen) oF Profil & Lass Aceounr

Mde 51

a}  Disclosare with respect to trunsition adjosiment of [ndds 113

For 1he Yezr
Particutors epled March 31,
2014
Openung Retained Earmnes before ind A3 115} ITHE D
Faversal of ravente 1174
Heversal af Cogt of sals 570
| Opening Rerained Earning ¢ Affer Ind A5 115 173,845)
Increase In Inventory 1.871
Teereuse in Trade Recalvable (Other than related Pamy| [N RaT]

b} Discigsore in respect of Coasirwetlon Coatraels

For the Year For ihe Yaar

Bartlculary ended Murch 31, | eaded Macch
1 3 JD.W_‘

Comract revanle Fevuiized 15 revenue

R AT T
dumng the year B, 32,780

For the Yoor Far the Year

Particulurs ehted March 33, | ended March
2020 31,2019
Curnulative Tevenue sevosmez=d 230 34y [P kL]
Curnulath e costs incurmed 127008 2,342
Curmlative mansing aceounted 11,420 T3t
Advanges pid 5,370 10907
Reiention money pavable L2 -

i ’&‘/ 7 \ A

L




Tuta Realty snd Infrastructure Limited

Nates rc the @ lidated finaneial nts (Coamnmed
for the veur ended T Murch 2024

tCurmency: Indian rupees in fakhs)

Note 52
Interesls im other entiticy

18] Subsldiaries

The company’s subsidiasnes at 31 blarch 2070 ase set ol below

Ploce of e of pwaership mterest
Name of entiey bmainess 31 Alarch 202 31 March 2019

Agme Living Solutioes Private Limired India 100 0™ 100.00%a
Arrowy Infraestate Private Limited Indra 100.00%s 100007
Gurgaan Construcnvsl] Private Lumiled [ndia 110 60" 1030000
Gargaon Rezlrach Limiced [ndia [[1TERV L] 10000
TRIL Roads Private Litted India 100 66% I M N
TRIF Gureaon Housing Projecis Private Limised [ndia 10000 100 N a
THIL lirhan Transpor Private Limited [ndia 100 K s {010 009
Wellkepr Favitiry Management Services Privute Limice lodin 106 00y 100.00%
TRIL Coasirucuens Limied Tndia &7 507 E7500
TAIL Infopark Limited {refer noke o, (i & (i) India [REEIIEH 100 41]%
TRIL Amnusar Projects Limired tupro December 09, India . 140 1%,
2099 - 100 %) | Refer note 34 (cn

Hampr Expressway Privaie Limigad India | 6)£N% . 10.00%
TRIF Reyl Estate Development Limbied (upte Decembet india - 10.00%
49, 2012 - IBDR7G) | Refer nete 304k

HY Farms Prrvate Limited ladia 100.00° G0
[ncernanonal Infrabwld Pnvate Limired {(LPL) Tndia 26.00% 26, 0H0
Dharamshala Ropeway Limited India RARTELPY T .
Manali Ropewny Private Limited ks T T
Uhit Expregsivays Private Limited Lodiz IR I XL YA
TRPL Roadways Private Limiled India HEERE T LGy
Aaiheran Ropeways Private Limited [odia I T
Duurg Shisnath Expressways Private Limited [odta 1TH (0% FLL O
MLA Infasyucmore Private Limited India L1000 [ 00"

Skgniffeanl jedgement: consalidadian of entitles wilh less thao $0% voting interest
i} Althpagh the Droup vwis (854 thas onc-half of the voting power of lremational lafrabuild Privete Linnted. it is able to coniral the company by virue of an agreemens with the other mvestors of [nternational lnfeabuild
Prvate Limited which imter-alia provides the Groig wilh powes 10 dppommi majorine of the board of diveceors of [ntemational tafrabuild Private Limped and power vver elevamt activides, Consequenthy, the Group

cunsolidares fif . esument in the company.

i} The Parent caimpaoy hos entered into call aption with ane of the sharcholder of TRIL Infopark Lid expirisg on 10t July 2021 wherein te Parent Compeay holds dhe ¢al! optioes Company has paid full cossiderabon
ofRe 7,110 Lakhs s opton doposil. Hence Parean ecmpany is coosolidatiog sharehoiding o TIIT Infopark Led of the said shareholder as stake hald by it

ni} Similarty, the Parent Company hay entered into pul optron with asoter shareholder of TRLL Wfopark Lid axpriog an 3151 March. 2021, Based oa the put option conduions Parcal Company has pronided fnlf babitiy
under other curreol Anancial liabilities., since the pus opnans righe are & ailable with the other sharchalders Henee, Parcnt Company is consalrdanne TRIL Infopark 119 as | IV« subsidiary

i) Non-conirolling imyerevts {NCT

Set aut belonw is summarised fioaneial wformuton for cach subsidiary Lhat has noo-conkmikbgg 1eress 1 the grobg. The amounts disclosad for each subsidiary are befare inter-company <liminations.

Summarised balance sheet
Dharumshals Repeway Limlted  TRIL Consrruerlons Limlied  Manali Ropeways Privare oL \latheran Ropevwsys
Lirnited Private Lamiled
11 Mareh Al March 3 dlarch 3 dMarch 3 March 31 Marck
3N b LI N, 22 ! 020
I Sfarch 2020 31 Mlarch 2009 1 March 220 2019 31 March 2020 1019 2020 2018 N
Noo-current assets 3108 T.16% e 2tam 27 5145 3532 tifds 1.599 [ 387
Curtenl asseis 39 12 2645 204 4 5 3T L] o7 31
Non-cureol bebilivcs 171061 15640 {8,868 tRAI4) {5307 14,954 (7,079) 18,474 . -
Current iiabitities 17681 $1.132) 1450) 12893 (W1} 4] 19 40,70y Ul {LoL}
Bicl assris 390 503 13,801 15,4335 138 17 {1,543 11,925) 2462 237
Wit gssiels atmibulable fo N1 hy 1M 6,098 6304 - . - - 116 i
Dharamshala Ropeway Limjted  TRIL € isoructions Limited  Manali Ropeways Private IFL Mlatheran Ropewayy
Limited Private Limited
3 Murch 31 March M March 31 March 3| March 21 Burch
2 0% 2
3 Maech 20200 3 March 3018 31 March 2030 2010 31 March 20H) 2019 2080 1019 2020 0o
Summariked staterment of profil and lpss
Revenue 223 2 - - - - 438 1 36 3 33
(Laoss) Profi 3% 16451 [LXE0) 131) 165 £ (9,339 1181 in 13
oact
Total comprehensive income {133y L6191 (634} {512} {64} (55} (9,559} [1,917) 25 25
Loss allpealed w NCT 135} 1164] 12001 t166) {19 L5 {TOTHL 11415 B h
Q[ allocated 1o NCI
Total comprehensive income allocated to NC1 {351 (169) 1206) (166} {19 i3] (10741 [TEYE i 7
Loss 1o NCL Restrieted 135 {169 1204) 11661 - 7 T g 7
Swmmeartsed cash flows
Cash fows from operating aclivibics 183 oth 12580 [gati] N [REL (154) [{EN (21 taul
Caab flows from tavesting activitiag t9346) (L4In . {204 (230 134y (1RGN 1 A420) 18771 39
Cash flows from Boancing actvbes 1.167 14634 153 BOS 234 48 Ta% .900 - -
Net tncrease (decrease| in cash and cash equivalents JET 42 L {32} - 4 406} F k] 291} (&)
/-i

\./



Tota Realry and Lofrasorucoere Limited
Neles fo the didaicd fnandal i i
(68 e baur eiked T Wueah Je0

ICumacy Indin mupes @ tabhsy
obe 51 reondnmed)
Jaiereils B athor coiilies | coniineed)

{eF Transsctivns with 3 oo-conmollg nrresis
Thene an: o ranszctions Witk oo ocanindbng icress i 11220

b Inbaresis in folot »anturcs
S ot bl ki ARes i) s ettures oob e map aa al B Mach 1%k abich, o the omn s of e oo, S ot i Die greup The counmy AF meomps md oot syt g als e poncipel plies of hasmea

Placcof  Peal owncrikip

Notrte o enlity husinrm inneresl

Pume $nlapar Evpreasvnys Bnake Limted Lobia JKE, Teani vipioe Buury metkod
A% T Hoad Consructios Management mnd | iperaion Privae LA ] S, Lo vmne Bty melhod
Lumsicd

TRIL T4 P | izl Indiz RN Joy veniure Byuny methed
Wk Fadfors P LB imlia S, Jouon eiute Buguits Tethud
Indiacima Munwsmls avd Fhctneila Dompan y Froa e Eance] India 14003, Mok Al Fguds melbnd
inne 140y Mewre B Tamised RS LT T bhiom semmure By iy wiethed

1 Al e sl wmh veniines are woaaged B e b oF real el and ipfasruckire dovelupmeoa 1w o s rsteie o esom e ahch uihees e growp o L ledze und epeniess i the dete el of redl eatate and mimastociure shesebopiseat

1w S cant gudpeme. Ahboupl B Group s ae swene b vid-Aalf ol the siang pser ol TRIL M Prsate | imtiol. Mbadn Riealton P 6 industesd Mietals aml Chemaicals L smpasy Prodie 1mnisd and Pone 1T Ciry Sotne A bigiiad, @ dvees mok base eouml near thowe
Compapies The G b i conml oo i otnpanies by vriue of 1o agresn =0 wath Qie uther myesint To ot wonds, doceams about the rghnamr acovmies - (e dose U 5 g0 ety o be relres of e wrasgernenl - raqu s the allirmanse eonwal o te #iesiom
T noseyguerily, de Gmup has cliared og inkmen o Bese o mpaieg a5 et b comermdlal vatity.

Nommarived Aowcisl imformmtion for assecistes sad jeind +eotores

P Salnpor Expreamays Frimis A& T Rmod Co H 2 | Mil bmod TRIE [Td Privare Lomived  SUlsde Reakors PviLlod Puns LGl Moten Rall {uln
Florted Mrnugemenl and Dperation Dhe sl Compmm AHeker Noie Y| Llndind
Privore Limiiad Troste Limited

Al A
30 March BHR M Morch 2009 AT Miserh 20310 31 Mk 2UIY !l;l::mh JLMereh 30 Mazeh 33Barch 30 Mareh 3 Mok M Wah 3 March 3 Momh 30 Mach

2] iy 202 Uty 2020 ey porl] s U L

Perrentnge onmerbip iteemi A} 3Nt w0ty e T Tima T T, Tir, e Erm %

1 WITEAE 25506 g4 40T LAl K et 13 g 5 Lz - [RE1E ] A
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Netes to the Consolidated financial staternents
Jor the pear ended 31 March 2020
(Currency Indian rupees in lakhs)

Nute 53 {continued)

Liguidity risk

Liquidity sk is the risk that the Group will not be abls to meet its inancial obligations as they become due. The Group manages its liquidify risk by ensuring. as far as
possible, thal it will aiways have sufficient liquidity (o meet its lisbilities when due. under hath normal and smessed conditions, wilhout incumag unacceptable [osses or nsk
to the Group's reputanun

The Group has obtained fund and non-fund based working capital lines from various banks. Furthermare. the Group has access to funds from compulsory convertible and non-
ronvertible debentures from bolding Group and other financial insticution. The Group also constamly monitors funding options aveilable in the detw and capial rarkets with

a view o mairaining financial fexibility

Expasure to lguidin risk

The table belew analyses the group's Gnancial labilities inte relevant mamriy groupings based on their commaetual manties for:

* all non derivatve financial liabilities

* net and prass settled derivative finanial instruments for which the contrachual maturities are essenfial for Lhe understanding of the timing of the cash Flaws,

31 March 2020
Moun-terivative financial liabilities

Cantractual cash flows

Carcying amount I ycar or less 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 years
MNon convertible debennures 1,79.413 40,000 72,500 67,000 -
Financial liability for premium payment 89016 2108 1078 13,570 183671
[nterasi- free secunty deposits from customens 32 A06 1,619 - - -
Commercial paper issued 1o mutual fund 75.303 17.500 - - -
Trade and pthar payables 5879 5.87% - - -
Loan and wocking capital fagility [rom Banks and Financial 533133 Hh6.973 46,004 62,113 16054
Instuons
Other finanesal liabilites 42,445 36T - 5933 -
8.17.797 1.30.798 125672 148,616 &34.217
Derivalive [inancial liabilities
- Pur option 18,823 17.432 - i34} -
18,813 17,432 - 1391 -

M March 201%
Mon-derivative linancizl tabilities

Cartractual cash flows

Carrying amount 1 year or less 1-2 years 1-5 years More than 5 years

Non converlible debennures 2331580 118,820 A0,000 45,500 20,650
Inter Corporate Deposils from Related Parties 14,000 14,000 - - -
Financial liability for premium payment 62110 1314 6.346 13,485 12010
Frojest development fees payable 35 43 - - -
Bank Crverdraft 4118 4118 - - -
Intterest- free secunity deposits from customers 11351 3.34 5.059 13773 4734
Commarcial paper issued o mumal fund 6,567 77.500 - - -
Trade and olher payables 8358 9468 - - -
Securad loan and working capital facility from Bank JALGdY 13.365 31,850 1.12,385 286,035
(Mher financial liabilites® 36,3053 24,865 - 11.43% -

9,09,6%9 2,66,838 83,855 206,592 642,41
Derivalive financial liabilities
- Pur aption 17,295 15477 - La1g
- Forwards 415 - - 325 -

17,720 15477 . 2243 -

¥ Forward conitact entered wills Lhe banks with respect te Lhe firn commetment of supply of assels . services entered with the Joraign contracior 1o he consmucted and
insealled on the project stke. Notonal amount ol foreign currency Eurg 59,40 lakhs and nobdonal IR 114,35 lakhs,

/
A
|'l ;

s
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Motes to the Consolidated financial statements

for ihe vear ended 31 March 2024

{Currency: [ndian rupees in lakhs)

Mate 53 {continued)
Credlt Risk

Credit risk is the tisk of financial loss to the Group if 2 customer or counterparty to a financial insbrument fails 10 meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group's reccivables from customers. Credit risk is managed through
credit approvals, establishing credit limits and continuous!y monitoring the creditworthiness of customers to which ihe Group
grants credil terms in the normal course of business. The Group establishes an allowance for doubtful debis and impairment
thal represents its estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other reeeivables, lvans and advances and invesimenis.

Trade and other receivables

The Group's exposure © credit sk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. The
demographics of the customer, including the default risk of the industry and eountty in which the customer operates, alse has
an influence on credit risk assessment. Credit risk is managed through credit approvals, establishing credit bimits and
continuously monitoring the creditworthiness ol customers 1o which the Group srants credit terms in the normal course of

business.

Credit risk for receivables pertaining to residential business
The risk For trade receivables penaining o residential business is considered nil as he possession of the residential property
is transferred only atier the receipt of payment from the customer.

Summary of the Group's exposure to credit risk by age of the outstanding from various customers is as follows:

31 Marcch 2020 AL March 2019
Neither past due nor impaired 087 [,572
Past due but not impaired
Past due 1-90 days L412 800
Pasl due 91180 days 33 103
Past due 181-270 days g 155
Past due 271-363 days 424 -
Past due more than 363 days - 26
2,865 2.546




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the Consclidated Dnancial statements

for ihe year ended 31 March 2024
{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)

Note 53 {continued)

(i) Tuterest rate risk
[nterest rate risk 15 the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial insteiment will fluctuate begause of
changes in market interest rates, The Group's exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates borrowings

from financial institutions.

Exposure to interest rate risk
The mierest rate profile af the Group's interest-bearing fnancial instruments is as follows:

Particulars 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
Fixed-rate instruments

Financial assels 32,805 5,808
Financial liabilities 347345 3,39,07!

Variable-rate instruments
Financial hahilities 484,090 4,20.040

Interest rate sensitivity - fixed rate instruments
The Group does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profis or
loss. and the Group does not have any designate [inancial liabilities.

Interest rate sensitivity - variable rate instruments

A reasonably possible change of 100 basis points in interest rates at Lhe reporng date would have increased /
decreased equity and profit or loss by amoums shown below, Tlis analyses assumes that all other variables, in
particular, foreign curmency exchange rates. rewnain constant. This calculaton also assumes that the change occurs at
the balance sheet date and has been calculated based on risk exposures outstanding as at that date. The period end
balances are not necessarily represeniative of the average debt omstanding during the period.

100 bp increase 104} bp decrease

As at ‘21 Maech 2020
Variable-rate instruments 4,841 {,841)
Cash flow sensitivity (net) 4.84] (4,841)

L) bp increase 100 bp decrease

As at '31 March 2019
Yarable-rate imstraments 4,200 {4,200}
Cash flow seasitivity (net) 4200 {14,200

{Note; The tmpaci is indicated on the profitToss and eguity belore 1ax basis)

-
—



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Motes to the Cansolidated financial statements
for the vear ended 3t AMarch 2020
{Currency: [ndian rupees in lokhs)

Note 54
Capital Management

The Group’s pelicy is to maintain a strong capital hase so as to mainiain investor, creditor and markel confidence and to sustain fure
development of the business, [t sets the amount of capital required on the basis of annval business and long-term operating plans which
include capital and other surategic investmems

The tunding requircment of the Group are met from fund and non-fund based working cepilal lines from various banks. Funthermore, the
Group has access (o funds from compulsory convertible and non-convertible debentures from holding Group and other fnancial institution.
The Group's paly 15 to use shor-ters and long-term borrowings Lo meet anticapated funding requirements

The Group monilors capital using a ratio of “adjusted net debt” to adjusted equiry’. For this purpose, adjusied net debt is defined as intal
liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and berrowings and obligations under Fnance leases, less cash and cash eguivalents, Adjusted
equity comprises all components of equity other than amounis accumulated in the hedging reserve.

Asat 3t March  4s at 31 March

202 209
Towal borrowings 7.77.951 7.73.320
Less : Cash and cash cquivalent 20940 3,921
Adjusted et debt 748,011 1,67.359
Adjusted equity 1,13,025 29,512
Sdjusted nel debt to adjusted equity ratio 7 26

o



Tata Realty and infrastructure Limited
Mates to the consolidated financial statements (Conrfinucd)
Jfor the year ended 3F March 2020

|Currency: Indian tupees in lakhs)

MNote 55
Tax expense

{1} AITKINGTS [BC 1 im profit sod loss

31 March 2020

3t March 2019

Current 14 expense EEE) 364
Current 1ax expense relating to prior years -
Deferred Tax Expense

Onginal and reversal of temporany difference 0e 1.906

Inurease in tan rate -

Recopnition of previausly unrecognised ax [Dsses - -

Change in recoprised deduetible wmporary differences - -
Total deferred tax expensetbenelit) 300 1,986
Tax expense for the year 5353 2770
{b} Amounts recognised [n other comprehensive Ename

For the year Tax {expense) et of For the year Tax {espease) Net of ix
Before tax Belure tax
ISR INE MR _INR INE il
Items that will not be reclassified w prefit or losy
Remeasurements of the defined benefir plans 3 Lt 2 35 {14 a1
Equity mstraments thimugh Cther Comprzhensive Income - - - - -
E) 1)) 1 35 [{E]] 41

(] Reconcilistiva of effective tax rate

M Nlarch 2620

A March 2012

Profic before mx (15,834) (21,145
Tax usuig the Cnmpany 3 demestic tax rate {23531 {4,787
{hlarch 20 26% or 28,127, (March 201 %: 34 9H% or 26%a))

Tax effect of:

Dif¥erences in fax rales 138 .
ltemns not blei idered sep 1y 92 0
I[mpact o aceount of Ind As adjusmients 1581} [LE+)
Current-year lesses for which ne deferred tax asset s recugnised 10,773 1363
Effeet of deduction claimed undar chapter N V1A of income tax aet, (501 193] RO}
Linutilised MAT Credit 106 833
nhers Hi Baf
Tatal [ E2] 2,770




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Nates to the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

[far the year ended 31 March 2020
{Currency: Indian nipees in lakhs}

LHH

(i)

(i)

Note 56
Disclosure pursuamt to Ind AS 19 on “Employee Benefits™

The Group has adopted Ind AS 19 on “Employee Benefis” as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 204 5 notified
under Section 133 of the Companies Act. 2013 {'the Act' and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Contribution to Provident fund
31 March 2020 31 March 2019

Contrbution 10 pravident fund recognised as an expense under "Employee benefis”, 323 267
Defined Benefit Plans
Gratuity

The Group has a defined benefil grasuity plan. Every employee who has completed Five years or more of service gets a gratity on death
or Tesignation or retirement calculated as per the Payment of Grawity Act, 972 with oo ceiling.

31 March 2020 30 March 20119

1 Change in the defined benefit obligation

Liability at the beginning of the year 421 454
Interest Cost 34 35
Current Service Cost 75 86
Benefit Paid 43 o4
Actuarial Loss on obligations 17 (60)
Liability at the end of the year 504 421

IT  Amgunt Reregnised in the Balance Sheet

Liability ar the end of the year 504 421
Fair Value of Plan Assels at the end of the year - -

Difference 504 421
Amount recognised in the Balance Sheet 504 a7

Il Expenses Recognised in the statement of profit and loss

Curent Service Cost 68 86
Interest Cost 29 35
Met Aenrariat Loss to Be Recognised 17 {60}
Expense Recognised in statement of profit and loss 114 61

IV  Balance Sheet Reconcilintiou

Opening net liability 41 454
Expense as above 114 61
Employers contribution {paid) (31) (%4)
Amount recegniscd in Balenee Sheer 504 411




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes t¢ the consolidated financial statements (Continued)

for the vear ended 3F March 2121
{Cumrency: Indian rupecs in lekhs)

{iv) Defined Benefit Plans (Coatinued)

Grataity (Continmed) 31 March 2020 31 March 2019
¥ Actuarial Assumptions :
Discount Rate 5.55% 7.05%
Salary escalalion 7.00% 7.00%

Alftriticn Rate: Directors - Nil, Age 21-30 years - 5%, Age 3140 years - 3%, Age 41-59 years -2%

Estimates of [uture salary increases, considered in acanal valuation, take aceount of inflagion, senionity, promotien and other relevant
factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.
The Group's liability on account of grawity 1s not funded and hence, the disclosures relating to the planned assets are not applicable.

31 March 2620 31 March 2019

VI Experience Adjustments:

Defined benefit obligation 381 368
Plan assets - -
{Delicit) (381} {368)
Experience adjustment on plan liabilities . -

Experence adjustment on plan asseis - -

Sensifiviry analysis

Reasonably possible changes at (he reporting date (o one of the relevant acuarial assumptions, bolding other assumptions constant,
would have affected (he defined benefit obligation by the amounis shown below.

1] March 2020 31 March 2019
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate { % movement} {2.10) 2.20 (2.60) 2.70
Salary escalation (% muvement) 220 (210) 270 {2 60}

{v) Other long term cmployment henefits
Compensated absences

The Hability towards compensared absences for the year ended 31 March 2020 recognised m the Balance Sheel based on actuarial
valuation using the projected unii credit method amounted to INR 654'- (2019 INR 795:-} and the charge to the Statement of profit and
loss amounted Lo INR {33)5%{2019: INR 126/-).

-~

(O 4
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Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
MNotes to the consolidated linancial statements (Continred)
for the vear ended 1f March 2020

{Currency: Indian rupees in [akhs)

Mote 57
Related Party Disclosurcs

Holding company:
Tata Sons Private | imited

Joini Venture

TR T4 Private L imited

Mikado Realtors Private Limited

[ndusirial Minera] and Chemicals Company Limited

Joint Venture aof a Subsidiary

Pune Solapur Expressways Private Limited (a JV of TREL Roads Privale Limited)
4 & T Road Construction Management and Operation Private Limited

Pune IT City Metro Rail Limited

Other refated parties with whom transactions have taken ploce during the pear:

Fellow Subsidiaries:

Ewart Investments Limited

Tata Consultancy Services Limited

Tata AIG General lnsurznce Company Limited
Tata AlA Life lhsurance Company Limited
Tata Capttal Financial Services Limited
[nfinity Retail Ltd.

Tata Assel Management Limited

Tata Housing Development Company Limited
Tata Elxst Ltd.

Tata Teleservices Limited

Tata Consulting Engineces Lid

Key Management Personne!

Samjay Duct Managing Dircctor & CEO

Sanjay Sharma Chief Financial Officer - w.e.f [0th September 20158
Arvind Chokhany Chief Financial Qfficer - upto 28th February 2019
Sudhakar Shetty Campany Secretary - w.e. P Ist December 2019
Vinay Gaokar Company Sccretary - upto 30th November 2019



Tata Rezlty and Infrastructure Limited
MNotes to the c lidated financial stal ats (Camiinued)
Jor the year ended 37 March 202

(Curreney: [ndian fupees m Jakhs)

Reloted party disclosures (Contimied)

Summary of related pary transactions

Transactions Halding

Fellow
Subsidlaries

Joint Ventures

Key Management
Persannel

Total

| Share Application Pending Allorment
31 Mlarch 2020 1.20,000
31 Mareh 2019 .

1,20.000

Tara Sons Privare Limaed
31 March 2020 1.20,000
31 March 2009 -

2 Unsecored loan taken
31 March 2020 -
31 March 2019 -

43,590
14,000

124,000

43,550
13,000

Tata Housing Development Company Limited
31 harch 2070 -
31 harch 2019 -

3 LUnpgecured loan repaid
3 March 2020 -
31 March 2019 -

43,390
14,000

37,504

43.590)
14000

57.550

Tala Housing Development Company Limited
31 March 2020 -
31 March 2519 _

4 [oterest expenses on unsecured loans
31 March 2020 -
A1 March 2019 -

§7.500

57300

Tata Housing Drevelopment Company T imded
31 %arch 2020 .
31 March 2019 .

% Purchase of property, plao & equipmenrs
31 March 2020 -
31 March 2019 -

Inhnity Retail Limited
31 March 2020 -
31 March 2019 -

fi Purchiase of Investments
3 March 2020 -
31 March 2019 -

3.756
103

3756
105

Industrial Minerals and Chemicals Private Limited

3] March 2020 .
31 March 2019 .
Pupe [t City hMetro Rail Limited

31 March 2020 -
31 March 2019 -
A & T Read Construction

31 March 2020 .
31 March 23[9 -

¥ Asset Mapagemeni Consultaney fees
31 March 2020 -
H March 2019 -

134
103

441

L)

136
148

134
103

421

[

13t
148

TRIL iT4 Private Livnitad
31 March 2020 -
31 March 2019 -

136
145

136
148




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Motes lo the lidated financial stat is {C 4y
for the vear ended 31 March 207}
{Currency: Indian rupees in lakhs)
Relared party disclosures (Contimued)
Summary of related party transactiong
Transactions Holding Fellow Jolat Ventures Key Management TFotal
CUmpan} Snbsidiaries Persoanel
8 Project Mapagement Consultancy fees
31 March 2020 - - 1425 - 1625
31 Mach 2019 - - 1,118 - [118
Mikade Realtors Private Limited
31 March 2020 - - 1,485 - | 485
31 March 2019 - - 1118 - LIS
TRIL IT4 Private Limited
3| March 2030 - - 140 140
3| March 2013 - - -
9 Interest Income
31 Aarch 2020 - - 1463 - 1 465
31 March 2019 - - 1463 - 1465
TRIL 1T4 Private Lirnited
31 March 2020 - | A0Y - 1,463
31 March 2019 - - LAGS 1463
10 Reot Inconae
31 March 2020 - 4,747 - 4147
31 March 2019 - 5315 - 3315
‘Tara Consultaney Services Limited
31 Mareh 2020 4.722 - - 4922
31 March 2019 . 4.629 - . 4629
Tata AJG General Insurance Co. Lid
31 March 2010 . - - - .
31 March 2013 686 - - ]
Tata Housing Development Company Ltd
3] March 2020 1A - 13
31 hlarch 2019 - - -
11 Managerial remuneration -
21 March 2020 - - 1.133 1,133
31 Maech 2009 - - - 1008 1.{08
12 Relmbursement of expenses (receivible)
31 March 1020 27 30p - 332
31 March 2018 3 Gl - - 612
Tata Sons Private Limited
31 March 2070 7 - - - 7
31 March 2019 & - - - B
Tata Housing Development Company Lid
31 March 2020 - 3ol - - kit
31 March 2019 - 603 - 605
Ewan [ovestmenl Limited
31 Mapch 2010 1 - - L
31 March 2019 - - - -
Tata Services Limited
31 March 2020 1 - - 4

31 March 2019




Tata Realty and [afrastructure Limited
Motes to the ¢ lidated financial st nts (Canfinreedi
for the year ended 31 March 20X

{ Currcncy: Indian rupees in laklist

Eelated party disclnsures {Contfnucd)

Sommary of related party transactions

Transuctions Holding Fellow Joind Ventures Key Management Total
COMm pInY Subsidisrles Persomnel
13 Services Received

3 March 2020 1] 919 - . G40
31 March 2019 k] 712 - - 17
Tata AIG General Ingurance Limited

31 Mareh 2020 23 - - 23
31 March 2019 - 273 - - 274

Tata Al4 Life msurance Limited
31 Maorch 2030 - - - -

31 March 3019 - 8 - - ¥
Tala Sons Private Limitad

31 March 2027} 1 - - - 10
31 March 2019 5 - - - 5
Ewart Invesiment Limirad

31 March 2020 - 182 - - 182
31 Mlarch 2019 - 208 - - 208
Tata Consulnne Engineers Lid

3] &arch 2020 - 3N - 300
31 March 2019 - 158 - - 158
Tata Elxss Lid.

3L Manch 2020 - . - -
31 March 2019 - i - - 8
Tata Teleservices Lid -

3t March 2020 - 2 - - 2
31 March 2019 . 20 . - it

Tata Housuig Drevelupment Company Limiied -
3| tarch 2020 - - - . -

3] March 2019 - 33 - - 15
Tala Consuhaney Services Limuced

31 March 2020 . 16 . . "
11 March 2019 . - - . M

14 Sule of porpercy, plant & equipments

31 Alarch 2020 - - - - -
A1 March 2019 28 1 - - 3|
Tata Sons Private Limited

31 March 2020 - - - . .
3[ March 2019 2] - - - 18
Ewart [nvesmens Limited

31 March 2020 . - . - -
31 March 2019 - M - . 2

15 Deposit Refuad Received
31 March 2020 . - . . -
31 March 2019 130 450 - - AUl
Tata Sons Private Linted
31 March 2020 - - - - -
31 March 2619 50 - - - t50
Ewart |nvestments Limited
3} March 2020 - - .
31 March 3019 - I - - 430

1& Employee Benelit Transfer
Tata Sons Private Limited

38 Mareh 2020 - - . R R
3 Mareh 2009 St . - - 30




Tata Realty and [nfrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolidated fnancial statements (Continged)
Jor the vear ended 3§ Afpech 2020

{Cwrrency: Indian rupees m lakhs)

Related paery disclosures fCamfmued)

Summary of related party iransa¢tions

Transactions Hrulding Fellow Jaint Ventures Key Management Tatzl
company Subsidiaries Personnel

17 Balances receivable at the vear-gnd
ij  Towards interest and debit notes and advances

31 March 2020 - 366 106 - 472
31 March 2019 - 488 1% - 707
Pune Solapur

31 March 2020 - . [&] - I8
31 March 2019 - - Lit - n
TRIL IT4 Private Linired

31 tvfarch 2020 - - 87 - &7
31 March 2019 - - &9 - 69
Mikado Realors Pravare Limited

31 March 2024 - - 15 - 135
3 March 2019 - - 73 . 273
Tata Consultig Enpmeers Lid

31 March 2020 - L3 - - 15
31 March 2019 - 33 - . 35
Tata Housing Development Company Limired

3| Mazch 2030 - il - - 119
31 March 2019 - 653 - - 653
Pune [T City Metro Rail Limired

31 March 2020 - 3 - . 3z

31 March 2009 - - - - .

iy Deposits placed

31 March 2020 - 340 - . 40
31 March 2019 - 340 - . 0
Ewart Investments Limited

31 March 2020 - P . - 240
31 March 219 - 240 - - 40

iy Trode recelvables

31 March 2020 23 T4 E E 763
31 March 3019 - Lk 15 - 208
Tata Consultancy Services Limired

31 March 2020 - T - - o
31 March 2019 . 752 . ; 751

TRIL [T4 Private Limiled
31 Miarch 2030 - - - - -

31 March 201% - - 15 . 15
Tata Sons Private Limited

21 harch 2020 13 - - . 13
3] March 2019 - - - - .

Tata AIG General [nsurance Company Lid.
31 March 2020 - - . -
31 Mareh 2019 - 4] . . 4

18 Balances pavable at the vear-pod
iy  Teowards advances (rom customers

31 Warch 202) - 2.583 - - 1583
31 March 2019 - r921 - - 1972
Taa Constlancy Services Limited

31 March 2020 - 2.583 - . 1.583
3 March 2019 - 1.583 . 1.583

Tata A1G Genernl lpsurance Company Lid.
31 March 2020 . . - -
31 March 2010 - 3% . . 139

2



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited
Notes to the consolldated Gnancial statements (Connnued)
Jor the vear ended 31 Marcl 2024

(€ wrrency: lndidn rupecs in lakhs)

Related party disel 25 (Continmed,

Summery of relared party transactlons

_ﬁnldlng

Fellow

Transactions

| L

Joint Ventures Key Management Total

Persomnel

il] Tpwards expenses
11 March 2020 4 166
31 March 2019 - +4

- - 174

Tata Spns Pyt Limited

31 March 2020 9 -
2 March 2019 - .
Tata Cansultancy Services Limited

31 March 2000 . 5
31 March 2019 . 7
Tatza Telaservices Limited

31 March 2020 - |
3t March 2019 -

Tata Consulting Exgineers Limited

3] March 2020 - L6
31 March 2019 . .
Tata Housing Development Company Limited

31 Mlarch 2020 - -
k]| Mirl:h X1 . 19




Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Motes 1o the fidared financial st

Sor the year eaded 3 March 2000
|Currengy; [ndian rupees in lakhs}

Mote 58

Addittanal informalion purdnant 1o paragraph 2 of Doasion £ of Schedule {1 10 the Companies Aot 2013-  General

hdated fi

mnstrucnens for the preparaiton of

" of Dintaran 11 of Sehedute [0

Part A
March 2020

Nei Assals Share in prafit ar Joss Sharein other cemprehensive | Share Intatal comprehensive income

[Total Assets - Tolal Liabilitias) Income
ame of the entity A5 3% of Amount Asra%of Amaunt Asa % of Amaurt A % of total Arrtounk
consqlidated net consoldated cons ol dated other comprabensive
assels profit or less comprehensive noma
intome.

Pareny
Tata Realty 2nd Infrastructure Limided SE.07% 283,827 AB.19% {22,528) ol 92% (L675) 67 76% 125, 285)
Subsidiaries
Indian
Arme Living Sedubions Private Limited Q.00% 19 0.00% 11y 0.4 0 00% [3H]
Arrow Infra Estetes Privare Limmned 007% 361 1.34% (445§ Q.00% 119% {4458
Gurgaon Constructweld Private |imied 0.42% 2,189 171% -3 0005 241% (898}
Gurgaon Reakech Limited 0 6% 1,384 0 15% (33} Q00 o 34% [53}
TRIL Roads Prvate Limibed q 99% 26,116 7 3% 12,430) 2.959% 1131 BB 125681
TRIF Gurgaan Housing Projects Frvare Limiled iRl 4 0 0% |1} 0 0 - 0% [1}
TRIL Lirban Transport Prrvate Limited 1.95% T.048 732 (2,475} A4 50R [215] 7 08% (26409
Wellkeps Faciity Management Services Private Lirnted 0.00% [1 0.00% 104 Q.00% - 0 0% )
TRIL Constructions Limeed 2 B3% 14,801 151% {634} 0.00% - 170% |E3d)
TRIL Infopark Limiled B3t 43,415 -7 B3 5,905 -0, 370% 9 -15.367% 5,214
TRIL Amritsar Projects Lirmited 0.00% 0.00%: - 0% - 0.00% -
Harmpi Exprassway Frivate Limited 507% 26,544 047% 1i5a| 0.00% a2% {155|
TEIF Heal Estate Cevelopment Limited 0.0 - QTR - GLoo% D.XPs .
HV Farms Private Limited 023N 1,143 O 00% [) ook (s [
h iana Build Private [imited -0.36% [1,%05] 28 58% 19 465] 0.00% 25.35% 19,465]
Dharamshala Ropaway Limied 0.11% 590 04%% {163} D.o0x & 44 [163)
Manall Aopeway Privabe Limted 3% 138 0 21% 90] 0.00% . 0 24% {90]
Uchit Exprasnways Private Limrted 353% LEA97 354% 11712 0.10% 4y -2.14% 1169
THEL Ropdways Private Limted 130% 12.052 3E7% {1281} LR {1,375} T.13% 12,656
Cherg Shrenath Expresswiys PRl 191% 10,024 -2.50% B2 -0.01% 1 223% BZ8
Matheran Ropeway Pvt L 0.47% 2462 -0 10% 15 0.00% 0% a5
MEa& Infrastructure Private Limited % 131 1} O0% {1} 0.00% 0 00% {1
N ling i in all i 123% B384 0 70% 1233 O DL Q0%
doint Vesure ¥ per equity 1]
fndian
Pune Solapur Expressways Private Limited 0.43% 2,248 [ 247 B 0.00% 0.21% b
A E T Apad Construction Maragement and Op=ratian Povaie bmied 0.00% 1 0% 11 0.0 0 0de 11}
TRIL IT4 Proate Limited 0.00% .00 D.00% 0 DERE .
Mikado Realtors Put Ltd 5.79% 30,335 0300 1101} 0.90P 0 7% |10}
Industnal pinerals znd Chemcals Campaiy Prieate Limted 4 15% 21,950 -012% A0 O.00% - -0.11% qn
PunaiT City Metio Ral Limited 0.81% 4,226 D.65%H 12151 0.00% - 053% j215}
| Tt 100.00%, 5,23, 794 100 133,120} 190-H% 14,350 100.00% {37,277}
Conanlidatian Adjustmeat {410,755} 13.138] 4,393 3,023
|Towt 113,025 36,256) 2 135,254)

%"

L=

),



Tate Realty and Enfraseructuce Limited
Notes 1w the lidased flmanetal (oA
for e pouy draled FT Mwrch 008
(Cunma, locan ngpon 0 lius
Part b
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Tata Realty and infrastructure Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements fContintued)

Sfor the year ended 3f Marelt 2024
{Cumreney: Indian rupees in lakhs )

Mote 59
Events after the halance sheet date

There are no significant subsequent evenls that would require adjustments ar disclosures in the financial sialemems as on the balance sheel date

Ngle 60

World Health Orpanisation {WHQ) declared outbreak of Coronavirus Disease (COVID-19} a global pandemic on March 11, 2020, Consequent to this. Govemment of (ndia
declared leckdown on March 25. 2020 and the Group suspended its aperations in all ongoing projects in compliance with the lockdewn instruchons issued by the Central
and State Governments, COVID-19 has impacied the normal business operations of the Group during the lock-down period.

The Group has made dewailed assessment of its liguidity posiion for the nest year and the recoverability and camying value of its assets comprising property. plani and
vquiptment. intanyible assers, invesanents, inventory, advances, wade receivailes, Deferred taxes. other financial and non-financial asses ete. Based on currenl indicatars of
Future economic conditions. the Group expects to recover the farmyving arnount of these assers, The situation is changing rapidly giving rse to inherent uncertainty around the
extent and timing of the poteaual future impact of the COYID-19 pandemic. which may be different from that estimared as at the dale of approval of hese fnancial

slaternenis.

The Central and State Governments have ininiated sieps 1o 1N the lockduwn and the Group wili adhere 1o the same as it resumes its activities. Consmuetion at sites has
already restarted. Sincz it js ondy about thirteen weeks o the pandemic. the Gosup will condinue (o closely observe the evolving seenardo and take imo acagunt any future

developments acsing gul of the same,

Note 61
Previous Year's Figures

Previvus year figures have been reprouped - reclassified to confoms o current year presentation. wherever considercd necessary

Tata Really and infrastructura Limited
CIN Ne; UT0102MH2007FLC168300

"“L }\*’\ S A wf

Sanjay Duit

)
-’P‘./ =4 For and on behalf of the Board of Direclars of
g

Banmall Agraval

Chali Memaping Drirector DHrector
DIN - 00§ 20029 DIN - 03251670 DIN - 00028428
" =
'JJ“' - 7 -
Z z
Sanjay Sharma Sudhakar Shetty
Chief Financta) Officer Company Secreiany

Membership No: A 3200

bumbai
06 July. 2020



Tata Realty and Infrastructure Limited

Ahwtamant pursaant 4 fire provies 1 cab-sactian (3] of Jdion 129 9f the Compantan Act, 2013, resd with rula 5 of G A i Rubes, 3030 Inthe Form ADCL
i salient Faat: £ i b Airancial of ! # Joiot Yantwas
Purt & Subaldiaries
R erom)
gr. Frame of the rubsidiary Tha date 2ince | Aeporting period |Roparting curmney | Eactwnge rde | $haes Caphesl| Racarms L | Totad Pasals Fodnl weitrents | Turnover Prafit Prontadan | Prof after| Prepoas %ol
™% whan For tha rubskdlary a5 an L last Surphirs Llwhithles bmfore far easnap | dividend | shareholding *
ubidiaty vaz | conmmed, date of Une Tanation | tsation
arquired Sferent Fram the rulmwng
halding Ar Sl yuar In
L BT LTE ke of forsler
wparting pericd submidinrin
A |Tata Hanity and infratbsucturs Limibad M 31 -Mar-1020 indian Rupess Lon L7 3 §036%6 BEIEi5A) 133928 ErL Y 175 85 -101ET -3a13 22585
Subs|diaring;
1 |fcme Lodng Sofugans Private Umsted 27-Jard000 H-tiar-2020 brcfian ftupe s 1 .05 L34 [ol=] om - - 10.01] - [Le]ugh) - 100 00%
2 |Asrow Infra Exgies Private Lim et -l np- 20 3. Mar- 1030 Indhan Kupess 100 2] R 13325 231 .65 - 443 245 - 14 45, : 100 00%
3 |Gurgaon Gonriructwell P rivats Lmiad - | an-X00% AMar-2020 Indan Fupess 140 oAz 2LET 11681 9502 - - {5.08 [¥.ri] [LET) - 100.00%
4 |EUrgana Reaech Lirngd -Jan- 2008 E1-Mpr- 2020 Andian Ause sy 10 007 ] _un EFLE 31314 - 1035 [053) - {053 - 100 DR
4 | TRIL Aoads Private Lt iked LB-Mar-2008 32 M- 200 Andian Rupeas .00 TIs 25341 553 &7 BFIsT A 304 34.30) .75 3L 0% - 1041 D%
& |TRIF 4 Housing, Proyetts Prvete Limcbed 242005 F1-Wae-2020 Iriflan Rupaes 1.00 [ o4 oo a5 - - onu] - w001 . 100, 0%
T JTRIL Urtan Tra 1 Private Lried 25 May-2007 31-Mar-20620 |n¥on Aupmes hiirs) FL4 -] prod] 5044 Ja4 - [14.25) 11. 2267 B A0 008
& {\Wemkent Faciity Managam ank Saraces Pyt Lt 17-Jarr 2051 H-wdar 2000 | it wn Rupoes 100 o.an (L] 006 oo? - - L] - i - 100 (oA
9 |TRIL Constructions Lomed 25| IOT 31-kter- 2020 Il am Rup ooz, 140 36 15 118 41 35 3328 - . {634 - 15 34 - &7 HFh
A0 | TRIL LnFopark Lém e 23-M13r- 2015 51-Mar-2uE rdlan Rugoes 1o 1,050 00 EL1. 79 E1% 33 aice 2 56271 SF0% 1) - 63.65%
11 |Hampi iy P e Lm it 23 Ape-20E5 Z1-Mar-2R0 Indian Aupess 100 541 1331 1,571 48 1,306 02 - 274.00 {L.5E] .75 126 - plrigis, ]
12 |H¥ Farms frivete Lmpited 25-Apc-20L2 3-Mar 1020 Indian Rupees 100 fa]er] 1148 115 oo - - Fulil . [ialah] - 10000
| miemalions! infreta Id Provete Limited 1-Apr-2016 LM 60 Ingian Aupees 100 o #1815} 59.69 7B M - it {54 B5) 0 | 135 53| - J6.000
Biiay-2015 31-Mar- HG Indizn Aupess 100 3.80 10 W15 FATA - - [LEI) EY {L33) - a0
12.0rt-2015 32-Mbar- HI20 tncliare Rupmes oo .35 103 5117 36.38 - v 14} 0 58] - 1.0
A Oet-1T1E Ab-far- 1020 mndian Rupess L0 JECRY 5180 1415 52 LI 61 - A8 4] 1172 208 2.4 - 100 P
3-Nen- 2016 AL-Mar-7020 Induan Ry pees 100 a0 3047 2508 B8 138 36 - - J12 B3k - [z an - 100.00%
Crurg Shivnash Enoramaways P Lid, 26 hpr 2017 31-Mar2020 Indiar Rupess im0 2362 i3 3iE06 2178 - S7 28 Bz ERL] 57 - TO0.00%
18 |Matheran Ropevay Pyt [id 15-lur- 2007 A1har. 20K Indian Rupais [T ¥ 50 1712 54 112 - - 035 0.9 [ . TLL
Al Inirastruciure Private Limitest 17-0cr-201¥ 31 Mdar. 20120 inglan Rupees L.0g 2T 13.08 i) a3k - - 0 - 1031 : 10000

% of shvare holdng af the Compary and as vibs Hanes
Andcliithon ol dagalls:

1 Numaof subricierr which sre pwt to commance opertion
L TRIF Gurgasn Housing Prejecs Py Umioed

2 hema bvng Soiubions Pt Limitad

3 Wellkept Fariiy Wanagement Seraes Frvate Lmites

4 AAA infrastructuce #rivate Limeed

Marng bf subsidloctes wiilch hizve e | quidatad of sold duting e yeor
TRL Arm 1 Lear Prayects Limited [upto Oecem ber 09, 2018}

TRIF Re @l Esrace nd DEvelepman Limined |upto ot ber 09, 2017
For Tals Realty snd infraloeeiune Lirmited &
{ 4
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Senjay BuH £, % Subedar Sudhakar Shetty
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Putt B Ainocates xnd sint Wenlee=

Tats Reafty and inlrastruclore Limlbed

to Sertimn Companlcy Ao, F11 shited 1o Ausordmbe Companies and 3ot e
Kk [ that gy Lautet munited | Date on which 1the Reporbre Shangs ol the Axstciute f Joint Wenteees held by the i thew & M R o wehv i tha Hetwarth Pra#t f Loss for the rear
faunce e daes | Baioctate or solmt currmnor Compary as an March 31, 3000 Aaancimie { it venmre | aTTRATAKE 1
eI W Ma ol I Adteiant ol Extent of holding B
apockated o Bl by e i parcantaget® prer et
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